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RESPONSIBLE PERSON

“I hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, that the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and give a true and fair view of
the Company’s assets, financial position and results, and that the management report in
chapter 1 of this annual financial report presents a true and fair view of changes in the
Company’s operations, results and financial position and describes the main risks and
uncertainties to which it is exposed.”

27 March 2023,

Mr Julien Blanchard,
Chairman of the Company’s Management Board.
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GENERAL REMARKS

Definitions

In this annual financial report, and unless otherwise indicated:

>

>

“AMF” means the Autorité des Marchés Financiers;

The terms “Company” and “Hoffmann Green” refer to the company Hoffmann Green
Cement Technologies, whose registered office is located at La Bretaudiéere, Chaillé-
sous-les-Ormeaux, 85310 Rives de I'Yon, France, registered in the La Roche-sur-Yon
Trade Register under number 809 705 304;

The term “Group” means the group of companies formed by the Company and its
subsidiaries. This legal scope is presented in section 1.3 of the Annual Financial Report;

The term “Annual Financial Report” means this annual financial report on the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2022.
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1. MANAGEMENT BOARD REPORT

1.1. RISK FACTORS

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation (EU) No. 2017/1129 (“Prospectus 3
Regulation”) and Delegated Regulation (EU) 209/980, this chapter only presents the risks
specific to the Company and which are significant for anyone making an informed investment
decision. In addition, in accordance with the provisions of Article L. 225-100-1 of the French
Commercial Code, the financial risks relating to prices, credit, liquidity and cash flow are
described in the notes to the IFRS financial statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2022 presented in section 2.1 Annual Financial Report.

Each of these risks is specific to the Company and is classified according to its degree of
criticality, which is based on a joint analysis of (i) the probability of the risk occurring and (ii)
the estimated magnitude of its negative impact, in the aforementioned relevant category.

The probability of occurrence of each of the risk factors relating to the Company and its
impact, assessed on three levels (“limited”, “moderate” and “high”), are presented in the table
below. The main risk factors are grouped into five categories, it being specified that within
each of them, the risk factors are presented in decreasing net degree of criticality according
to the Company’s assessment at the date of approval of the Annual Financial Report, which
takes into account risk management measures. The most significant risk factors are listed first
and are marked with an asterisk.

The occurrence of new events, either internal to the Company or external, may change this
order of importance in the future.

Summary table:

Risk name Probability of | Risk magnitude | Net degree
occurrence of criticality

Risks related to the macroeconomic environment

Risks related to global price | High High High
increases due to the war in
Ukraine and the macro-economic
environment

Risks related to the COVID-19 | Moderate High Moderate
health crisis*

Risks related to the Company's activity

Risks related to the competitive | Moderate High High
environment and the deployment
of industrial facilities*

Risks related to the operation of | Moderate High High
production sites*
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Risks related to dependence on | Moderate High High
suppliers*®
Risks related to the development | Moderate Moderate Moderate

of the Company's activity
internationally

Risks related to information | Moderate Moderate Moderate
systems management and

cybercrime

Risks related to the Company’s | Moderate Moderate Moderate

reputation and image

Risks related to dependency on | Limited High Moderate
key people

Risks related to the cement industry

Risks related to dependence on | Moderate Moderate Moderate
the construction, real estate and
public works markets

Risks related to regulatory | Limited Limited Limited
constraints
Legal risks
Risks related to intellectual | High High High
property *

Financial risks

Risks related to working capital | Limited High Moderate
requirements

Neither the Company's partners nor its suppliers are located in Eastern Europe or Russia,
meaning that the Company's activity is not directly affected.

Nevertheless, the invasion of Ukraine by Russia in February 2022 had significant repercussions
on the financial markets and on the price of certain raw materials, and will impact the entire
world economy. As a result, since February 2022, some of the Company’s suppliers are
currently facing rising energy prices, as well as rising transport costs.

The purchase contracts entered into with its suppliers stipulate a price cap. Insofar as the
pricing conditions were unfavourable to certain suppliers due to the increase in energy prices
and transport costs, certain raw material purchase contracts were renegotiated at the
initiative of the suppliers.
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Furthermore, energy and fuel price hikes and supply difficulties for some commaodities could
impact the entire construction sector and some projects under way could be postponed or
even cancelled.

More generally, the Company is particularly vigilant about the impacts of inflation, potential
supply chain disruptions and rising interest rates in an uncertain geopolitical and economic
context.

The magnitude of this risk is therefore high.
The probability of occurrence of this risk is considered high although it is difficult to assess as
it is difficult to anticipate the duration of the war in Ukraine and more generally, due to

uncertainty and volatility of the macro-economic environment.

In view of these elements, the net degree of criticality of this risk is considered by the Company
to be high.

In 2020, lockdown measures and border closures due to the COVID-19 health crisis had an
impact on the Company's ordinary course of business. Some trade agreements have been
delayed. The technical tests carried out in collaboration with certain partners on their sites
were significantly reduced or even suspended during the 2020 financial year, which resulted
in a significant delay in the completion of these tests as well as in the issuance of Technical
Experimental Assessments (ATEx) by the Centre Scientifique et Technique du Batiment (CSTB),
and consequently in the delivery of the volumes of cement underlying said ATEx on
construction sites.

In the first half of 2021, the Company was still impacted by the effects of the COVID-19 crisis,
but to a lesser extent than in 2020. Many companies in the construction sector continued to
limit face-to-face contact with their suppliers and partners, which slowed down the
Company’s commercial development and in particular prospecting for new customers, in
France and abroad.

Since the second half of 2021, activity is gradually returning to a normal pace and the Company
is almost no longer feeling the effects of the health crisis.

While the virus in circulation is less dangerous and the French economy is no longer really
impacted by the COVID-19 health crisis, the risk that the appearance of new variants of the
dangerous virus will generate a new wave of COVID-19, which would lead to the
implementation of new government measures restricting freedom and slowing down
economic activity as a whole, cannot be totally ruled out. The probability of occurrence of this
risk is considered moderate although it is difficult to assess.

In addition to the impact that a possible resurgence of the COVID-19 crisis would have on the
Company’s activity in France, this resurgence could also cause a delay in the Company’s
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international development strategy, in particular by generating delays in the completion of
licensing agreements, or delays in construction projects or more generally in commercial
development in the various countries abroad in which partnerships had been and could still
be concluded. The risks related to a global pandemic such as COVID-19 are more generally an
overall decline in activity, deterioration of the Company’s economic situation linked to this
decline and possible delays in payments caused by this health crisis and successive new waves.
The magnitude of this risk therefore remains high.

In view of these elements, the net degree of criticality of this risk is considered by the Company
to be moderate.

e Risks related to the competitive environment and the capacity to deploy industrial
facilities

The cement market in France is dominated by a limited number of players, including five world
leaders who alone account for 95% of cement production in France®: LafargeHolcim,
HeidelbergCement, Vicat, CRH and Imerys.

As cement is a heavy product and its transport costly, the operating radius of a cement plant
does not exceed 300 km by land. The regional network is therefore a necessary prerequisite
for access to the cement market. In addition to the regional network, the intensity of
competition in each regional market also depends on the production capacities of the players
present.

The Company’s ability to develop its business and its presence in cement markets therefore
depends on its ability to meet market needs with its production facilities. The presence of
other players with available or surplus capacity on a regional market or nearby, as well as the
presence of one or more players that already have cement import infrastructure or are able
to set up such infrastructure on the regional market under satisfactory economic conditions,
are likely to create a situation of increased competition.

This intense competitive situation is likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company,
its business, financial position, results, outlook or development.

The Company’s strategic industrial development plan, described in section 1. 2 “Business
overview” of the Annual Financial Report, provides for the construction of two new production
sites, “H2” (work on which began in the last quarter of 2020 and should be completed during
the first half of 2023) and “H3” (each capable of producing 250,000 metric tons of cement per
year) in order to rapidly ramp up the Company’s production capacities and gradually build a

1Source: INSEE Focus No. 121 of 07/25/2018.
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network across the territory. A delay in commissioning these new production sites would slow
penetration of the French market, which could have a significant adverse effect on the
Company, its business, its financial position, its results, its prospects or its expansion.

Penetration of the cement market is also based on the Company’s ability to set up and
maintain commercial partnerships with players in the construction sector, and to be present
in cement distribution networks. In this respect, it is specified that the Company has already
set up several partnership agreements (see section 1. 2 “Business overview” of the Annual
Financial Report).

It should be noted that, even though the main players in the French cement market are trying
to reduce the carbon footprint of traditional cement and have launched several initiatives in
this direction, to its knowledge, at the date of the Annual Financial Report, the Company is the
only player able to produce and market decarbonised cement without clinker, a sixfold
reduction in the carbon footprint of cement compared to traditional Portland cement.? In
addition, the innovations developed by the Company are a major competitive advantage (see
section 1.2.5 “Competitive strengths and assets” of the Annual Financial Report).

Even though the Company believes it has a technological lead, it cannot guarantee that its
competitors will not succeed in developing decarbonised cements comparable or even better
than those currently marketed or being developed by the Company. The development and
marketing of low-carbon cements by one or more of the Company’s competitors could have
a material adverse effect on the Company, its business, financial position, results, outlook or
development.

According to the Company, it will take a relatively long time to develop and market competing
decarbonised cements given the time spent developing Hoffmann Green cements (five years
of research and development work) and setting up an innovative and adapted industrial
process.

The Company believes that the net degree of criticality of this risk is high, given that:

- the effectiveness of the measures put in place by the Company to understand the
increased competitive environment in which it operates may be mitigated (in the
event of delays in the commissioning of production sites for reasons external to the
Company or if competing decarbonised cements are developed);

- the occurrence of the events described in this section could have a significant negative
impact on the Company (impact on the Company’s revenue and profitability).

2 Results for cement made based on H-UKR technology compared to conventional Portland cement type
CEM 1.
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e Risks related to the operation of production sites

The Company plans to build two new production sites, “H2”, which should be completed in
the first half of 2023 and “H3”. With these projects, the Company could, in addition to the
difficulties related to the COVID-19 health crisis which cannot be completely ruled out,
encounter difficulties resulting in the delay of construction sites, the commissioning of
production sites or the ramp-up of production sites.

These difficulties could, for example, be related to administrative procedures (obtaining a
building permit, ICPE authorisation, etc.), weather conditions during construction or non-
performance by suppliers or subcontractors contracted to work on construction sites.

Such delays could have a material adverse effect on the Company, its business, financial
position, results, outlook or development.

As part of the construction of “H2” and “H3”, the Company intends to capitalise on the
industrial know-how acquired during the construction of “H1” and use the various
stakeholders who took part in this first project.

Once the production sites are commissioned, the Company could face interruptions,
breakdowns or other factors that could slow down or stop cement production. Such events
could have a material adverse effect on the Company, its business, financial position, results,
outlook or development.

The Company has implemented various procedures applied at the “H1” site to ensure the
resumption of production in the event of an interruption due to an internal or external event.
In addition, the production site is constantly monitored by the Company’s employees, who
are trained to intervene in the event of interruption. The Company has also implemented
these various procedures on the “H2” site and plans to do so on the “H3” site.

The Company believes that the net degree of criticality of this risk is high, given that:

- the construction, commissioning and optimal operation of production sites depends
in part on external circumstances over which the Company has no control (financing
of investments, weather conditions, non-performance by a subcontractor or supplier,
lockdowns related to health risks); and

- the occurrence of the events described in this section could have a significant negative
impact on the Company (impact on the Company’s revenue and profitability).

e Risks related to dependence on suppliers

The manufacturing process for Hoffmann Green cements is based on the use of co-products
from industry:

- blast furnace slag: a co-product generated by steel production;

-10-



CATALYST OF

CARBON TRANSITION

- clay: a co-product from the washing of aggregates and clay sludge; and

- gypsum or desulphogypsum: gypsum comes from site cuttings and desulphogypsum
is generated by thermal power plants.

At the date of the Annual Financial Report, given the relatively recent launch of the production
of Hoffmann Green cements, the Company uses a limited number of co-product suppliers,
mainly located in France, and is therefore exposed to a risk of dependency on such suppliers.

The use of a limited number of suppliers entails a certain number of risks, in particular supply
disruption, insufficient product quality, product origin or non-compliance with applicable
regulations. The use of suppliers may therefore lead to financial risks and risks to the
Company’s reputation, particularly if these suppliers do not comply with the regulations
applicable to them. The occurrence of one or more of these risks could have a material adverse
effect on the Company, its business, financial position, results, development and prospects.
This dependence could also intensify as part of the Company’s business development strategy
in France and internationally to the extent that the Company may have to face increased
needs for raw materials.

However, the Company maintains good commercial relations with its co-product suppliers and
believes that it offers them an opportunity to promote their co-products. The Company has
not recorded any loss of contract with any of its suppliers since its creation.

In addition, it is specified that:

- other companies, in France and abroad, produce the aforementioned co-products,
which minimises the Company’s dependence on suppliers of the two main co-
products, blast furnace slag and clay; and

- the Company aims to further expand the number of co-products used to manufacture
its cements, in order to diversify its sources of supply. Research is underway on
technologies to recover fly ash from biomass (see section 1.2.1.2 of the Annual
Financial Report).

The commissioning of the new “H2” and “H3” sites and the development of the Company’s
international activity will increase the quantities of co-products that the Company will need
to the manufacture of its cements, and therefore its dependence on suppliers. However, the
risk of dependence on suppliers will remain under control as the Company’s supply needs for
co-products will be much lower than the quantities available on the supply markets.

However, the Company believes that the net degree of criticality of this risk is high, given that:

- there are many supply sources for blast furnace slag, clay, gypsum and
desulphogypsum, and the Company believes that the number of co-products used in
the manufacture of its cements could be expanded, such that the probability of
occurrence of this risk is moderate; and

- that the occurrence of the events described in this section could have a significant
negative impact on the Company (impact on the delivery times of Hoffmann Green
cements to the Company’s customers and on the Company’s reputation). The

-11 -
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potential impact would be increased by the development of the Company’s activity in
France and internationally due to the increase in the volumes of raw materials
concerned.

e Risks related to the development of the Company's activity internationally

The Company’s business model for its international development is based on the signing of
licensing agreements with local partners in the targeted countries.

If the Company, in 2022, forged a partnership with Switzerland and Germany, it is pursuing
the objective of developing its activity internationally.

In this context, the Company could carry out a poor analysis of markets and enter into
partnerships in countries or regions where demand for low-carbon cement is not as attractive
as expected by the Company and could generate lower revenue than planned.

The Company could also enter into licensing agreements with partners who do not abide by
their commitments or who attempt to copy the Company’s technologies, know-how or
industrial secrets.

The development of the Company’s international activity will make the Company more visible
to international construction players, which could lead malicious competitors to attempt to
damage the Company’s image and reputation.

Lastly, the cybercrime risk will rise due to the growing number of international partners.

The probability that the development of international activity will be less profitable than
expected, that it will generate litigation related to intellectual property, or that it will increase
the risk that the Company will be targeted for defamation or cybercrime is moderate. The
establishment of these partnerships via licensing agreements will be gradual and carried out
after an in-depth analysis of the various international markets, in particular with regard to
changing regulations on carbon emissions. In addition, if licensing agreements are breached
or intellectual property rights are illicitly appropriated, remedies may be exercised. In
addition, the Company will extend to the international level all measures implemented on
national territory to ensure that the market is properly informed about its activity in order to
protect its image and reputation. Finally, the Company intends to enter into partnerships with
players whose servers will remain independent, i.e. not connected with those of the Company,
which should limit the risks of exposure to cybercrime.

If the aforementioned risks materialised, their impact would be moderate insofar as most of
its activity would continue to be carried out in France, in any event.

-12 -
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In view of these elements, the net degree of criticality of this risk is considered by the Company
to be moderate.

e Risks related to information systems management and cybercrime

The Company has set up an industrial tool 4.0, based on production automation (the “H1” site
has more than 200 PLCs) and the use of production software developed specifically for the
site.

The Company’s information system is exposed to the risks of computer or industrial hacking,
as well as to computer virus attacks or computer bugs that could disrupt the proper
functioning of its systems and software.

The Company has implemented measures to ensure the reliability and security of its IT
systems. These include:

- no connection to the laboratory’s Internet network;

- installation of a “black box” type server (isolated server extremely resistant to external
conditions (e.g. fire)) not connected to the Internet network, to which only two
identified persons have access;

- implementation of a plan to back up the Company’s data every eight hours (day and
night);

- the installation of a firewall, CE certified and compliant with the security standards in
force, for IT systems in production site and offices.

The Company’s information system has been subject to an external security audit by a
specialised company recognised in this field. As part of this procedure, it was established that
there were no critical vulnerabilities in the audited scope.

A regular security audit plan has been put in place to verify internal security rules and perform
internal and external vulnerability tests.

However, the Company cannot guarantee that failure of one of these protection measures will
not occur, and this could have a material adverse effect on the Company, its business, its
financial position, its results, its development or its assets. outlook. The Company could be
subject to complex and targeted attacks on its computer networks. The techniques used to
hack, interrupt, degrade quality or sabotage IT systems are constantly evolving, and it is often
impossible to identify them before an attack is launched. The Company may not be able to
protect itself against such hacking techniques or to rapidly implement an appropriate and
effective response system.

It is specified that the Company has ensured that sensitive elements related to its intellectual
property are not accessible by computer, so these elements could not be impacted or
disclosed in the event of an attack on the Company’s IT systems.

-13 -
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The Company believes that the net degree of criticality of this risk is moderate, given that:

- the effectiveness of the measures put in place by the Company was verified by a
company specialising in cybersecurity, it being specified that these measures will be
regularly updated in line with changes in the operating methods of cybercriminals,
and sensitive elements related to the Company’s intellectual property would not be
impacted in the event of an attack;

- the occurrence of the events described in this section could have a negative impact
on the Company (loss of data, unavailability of certain tools IT systems used in the
production of Hoffmann Green cements, product delivery delays).

e Risks related to damage to the Company’s image and reputation

Given the economic and technological challenges relating to the cement industry, the
Company is exposed to the risk of criticism or challenges of various kinds, in good or bad faith,
which could harm its reputation.

Communication vectors such as the Internet and social networks are characterised by real-
time reactions and exponential spread of information, thus facilitating the creation and
dissemination of false information.

False information related to the Company’s activities could potentially be disseminated on the
Internet and on social networks as well as in the press.

In this respect, it is specified that the Company itself uses the Internet and social networks to
ensure its visibility to the public. Thus, a reader could give credit to false information about
the Company or its products intentionally attributed to the Company provided for nuisance
purposes by a third party wishing to disparage the Company.

The occurrence of such events could have negative effects on the Company’s image and have
repercussions on the Company, its activity, its financial position, its results, its development,
in particular in relation to the conclusion of international licensing agreements, and its
outlook.

The Company proactively monitors Internet tools and social networks and has put in place a
communication crisis management procedure in order to avoid and anticipate potential crises,
prevent the proliferation and reach of such information and limit their impact as much as
possible.

The Company believes that the net degree of criticality of this risk is moderate, given that:
- the Company believes that the dissemination of criticism relating to the Company is
likely, but that the Company will be able to react effectively thanks to the monitoring

of Internet tools and social networks and thanks to the communication crisis
management procedure;

-14 -
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- occurrence of the events described in this section could have a negative impact on the
Company (deterioration of the Company’s reputation, loss of appeal of Hoffmann
Green products, impact on the Company’s revenue and level of profitability).

e Risks related to dependency on key people

The success of the Company depends to a large extent on the actions and efforts undertaken
by its founding partners Julien Blanchard, Chairman of the Company’s Management Board,
and David Hoffmann, Chief Scientific Officer and member of the Company’s Management
Board. Loss of their skills could affect the Company’s ability to achieve its objectives and
implement its strategy, and thus have a material adverse effect on its business, results,
financial position, development and prospects.

The Company has taken out specific insurance to cover the risk of death of these two key
persons (see section 1.1.6 “Insurance and risk coverage” of the Annual Financial Report).

The Company has also ensured that the teams currently in place are able to continue the work
initiated, particularly in terms of research and development.

The Company believes that the net degree of criticality of this risk is moderate, given that:

- Julien Blanchard and David Hoffmann, co-founders of the Company, are behind the
creation of this project and are the most significant shareholders of the Company (see
section 1.9 “Principal Shareholders” of the Annual Financial Report);

- occurrence of the events described in this section could have a significant negative
impact on the Company (failure to achieve the Company’s objectives, impact on
revenue and profitability).

e Risks of dependence on the construction, real estate, industrial, public works and
urban planning markets

The cements sold by the Company are used for the construction of individual or collective
housing, industrial or commercial buildings, or for infrastructure projects (roads, bridges,
tunnels, roads). The cement market is a cyclical market, and the dynamism of demand for
Hoffmann Green cements depends both on structural factors specific to each market and on
cyclical macroeconomic factors.

The structural factors that determine the level of demand in each market for construction
materials are mainly demographics, urbanisation rate and economic growth (represented for
example by the gross national product per capita), but also more cultural features, such as the
construction habits of each market (timber, steel, concrete construction). In addition to these
structural factors, the economic situation has a cyclical impact on the construction markets,
particularly in the event of an economic crisis and considerable global financial instability.
Global economic parameters determine the ability of public and private players to finance

-15-
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through access to credit and carry out individual and collective projects that make up the
construction market.

Significant fluctuations in some of these parameters are likely to have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial position, results, outlook or development.

The Company believes that the net degree of criticality of this risk is moderate, given that:

- the cement market is buoyant, and the Company should only have 3% market share
in France by 2026;

- the occurrence of the events described in this section could have a negative impact
on the Company (impact on the Company’s revenue and profitability).

e Regulatory risks

The Company operates in a highly regulated environment. In particular, the Company’s
cement production sites are classified as facilities classified for environmental protection
(ICPE) and are subject to specific regulations, requiring authorisation from the prefectural
authority.

At the date of the Annual Financial Report, the Company has a production site (“H1”), located
in Bournezeau (85), which has obtained authorisation under the ICPE regulations.® The “H2”
production site, whose construction work began in the fourth quarter of 2020, should be
completed during the first half of 2023, has also obtained authorisation under the ICPE
regulation®. This will have to be repeated for the construction of the “H3” production site in
Dunkerque. However, if the Company fails to comply with applicable regulations in the future,
it could face withdrawals of operating authorisations or refusal of authorisations, be liable or
even be sentenced to pay fines.

More generally, the Company cannot guarantee that rapid or significant changes in the laws
and regulations in force will not occur in the future. Thus, a strengthening of regulations or
their implementation could result in new conditions for the exercise of its activities likely to
increase its operating expenses (in particular through the implementation of additional
procedures and controls), or act as a brake on the development of the Company’s activities.

The Company cannot exclude the possibility that such situations could have a material adverse
effect on the Company, its business, financial position, results, outlook or development.

With regard to regulations known to date and aimed at limiting CO, emissions, the Company
believes that the impact of their entry into force will be positive on its activity, insofar as

3 prefectoral order no. 17-DRCTAJ / 1-510 dated July 13, 2017.

4 prefectoral order no. 20-DRCTAJ / 1-517 dated July 29, 2020.
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Hoffmann Green cements are decarbonised and thus fully comply with future construction
standards. (see section 1 .6 “Regulatory environment” of the Annual Financial Report).

The Company believes that the net degree of criticality of this risk is limited, given that:

- the Company complies with the legal and regulatory provisions applicable to its
business, and with the current regulatory environment, and its announced changes,
aimed at limiting CO, emissions, is favourable to the development of the Company’s
business;

- regulatory changes applicable to the Company could have a limited negative impact
on the Company (additional costs and obstacles to the development of the Company’s
business).

e Risks related to intellectual property

Thanks to the research work by David Hoffmann and his team, the Company has developed
unique and innovative expertise and technologies. As these technologies are at the heart of
Hoffmann Green cements, the Company has implemented a policy of protecting its intellectual
property in various ways, described in section 1. 2. 1.1 “Protection of the Company’s
intellectual property” of the Annual Financial Report.

The Company’s success depends, among other things, on its ability to obtain, preserve and
protect its patents, trademarks, designs and models, as well as its other intellectual or similar
property rights (such as its proprietary know-how). As a result, it could be that:

- the Company is unable to develop patentable inventions;

- the Company is not granted the patents or trademarks for which it has filed or will file
applications;

- the Company will one day see the validity of its patents or trademarks challenged by
third parties;

- the Company cannot benefit from sufficiently broad protection from its patents to
exclude competitors;

- the Company cannot guarantee that the scope of protection conferred by the
Company’s patents, trademarks and intellectual property titles is and will remain
sufficient to protect it against competition and against the patents, trademarks and
intellectual property rights of third parties covering similar arrangements;

- the Company cannot guarantee that the Company’s employees will not claim rights
or the payment of additional remuneration or a fair price in return for inventions in
which they were involved, it being specified that the employment contracts of
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Company employees (particularly those of the research and development team)
include clauses protecting the Company’s property rights to inventions developed;

- the Company notes that patents and other intellectual property rights that it holds or
for which it has or will have licences, are disputed by third parties.

In addition, the Company cannot be certain that the confidentiality of its non-patented
technologies, its know-how or its industrial secrets will be effectively guaranteed by the
protections put in place, or that in the event of a breach, satisfactory remedies may be
exercised.

In addition, the Company’s competitors could infringe its patents or other intellectual
property rights or circumvent them through design innovations. To prevent counterfeiting,
the Company could take actions that would be costly and would involve its teams. The
Company may not be able to prevent the misappropriation of its intellectual property rights,
unauthorised use of which is difficult to control.

The occurrence of any of these events concerning the Company’s intellectual property rights
could have a material adverse effect on the Company, its business, its financial position, its
results, its prospects or its development.

The intellectual property protection policy implemented by the Company provides in
particular for:

- the filing of patents for certain technologies developed by the Company;

- specific protection of proprietary know-how (securing IT data, inclusion of discretion
and non-compete clauses in the employment contracts of Company employees,
codification of information used to manufacture Hoffmann Green cements);

— theinclusion of clauses prohibiting reverse engineering in contracts with third parties;

- regular legal monitoring carried out by two intellectual property consulting firms, as
well as prior art searches prior to filing patent applications.

The Company, which is the sole owner of all intellectual property related to its business, is also
supported by several legal advisors specialising in intellectual property.

At the date of the Annual Financial Report, the Company is not involved in any litigation
relating to its intellectual property.

The Company believes that the net degree of criticality of this risk is high, given that:

— asall Hoffmann Green products are based on technologies developed by the Company
and the Company believes that the protection of said technologies is a key issue;
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— theoccurrence of the events described in this section could have a significant negative
impact on the Company (loss of competitive advantages, impact on the Company’s
revenue and profitability, risk of litigation).

e Risks in terms of financing needs

The Company has significant financing requirements for the deployment of its industrial
facilities and for the development and marketing of its products.

As part of its strategy, in addition to its operating expenses, the Company aims to finance the
construction of (i) two new production sites “H2” and “H3”, the commissioning of which is
planned by the Company for the first half of 2023 and in 2025 respectively, and (ii) storage
silos at the Port of La Rochelle in 2025. The investment budget for each of the two production
sites is around € 22 million and that of the storage silos around € 10 million (i.e. a total
investment of around € 54 million).

It should also be noted that the Company carried out a capital increase of € 22.5 million in
December 2021, by way of a public offering with cancellation of shareholders’ preferential
subscription rights and with a priority period, on an irreducible basis. only, for its existing
shareholders.

At 31 December 2022, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of €42.0 million (cash and
UCITS before depreciation).

The Company has sufficient cash to finance its development.
The Company believes that the net degree of criticality of this risk is moderate, given that:

- the Company has the necessary cash to finance the above-mentioned investments as
of 31 December 2022;

- theoccurrence of the events described in this section could have a significant negative
impact on the Company (obstacles to the development of the Company’s activities,
impact on the Company’s revenue and level of profitability).

As of the date of the Annual Financial Report, the Company has implemented a policy of
covering the main insurable risks with coverage amounts that it considers compatible with the
nature of its business. The Company does not foresee any particular difficulties in the future
in maintaining adequate levels of insurance within the limits of cash and market conditions.
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1.2. BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Set up in 2014 by David Hoffmann, a chemical engineer, and Julien Blanchard, an

entrepreneur, the Company designs,

decarbonised cements, a complete break with traditional Portland cement.

AN ACCELERATED INDUSTRIAL HISTORY

2014-2015

Meeting between

David Hoffmann and

Julien Blanchard

Filing of request for

2016>2017> 2018

Construction of the private research laboratory

Site visit by Emmanuel Macron, Minister of the
Economy

Start of work on production site 1

European H2020 label
HORIZON 2020
Filing of request for H e

Signature of

: . MMM o5ichn
Inauguration of production site 1 in Bournezeau
(Vendée)

SORIBA

2019

IPO with a
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Achievement of the
objective of 1,000

Signature of a contract
with Bouygues

2020

Reinforcement of
the order book
thanks to
contracts signed
with French and
international
players including
KP1, GCC, Cemex,
LG Béton and
Eiffage

Obtaining FDES for
concrete planks
and walls made
from H-UKR

Recruitment of
new employees in
technical areas,
development and
production

2021

the technological lead

Launch of HIONA, the
most carbon-free
cement on the
European market

2022

H-UKR becomes the
first cement in the
world to be validated
by CSTB under ATEx of
case A

New structuring
partnership contracts
in France and abroad

Building a concrete
batching plant 4.0 eco-
responsible for

Creation of the No 1
joint venture in
Switzerland

Hoffmann carbon
credits

Marketing of 12,000
metric tons of cements

produces and markets innovative clinker-free

Issuance of HEVA
patent in China

Signature of 4
contracts already
including 1
international

] eloy

Objective to market
20,000 metric tons of
cements

Inauguration of H2

The traditional Portland cement manufacturing process is responsible for the emission of 881
kg of CO, per ton of traditional CEM | type Portland cement® Its composition is mainly based
on the use of a material called “clinker”, obtained after firing limestone in a furnace at very
high temperature for 18 hours. The production of clinker has a very high environmental impact
due to this very high temperature firing, which is the source of CO, emissions and which
requires significant energy consumption.

5 Source: ADEME, Bilan GES, http://www.bilans-

ges.ademe.fr/documentation/UPLOAD DOC FR/index.htm?ciments chaux platres bet.htm .
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Fully aware of the environmental emergency and the need to reconcile the construction
sector, cement manufacturing and the environment, Julien Blanchard and David Hoffmann are
at the origin of a real technological breakthrough based on two main pillars: modification of
cement composition and creation of a cold and clean manufacturing process (no firing of raw

materials).
Co-products Mixing and ) ]
delivery (slag, clay, i " . I i adjuvantation Packaging Shipment
gypsum) Heating-free” activation process i |
Manufacturing without heating ' v
v
| Clinker-free

The raw materials used to produce Hoffmann Green cements are essentially co-products from
industry, for which there is currently little or no recovery (blast furnace slag from steel
production, clay from the washing of steel), aggregates or clay sludge, gypsum from
construction site excavation material and desulphogypsum generated by thermal power
plants). These co-products are then cold activated using various technologies developed by
the Company to manufacture Hoffmann Green cements.

-21-



CATALYST OF

CARBON TRANSITION

The absence of clinker in Hoffmann Green cements, combined with an innovative
manufacturing process, reduces the carbon footprint sixfold compared to conventional
Portland cement (CEM 1)®.

Comparison of CO2 emuissions (in kg / metric tons)

HOFFMANN
GREEN CEMENT

Catalyseur
de la Transition

Carbone
(1)
252 161
Portland cement Hoffmann cement Hoffmann
(CEM 1) (H-UKR) cement

Hoffmann Green cements, which serve all markets in the construction sector, are currently
produced on a first 4.0 site located in Bournezeau in the Vendée, operational since January
2019. This site has no furnaces or chimneys, produces no waste and is based on an automated
industrial production process. Hoffmann Green cements is currently produced by this first
“H1” production site with a production capacity of 50,000 metric tons of cement over one
year.

6 Source: Company, based on the ETPM report (Prior Technical Assessment of Materials). Results for
cement made based on H-UKR technology compared to conventional Portland cement type CEM I.
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A second “H2” production unit is being built on the Bournezeau site in the Vendée region.
Construction began at the end of 2020 and is expected to be completed in the first half of
2023. This unit, 70 metres high, is based on a “gravity” process and built entirely of Hoffmann
Green concrete. It will have production capacity of 250,000 metric tons of cement per year.
This unit model is the one that will be duplicated for the Company’s developments in France
and internationally.

Interior view of H2

‘Gravity' process’ allowing
to optimize the productivity of
the unit and the material flows

o Raw material delivery
e Storage to 13 cells

e Raw material extraction

- o Dosing
N, ¢
) ’ 9 Blending
%
’ e Finished product transfer to
s the 6 storage cells

0 Loading of finished product
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HOFFMANN GREEN
CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES

The global cement market is a robust and growing market, dominated by a handful of world
leaders. To date, most French cement production (16.4 million metric tons of cement
produced in 20207) comes from five major players that alone account for around 95% of
cement production in France: LafargeHolcim (leader in the sector), Calcia-HeidelbergCement
Group, Vicat, Egiom Groupe CRH and Imerys Aluminum.

These traditional cement manufacturers are under continuous pressure to reduce the carbon
footprint of their activity, resulting in particular from increasingly restrictive regulations, via
the reduction in the free allocation of CO, emission quotas, increased carbon tax, and the
entry into force of the 2020 environmental regulation (BR 2020) on January 12022 in France.
This regulatory framework is favourable to the Company, which has a lead thanks to its low-
carbon solutions that meet future environmental standards for construction.

Impact of the situation in Ukraine

Neither the Company's partners nor its suppliers are located in Eastern Europe or Russia,
meaning that the Company's activity is not directly affected Nevertheless, some of the
Company’s suppliers are currently facing rising energy prices, as well as rising transport costs.
In 2022, raw material purchase contracts were renegotiated at the initiative of certain

7 Source: 2020 annual production (source: SFIC)
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suppliers. These price changes had a moderate impact on the Company. Furthermore, energy
and fuel price hikes and supply difficulties for some commodities could impact the entire
construction sector and some projects underway could be postponed or even cancelled.

Impacts related to the COVID-19 pandemic

In 2020, lockdown measures and border closures due to the COVID-19 health crisis had an
impact on the Company's ordinary course of business.

In 2021, the Company was impacted by the effects of the COVID-19 crisis but to a lesser extent
than in 2020. Since the second half of 2021, the Company has been able to resume face-to-
face contacts with suppliers and partners and restart its commercial development by
prospecting for new customers in France and abroad. Thus, at the date of the Annual Financial
Report, the Company’s activity, which has gradually resumed its normal pace, is almost no
longer impacted by the effects of the health crisis.

Activity over the past financial year

In 2022, the Company continued its development. The volume of cement sold stood at 12,010
metric tons, a very positive increase (up 18.7%) compared to the 2021 financial year (10,124
metric tons). Sales mainly concerned H-UKR technology and are related to the execution of
contracts recorded in the order book.

Sales of alternative cements to conventional Portland cement are intrinsically linked to the
building sector’s commercial cycle. Between the decision to build a structure and the start of
construction, there is traditionally a period of between 12 and 36 months. This period covers
the obtaining of administrative authorisations (building permits, processing of appeals, etc.)
and the validation of the pre-marketing phase. Then comes the construction period, which
lasts on average between 12 and 36 months. The construction period begins with the civil
engineering and structural works phase and ends with the finishing and fitting-out phases of
the building. Cement is mainly consumed during the civil engineering and structural works
phase, when concrete applications are carried out. This period corresponds to the generation
of revenue for Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies. The duration of these cycles tends to
lengthen significantly under the double effect of price inflation and the shortage of
construction materials resulting from the war in Ukraine.
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HOFFMANN GREEN CEMENT COMMERCIAL CYCLE:
FROM CONTRACT SIGNATURE TO DELIVERY OF LOW-CARBON CEMENT

Between the signing of

Key stages of a a contract and the
Hoffmann project delivery of the cement
Order book (12 TO 48 MONTHS) Revenue generation
Key stagesof a
construction
project
Signing of the Obtaining Validation of pre- Start of Civil engineering & Finishing work and
constry:tion admini.stra_tive marketing construction structural phase development phase
project authorisations
Strategy

The Company’s commercial strategy is to be on the ground ahead of projects in order to have
its solutions registered very early on in the specifications for a wide range of applications. The
Company’s decision-makers and technical sales representatives are in charge of implementing
this commercial strategy.

However, the Company’s solutions can be used for projects already initiated and in progress,
for a few applications excluding civil engineering, as a substitute for traditional concrete.
These “spot” sales are important to the Company’s commercial and technical development
because they can be used to promote and demonstrate the solutions on construction sites,
and to gain experience However, these “spot” sales generate less cement volumes than when
Hoffmann solutions are included in the project specifications, because they relate to a reduced
number of applications.

Following the capital increase of €22.5 million carried out in November 2021, the Company
was able to continue its commercial development in France and begin its international
development in 2022. In France, new contracts and order commitments were signed, notably
with Demathieu Bard (partnership contract) 3-year volume commitment on H-UKR and H-
IONA technologies) , Duret Immobilier (3-year partnership contract with volume commitment
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on H-UKR and H-IONA technologies), Bouygues Immobilier (18-month partnership contract
with volume commitment on H-UKR and H-IONA technologies), The Parisian Masons (3-year
partnership contract with volume commitment on H-UKR and H-IONA technologies), the real
estate developer P21 (3-year partnership contract with volume commitment on H-UKR and H-
IONA technologies), Immobiliere 3F (8-year partnership contract for H-UKR, H-IONA and H-
EVA technologies), O.T.E. (3-year partnership contract with volume commitment on H-EVA
technology) and the Fondéole Group (6-year partnership contract with volume commitment
on H-UKR technology).

The Company initiated its international development in early 2022. International development
is based on a licensing model. The Company’s partners are responsible for financing, building
and operating Hoffmann H2-type units and for producing and marketing Hoffmann cements
in their geographical area in exchange for the payment of royalties to the Company. The
Company targets mature markets for carbon transition, i.e. countries with advanced and
binding environmental regulations, favourable to the Hoffmann Green model. Europe is the
Company’s priority geographical area for international development.

An international developer joined the Company in February 2022. The international team
represents 3 FTEs (Full Time Equivalents).

In July 2022, the Company entered into a first partnership in Switzerland with a local
construction company through the creation of a joint venture, Hoffmann Switzerland, majority
controlled by the partner and 10% owned by the Company. Since then, Hoffmann Switzerland
has been the Company’s exclusive licensee in Switzerland. With the same characteristics as
the cements produced on the Bournezeau sites, the de-carbonised cement produced in
Switzerland will be manufactured in a vertical production unit on the same model as H2,
Hoffmann Green’s second production unit in the Vendée region.

In September 2022, the Company signed its first distribution agreement in the United Kingdom
and Ireland with Cemblend. This exclusive distribution agreement with a volume commitment
runs until the end of 2023 and is a first step towards the signing of a licensing agreement that
could see Cemblend build and operate a production unit similar to H2, then produce and
market the Hoffmann cements in the United Kingdom.

In addition, a strategic and exclusive partnership was signed with IBAU Hamburg, a German
general contractor, and one of the world’s leading suppliers of plants and facilities for the
cement industry, with a view to the construction of future Hoffmann units abroad.
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FIRST MILESTONES IN INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT IN THE FORM OF LICENSES

International development
team

1 Head of International affairs ! ‘
2 FTEs (technical, works and i‘ ;
certification) *

F I Exclusive partnership with
Wy |BAU Hamburg

Distribution contracts
signed

e United Kingdom / Ireland

e Belgium

Europe United States
Middle East

On the date of publication of the Annual Financial Report, the order book stood at more than
240,000 metric tons of cement, up 20.0% compared to 31 December 2021.

Order book

+ 20% VS December 2021

> 240,000 metric tons
> 200,000 metric tons

12/31/2021 12/31/2022
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Commercial contracts signed with all players in the construction sector

On the industrial front, the Company is continuing to execute its strategic plan.

Construction of the H2 plant, located in the Vendée town of Bournezeau next to the H1 site,
began as planned at the end of 2020. The budget, estimated at € 22 million, and the schedule
are in line with forecasts. As of the date of the Annual Financial Report, the construction of
the production unit has been completed. Delivery is scheduled for the first half of 2023.

In May 2022, the Company signed a 40-year Temporary Occupation Authorisation (AOT) for
the Grand Port Maritime de Dunkerque in order to locate the H3 plant, which will be built on
the model of the H2 plant. Construction of the H3 plant should begin in the first half of 2024
and the project will be delivered in 2025. This schedule is in line with the ambitions of the
Company to increase cement production capacity by 2026, as disclosed in the Annual Financial
Report. The budget is estimated at €22 million.

The project to build material loading and unloading facilities and storage silos at the port of
La Rochelle is continuing. Work is expected to start in 2024. The investment, in line with the
Company’s development plan, is estimated at € 10 million.

The construction of the Company’s eco-responsible concrete batching plant 4.0 began in
Bournezeau in June 2022. The purpose of this concrete batching plant is to test and develop
new formulations of low-carbon concrete from Hoffmann cements, incorporating recycled
aggregates. The concrete batching plant has been operational since March 2023. Its budget is
€2 million.
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Since June 2022, the Company holds 100% of the share capital of Hoffmann Broyage (whose
corporate name was ABC Broyage until 2 November 2022). On 21 December 2022, Hoffmann
Broyage merged its wholly-owned subsidiary, AB César. Through this acquisition, the Company
integrates an industrial activity that will enable it to grind blast furnace slag, one of the raw
materials used in H-UKR and H-IONA cements. Blast furnace slag is a co-product from the steel
industry that is recycled and then recovered through the production of Hoffmann Green
cements. This acquisition is a strategic opportunity for Hoffmann Green since by in-house slag
processing, the Company will gain independence in the grinding of its raw materials, expand
its sourcing capacity and secure its margins in an inflationary context. The production site of
ABC Broyage (now called Hoffmann Broyage), located in the north of the Dordogne, fits
perfectly into the local logistics scheme of Hoffmann Green as it is located close to both the
port of La Rochelle where slag will be received from the blast furnaces and the H1 and H2
production sites of Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies, located in Bournezeau in the
Vendée region, where Hoffmann cements are produced. The shares of ABC Broyage were
acquired for €1.7 million.
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Silos in the port of HOFFMANN BROYAGE

In terms of human resources, the Company continued to structure itself through the
recruitment of new employees in the technical, development, research and production areas.
In particular, a sales manager, an international developer and an IT manager were recruited.
These resources will support the Company’s future development, particularly commercial and
industrial. At 31 December 2022, the Company had 43 employees compared to 33 at 31
December 2021.
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In line with its ambitious Research and Development and Innovation policy, the Company has
taken new steps in the protection of its intellectual property with the grant of the H-P2A
patent in China.

After four years of physical, chemical and mechanical tests, H-UKR cement benefits from a
Technical Assessment (ATEx of case A) issued in March 2022 by CSTB, the public company that
guarantees the quality and safety of buildings. This assessment covers a very large number of
structures ranging from single-family houses to high-rise buildings for structural applications
(floors, walls, beams, posts, etc.). The design of H-UKR cement-based concrete structures is
carried out in accordance with Eurocode2 and Eurocode8, a calculation reference system
recognised in France and Europe. The Technical Assessment of Products and Materials (ETPM)
of the H-UKR technology has just been enriched and further assesses the durability and quality
of the H-UKR cement by validating the expected useful life of 100 years, thus opening the way
for the use of H-UKR cement-based concrete in civil engineering structures (bridges, tunnels,
etc.). Similarly, this new version of the ETPM introduces new exposure classes (XC1, XC2, XC3,
XC4, XF1) thus allowing the use of H-UKR cement-based concrete for interior and exterior
works. Validated and issued by CSTB, these assessments are in addition to the many approvals
already received by the Company and thus further increase its barriers to entry. These
assessments also demonstrate the momentum created by the signing of the strategic
partnership signed in November 2021, which facilitates exchanges between the two entities.
Hoffmann Green cement is the first clinker-free cement in the world to be validated under
ATEx of case A by CSTB.

The Company is continuing its CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) roadmap. At the beginning
of the year, the Company produced and published a scope 3 carbon assessment based on the
Net Zero Initiative® framework developed by the consulting firm Carbone 4. The Company is
one of the first cement manufacturers to publish its carbon assessment based on the three
scopes.

In addition, the Company’s ESG (Environment Social & Governance) performance was
assessed by two independent players specialising in non-financial ratings. The Company
obtained a score of 65 from Gaia, up 11 points year-on-year. This rating placed the Company
in 1315 place in Gaia Rating's ESG 230 panel and in 23" position among the 78 companies in
the panel with revenue of less than €150 million. At the same time, the Company received a
score of 20.8 from the international firm Sustainalytics, ranking it third of the 115 assessed
companies producing construction materials.

In 2022, the Company also joined the French Tech Green20 class, thus being one of the 20
French gems selected by the French Ministry for the Ecological Transition to participate in the
French Tech Green20 programme. This recognition will enable the Company to benefit from
enhanced visibility, support from various public institutions and organisations, integration into
economic diplomacy, and specific support on greentech issues (connection with ministerial
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and scientific experts to better understand technological issues, mediation with certifying
bodies, etc.).

Lastly, since the end of 2022, the Company has been marketing carbon credits on the
voluntary carbon market according to a methodology validated and published by the certifier
Inuk. In order to move towards carbon neutrality at the global level, companies must maximise
their contribution to the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions. The Company, whose
industrial activity contributes directly to the decarbonisation of the construction sector, has
decided to market its carbon credits for the benefit of companies wishing to contribute to this
goal of global carbon neutrality. These carbon credits correspond to the CO,eq avoided thanks
to the use of 0% clinker cements developed by Hoffmann Green. To date, Hoffmann Green
has 10,000 carbon credits available for sale. As such, Hoffmann Green cements were the
subject of an in-depth study (Bilan Carbone® and Life Cycle Analysis) on all the criteria relating
to the voluntary carbon offsetting market (measurability, additionality, uniqueness,
permanence, etc.) in order to guarantee their eligibility for this mechanism. All of this
certification work was entrusted to Inuk, operator and certifier of carbon contribution. Their
transparent and reliable solution is based in particular on a block-chain traceability system
that guarantees the uniqueness of the contribution that must only be used once and cannot
be sold to avoid feeding a speculative contribution market. Inuk also guarantees that the
methodology used complies with the highest standards in force. The revenue from the carbon
contribution will enable the Company to strengthen the competitiveness of its low-carbon
solutions and thus enable their adoption in the face of more polluting traditional solutions and
to increase funding for R&D for products that are increasingly virtuous for the environment.
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Company outlook and ambitions

In France, the Company aims to accelerate its development by increasing its production
capacity and regional coverage. By 2026, the Company plans to sell 550,000 metric tons of
cement per year through three production sites, generating revenue of around € 120 million
and corresponding to a 3% market share in France.

Internationally, the Company wants to develop through licensing agreements with partners.
The Company’s partners are responsible for financing, building and operating Hoffmann H2-
type units and for producing and marketing Hoffmann cements in their geographical area in
exchange for the payment of royalties to the Company. The Company aims to have four
operational units outside France by 2026, generating revenue of around € 10 million.

The Company expects to be able to reach an EBITDA margin of around 40% by 2026.

In 2023, the Company is targeting the marketing of 24,000 metric tons of cement, i.e. revenue
in excess of €4.5 million.

@ 2026 targets

Revenue> €130 million (€10

+240,000 million internationally)

metric tons EBITDA margin: ~ 40%

3% market share in France entered in the order books
INTERNATIONAL e
Capacity 550,000 metric tons .
Al
of cement produced per year

from 2026

3 production sites in France
24,000t

>12,000t
Positive EBITDA from 10,000t
2024

Positive ROC from 2025 2021 2022 2023 2026 2030

4 international sites under Projectad international Projected production in Production (tons)
licence production France (tons)

These objectives are based on the implementation of a strategic industrial development plan
based on three major areas:

- anindustrial focus with the construction of two new sites in order to rapidly increase
production capacities and build a gradual network across the national territory;

- a commercial focus, in France via the signing of contracts with new partners, and
internationally with the implementation of licensing agreements; and

- aninnovation focus that aims to develop new cement technologies and maintain the
technological lead from which the Company benefits.
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The Company remains attentive to the evolution of the COVID-19 health crisis which could, in
the event of the appearance of a significantly dangerous variant, impact the commercial
activity and production of the “H2” production site and the start of construction of “H3” and
storage silos in the Port de La Rochelle.

In the current context, the Company indicates that the objectives it has set for itself will be
achieved by 2026, namely, in France, to achieve a total production capacity of 550,000 metric
tons of de-carbonised cements per year with the construction of two additional production
(“H2” in the Vendée and “H3” in the Tle-de-France region), representing 3% of the cement
market, and internationally, having four operational Hoffmann Green cement production
units outside France, generating total revenue of around €130 million with an EBITDA margin
of around 40% by 2026

Based on its solid financial position, the Company is confident in the relevance of its business
model and its ability to achieve its objectives, subject, however, to the overall increase in
prices related to the situation in Ukraine, which could have a negative impact on its objectives
(as indicated above in this section as well as in the risk factors included in section 1.1 of the
Annual Financial Report).
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The Company has set up technical and commercial collaboration contracts with companies in
the construction sector (construction companies, companies making precast concrete, ready-
mixed concrete or concrete blocks, materials production and distribution companies).

The Company’s main business partners are presented below:
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Development of the Company’s activities is also supported at European level:

HORIZON 2020

Continuation of the Company’s activities and its future development are closely linked to
effective intellectual property protection and to the supply stability of co-products used by
the Company to produce Hoffmann Green cements.

1.2.1.1. Protection of the Company’s intellectual property

Thanks to the research work by David Hoffmann and his team, the Company has developed
unigue and innovative expertise and technologies. As these technologies are at the heart of
Hoffmann Green cements, the Company has implemented a policy of protecting its intellectual
property through various areas.

1.2.1.1.1. Patents

Patent applications concerning H-P2A and H-EVA technologies are being processed by the
competent bodies. These patents concern cement formulas, accompanied in particular by
variations and recommendations regarding their fields of application and use. The
geographical scope of protection will be as follows:

- H-P2A: France and contracting countries of the PCT (International Patent Cooperation
Treaty), United States and China;

- H-EVA: France, PCT contracting countries, Europe, Hong Kong, United States and
China;

- H-UKR: for the time being, the Company has chosen not to file a patent application
for the H-UKR technology, its third technology. This choice is guided by the Company’s
desire to limit its competitors’ access to essential information concerning this latest
technology. However, the Company has taken preliminary steps with the INPI to
certify and protect the anteriority of the H-UKR technology in the event that a third
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party develops a similar technology. The Company plans to file a patent application
for H-UKR during the 2021 financial year; and

- H-IONA: technology complying with standard NF EN 15743
1.2.1.1.2. Know-how

In addition to patented technologies, the Company has developed unique proprietary know-
how in the manufacture of low-carbon cements in recent years. During the course of the
research, a large amount of data was collected and analysed during thousands of laboratory
tests, making it possible to build up a substantial database of data and results.

Proprietary know-how has also been developed with the development of industrial facilities,
custom-created for the production of Hoffmann Green cements. In this sense, the technical
knowledge relating to operation of the industrial tool is essential to the production of
Hoffmann Green cements and mere access to scientific formulas would not make it possible
to achieve an equivalent result.

The Company has implemented various procedures to protect this proprietary know-how:

- protection of manufacturing secrets: all information used by the Company’s
employees to produce Hoffmann Green cements encoded and only a very limited
number of identified persons can decipher them. Therefore, employees are not privy
to all or part of the manufacturing secrets of Hoffmann Green cements. This coding
system constitutes an additional level of protection;

- IT system: the IT system used by the Company is subject to a very high level of
protection in order to secure data collected by the Company (see Section 1.1.1.4
“Risks related to the management of information systems and cybercrime” in the
Annual Financial Report);

- human resources: the employment contracts of the Company’s employees contain a
discretionary clause relating to the activity of the Company and that of its customers,
under which employees are made aware of confidentiality of information to which
they become privy. The employment contracts of the Company’s employees also
contain a non-compete clause, violation of which entails payment by the employee of
a dissuasive amount of compensation.

The Company is the sole owner of all intellectual property related to its business.

The trademarks, logos and domain names created by the Company in the course of its business
are all protected by the National Institute of Industrial Property (INPI).

1.2.1.2. Supply of co-products used in the manufacture of cement
The three main co-products used to manufacture Hoffmann Green cements, namely blast

furnace slag, flash clay and gypsum / desulfogypsum, are supplied to the Company by various
suppliers.
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In addition, as part of its innovation policy, the Company aims to further expand the number
of co-products used to manufacture new cements, in order to increase the Company’s
resource options. Research is underway into technologies to recover fly ash from biomass.

Since 2014, the Company has grown at a sustained pace with the development of three new
cement-related technologies, and the construction of a first low-carbon cement
manufacturing site in 18 months.

Building on this development, the Company has a head start in meeting future environmental
standards for construction and is a true pioneer in low-carbon cement.

The Company believes that it has a number of competitive advantages and barriers to entry,
as presented below.

1.2.1.3. Major innovations responding to the environmental emergency

The first clinker-free cements, Hoffmann Green cements make a quantifiable contribution
from an environmental and societal point of view. The three technologies H-P2A, H-EVA and
H-UKR are disruptive technologies, alternatives to traditional Portland cement, reducing CO;
emissions sixfold compared to traditional CEM | type Portland cement in an innovative
manufacturing process®. They also offer technical and economic performance superior to
traditional Portland cement.

The Company’s patented technologies constitute barriers to entry for new players wishing to
enter the low-carbon cement market. These barriers are reinforced by the unique skills and
know-how developed by the Company’s teams, both in fundamental research and in the
particularly innovative manufacturing processes.

1.2.1.4. A new 4.0 industrial concept specifically adapted to the manufacture of low-
carbon cements

In November 2018, the Company inaugurated the first clinker-free cement manufacturing site
in the world, at its Bournezeau site in the Vendée region. An innovative and environmentally-
friendly production site, fully adapted to a new product and human safety. This modern vision
of the industry has enabled the Company to join the Investissement d'Avenir programmes in
France and Horizon 2020, the prestigious European programme for research and innovation.

The Bournezeaus site is located at the heart of a true ecosystem of businesses, most of which
are family-owned, some of which have become leaders in their markets. These include
companies such as Cougnaud Construction in modular building, and Soriba in precast
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concrete, Briand Group in steel structures, but also Sodebo or Fleury-Michon in the agri-food
industry, or Bénéteau in boating, etc.

1.2.1.5. Adisruptive business model

The Company has a profitable and sustainable model based on high value-added positioning
founded on the implementation of partnership agreements. At the date of the Annual
Financial Report, the Company is not yet profitable because it is in the development phase.

Each partnership contract is signed for a period of three to five years and gives the co-
contractor exclusivity in one or more areas of application. These contracts include:

- the provision of (upfront) engineering services; and
- cement sales by volume.
In addition, this unique income model is supported by value-creating levers.

The Company benefits from a high value-added positioning, given the technical performance
and productivity gains brought by Hoffmann Green cements. For these reasons, the Company
has positioned itself at a higher price for cement per metric ton than traditional Portland
cement (respectively around €220 per metric ton for Hoffmann Green cements and €140 per
metric ton for traditional Portland CEM | cement °). However, this price differential does not
have a significant impact on the scale of a building and therefore does not represent an
obstacle for customers (around 3% difference, all trades combined, without taking into
account the cost of the constructability bonus). The prices offered by the Company are
contractualised with the Company’s customers through partnership agreements.

In comparison with traditional cement manufacturers, whose capital structure is very large,
construction of the Company’s production sites requires more limited investment
requirements and can be easily duplicated to support the development of its activities.

1.2.1.6. A favourable regulatory framework

In a context where scientists are constantly sounding the alarm and stressing the
environmental emergency, traditional cement manufacturers are under continuous pressure
to reduce the carbon footprint of their activity. This pressure results in particular from
increasingly restrictive regulations, via the reduction in the free allocation of CO ; emission
allowances, the increase in the carbon tax, and the implementation of the 2020 environmental
regulations (these new regulations are described in section 1.6 of the Annual Financial
Report).
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Hoffmann Green decarbonised cements are currently the only industrial solutions enabling a
six-fold reduction in the carbon footprint of cement compared to traditional CEM | type
Portland cement. They are therefore fully in line with future construction standards, giving the
Company a significant competitive advantage over traditional cement manufacturers.

1.2.1.7. Main ongoing and future investments
1.2.1.7.1. Creation of H2 plants in Bournezeau and H3 in the Paris region

As part of its strategy, the Company initiated in December 2020 the construction of a new
“H2” production site, which should be completed during the first half of 2023 in Bournezeau
next to the “H1” site.

During the first half of 2024, the Company should launch the construction of the “H3”
production site at the Port of Dunkerque, on a multimodal platform (river access, rail access,
road access), which should be completed in 2025.

HOFFMANN GREEN
H CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES
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Maximum operation of the three production sites will provide overall production capacity of
550,000 tonnes of cement per year by 2026.

The investment budget for each production site (“H2” and “H3”) is around € 22 million (i.e. a
total investment of around € 45 million):

— two-thirds of the investments will be allocated to industrial process equipment, which
will be amortised over an average period of eight years;

— one-third of the investments will be allocated to real estate, which will be amortised
over an average period of 30 years.

A portion of the funds raised as part of the Company’s IPO will be used to finance “H2” and
IIH3”.

1.3. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

HOFFMANN GREEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES SA (formerly Holding HIB Tech) has been a
French limited company (société anonyme) with a Management Board and a Supervisory
Board since 3 September 2019. It is registered with the La Roche sur Yon Trade and Companies
Register under number 809 705 304 and its registered office is located at La Bretaudiére,
Chaillé-sous-les-Ormeaux, 85310 Rives de |I'Yon.

In 2021, HOFFMANN GREEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES SA absorbed its only wholly-owned
subsidiary, SARL ARGIMMO, which housed the production plant of Bournezeau (85), partly
financed by a real estate lease.

Since June 2022, HOFFMANN GREEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES has held 100% of the share
capital of HOFFMANN BROYAGE (whose corporate name was ABC Broyage before 2 November
2022), a simplified joint-stock company registered in the Périgueux Trade and Companies
Register under number 353 883 648. On 21 December 2022, HOFFMANN BROYAGE absorbed
its wholly-owned subsidiary AB CESAR by way of a merger.

In July 2022, the Company entered into a first partnership in Switzerland with a local
construction company through the creation of a joint venture, HOFFMANN SUISSE.
HOFFMANN SUISSE is 10% owned by HOFFMANN GREEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES and is
majority controlled by the local partner (90%).

1.4. REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND INCOME

The financial information presented in this chapter is taken from the Company's annual
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the
European Union for the 2021 and 2022 financial years. Readers are invited to read this analysis
of the Company's financial position and results for the financial years ended 31 December
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2021 and 31 December 2022, together with the Company's financial statements and the notes
to the financial statements presented in chapter 2 of the Annual Financial Report and any
other financial information included in the Annual Financial Report.

In thousands € 2022 2021 Var.
Revenue 2,219 2,380 -161
Profit (loss) from continuing
operations -9,358 -7,360 -1,998
EBITDA -6,617 -5,228 -1,389
Operating Income -8,254 -7,356 -898
Net finance income -1,111 131 -1,242
Tax 2,626 1,663 963
Net Income -6,739 -5,562 -1,177
Available cash 30,247 56,704 -26,457
Cash investments 11,754 11,750 4
Equity 74,693 81,399 -6,706

Annual results

The Company’s revenue in 2022 was stable compared to its revenue in 2021 (€2.2 million vs
€2.4 million). The decrease in the average selling price per metric ton was offset by the
increase in volumes of + 18.6% (12,010 metric tons in 2022 vs 10,124 metric tons in 2021). In
the second half of 2022, the Company offered more competitive prices for a few targeted and
strategic projects. It should be noted that the marketing of Hoffmann carbon credits began at
the end of 2022 and that the Company generated €26 thousand in revenue.

EBITDA for the 2022 financial year was - €6.6 million compared to - €5.2 million in 2021. The
decrease in EBITDA over one year (- €1.4 million) is explained by the increase in the cost of
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raw materials (-€0.6 million), the multiplication of tests and product development (-0.4
million) as well as the increase in payroll (-€0.4 million). The Company’s headcount increased
from 33 employees at the end of 2021 to 43 employees at the end of 2022 due in particular
to the acquisition of Hoffmann Broyage in June 2022 (4 FTE) and the strengthening of the sales
and technical teams.

Current operating income stands at - €9.4 million. The year-on-year change (- €2.0 million) is
explained by the change in EBITDA and the increase in depreciation and amortisation (- €0.6
million).

Net Income 2022 stands at - €1.1 million. It is explained by the impairment of UCITS linked to
the decline in their market value.

After taking into account a tax income of €2.6 million, the net income for 2022 amounted to -
€6.7 million.

A solid financial position

At 31 December 2022, the Company has a strong balance sheet with shareholders’ equity of
€74.7 million, down €6.7 million due to the net income for the financial year.

Available cash amounted to €30.2 million (and €42.0 million including investments). The
change in cash and cash equivalents over the period (- €26.5 million) is explained by
investment flows (- €18.6 million) mainly related to the construction of the H2 production unit,
the construction of the R&D concrete batching plant, the acquisition of the Company’s head
office in Chaillé-sous-Ormeaux, the acquisition of Hoffmann Broyage and by operating cash
flows (- €6.7 million).

Subject to the approval of the financial statements for the 2022 financial year, it will be
proposed to the shareholders at the next General Meeting to be held on 2 June 2023, to
allocate the loss for the financial year, i.e. -€10,648,868, to the “Retained earnings” account
(in the amount of - €21,831,742) which will accordingly amount to -€32,480,610.

Invoices received and issued but not paid at 31 December 2022 break down as follows:
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Invoices received and issued but not paid at the reporting date of the year for which the term has expired (table provided for in section | of Article D.
441-4)

Article D. 441-1: Invoices received unpaid at the reporting date of the year for Article D. 441-2: Invoices issued unpaid at reporting date of the year for
which the term has expired which the term has expired

4 liwgy || <iliwEy ot o I d 1030 | 31t060 il o |

Wty % days and e ety %0 days and Wz

(Updicatree) days days (1dayandoven)|  (indicative) days days (1dayand oven)
days over days over

(A) Late payment tranches

Number of
invoices 139 31 16 14
concerned

Total amount of
invoices
concerned 2,339,215 5,524 161,369 91 440,047 | 607,031 1,137,421 31,673 10,520
(specify: excl. tax
or incl. tax)

991,790 | 1,033,983

Percentage of
total purchases
for the financial
year (specify:
excl. tax or incl.
tax)

19% 0% 1% 0% 4% 5%

Percentage of
revenue for the
financial year
(specify: excl. tax
or incl. tax)

47% 1% 0% 0% 41% 43%

(B) Invoices excluded from (A) relating to disputed or unrecognised payables and receivables

Number of

oorr] NA NA
invoices

Total amount of
invoices excluded
(specify: excl. tax
or incl. tax)

C) Reference payment terms used (contractual or legal * Article L. 441-6 or Article L. 443-1 of the French Commercial Code)

Contractual deadlines: on date set by supplier’s invoice Contractual deadlines: on date set by HGCT

Payment terms
used to calculate
late payments

1.4.1.1. Dividends and reserves distributed by the Company over the last three financial
years

N/A
1.4.1.2. Distribution policy

It is not planned to initiate a short-term dividend payment policy given the Company’s stage
of development.
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1.5. REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

The regulatory environment in which the Company operates and which may have a significant
impact on its activities is presented below.

15.1.1. The principle of the emissions trading scheme

The emissions trading system is a regulatory tool that facilitates the achievement of CO;
emissions reduction targets. A quota corresponds to the authorisation to emit one ton of CO,.

The European Union Emissions Trading Scheme (EU ETS), set up in 2005, currently covers CO;
emissions for more than 11,000 European industrial sites (in cement, electricity, steel, glass,
paper, refining, heating networks, etc.), including around 900 in France.

The criteria for integration into the EU ETS (categories of activities, production and
combustion output thresholds) are defined by Annex | of Directive 2003/87/EC.

In concrete terms, EU Member States impose a cap on CO; emissions for the 11,000 facilities
concerned by this system, then allocate them the quotas corresponding to this cap. Each year,
the companies subject to the obligation must surrender the number of allowances
corresponding to the number of tonnes of CO, issued the previous year.

Thus, a company that emits less CO; than its initial allocation of allowances can exchange or
resell its remaining unused allowances on the European emission allowance market. The
related revenues can be used, for example to finance investments to control CO, emissions. If
they cannot be sold on the market, a company that benefits from an excess of allowances may
keep them for subsequent years.

Conversely, a company that emits more than its initial allocation of allowances must buy the
missing allowances, this is the so-called “polluter pays” principle.

Quotas are traded between buyers and sellers:
e on marketplaces,
e through a financial intermediary, or
e over the counter.

1.5.1.2. Allocation of free emission allowances

In order to prevent the risk of loss of competitiveness of European companies with regard to
competitors who do not have the same regulatory constraints, the EU authorises a transitional

11 Source: Développement-durable.gouv
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allocation of free allowances for sites whose production is most exposed to international
competition and to the costs of CO, emission allowances.

Thus, each year, relevant French industrial sites receive a certain number of emission
allowances free of charge corresponding to the annual allocation decided under the French
National Quota Allocation Plan (PNAQ).

In 2019, French industrial CO; emissions (78 million metric tons) were 99% covered by free
guota allocations (76.7 million metric tons).

Under the PNAQ, the French production sites of traditional cement manufacturers benefit
from free emission allowance allocations. These free allocations have enabled cement
manufacturers to consolidate a surplus of emission allowances that has continued to increase
since the implementation of the EU ETS. However, for the first time in 2018, the cement
industry received fewer free allowances than its CO, emissions, thus its surplus emission
allowances is no longer increasing.

1.5.1.3. Development prospects

To achieve the EU’s overall CO, emissions reduction target by 2030, the sectors covered by
the EU ETS must reduce their emissions by 43% compared to 2005 levels. In order to increase
the pace of emissions reductions, the revised version of the EU ETS Directive, which will apply
for the period 2021-2030, foresees that the total number of emission allowances will be
reduced by 2.2%. per year from 2021, compared to 1.74% currently.

This revision of the EU ETS will have the effect of reducing the volumes of emission allowances
put on the market by industrial players from 2021.

According to a study by the think tank Carbon Tracker published in 2018 and confirmed by an
Oddo BHF study published in 2021, future reductions in allowances will automatically lead to
a sharp increase in the price of emission allowances on the European market. The price per
ton of CO; already reached € 89.6 on December 8, 2021.

The increase in the price of emission allowances, correlated with the continued decline in free
allowance allocations, is accelerating the transition of the EU and France to a low-carbon
economy.

This regulation has a favourable impact on the Company and its competitive positioning. Given
its low carbon footprint, the Company is not subject to these quotas, unlike traditional cement
manufacturers. Following the EU-ETS reform, the surplus emission allowances available to the
cement industry are expected to decrease over time and when these surpluses are zero,
traditional cement manufacturers will have to purchase CO, emission allowances at
increasingly high prices. The production cost of traditional Portland cement will therefore
increase and negatively impact the results and profitability of traditional cement
manufacturers. In this respect, some cement manufacturers have already passed on price
increases to their customers.
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Established by the Finance Act for 2014 (Act No. 2013-1278 of 29 December 2013), in force
since 1°* April 2014, the carbon component is included in energy taxes, depending on the
amount of CO; emitted by a product (commonly referred to as a “carbon tax”).

Expressed in euros per metric ton of CO,, it is paid by individuals and businesses through
integration it into the final price of gasoline, diesel, fuel oil or natural gas.

The purpose of this tax is to achieve the objectives of the national low-carbon strategy
established in 2015, which aims in particular to reduce CO, emissions by 50% in the building
sector by 2030 and 87% by 2050.

The amount of the carbon tax is steadily increasing in order to encourage consumers to reduce
the use of fossil fuels. Its amount is set each year in the budget.

The Company’s economic model is not affected by the gradual increase in the carbon tax (by
way of illustration, over the period 2014-2019, it increased from € 7 to € 44.6 per metric ton
of CO2, emitted) unlike traditional cement manufacturers. Indeed, the latter pass on the
impact of the carbon tax directly on the selling price of traditional cement, which is therefore
intended to increase in parallel with the amount of the carbon tax. In this sense, this regulation
has a favourable impact on the Company.

The new environmental regulation for new buildings (“ER 2020”) has been in force since 1%
January 2021.

Its major challenge is to significantly reduce the building’s carbon emissions. To this end, it is
based on a gradual transformation of construction techniques, industrial sectors and energy
solutions, in order to control construction costs and ensure the upskilling of professionals.

ER 2020 is ambitious and demanding. It sets progressive targets for CO, emissions per square
metre built.

Unlike traditional Portland cement, Hoffmann Green cements make it possible to obtain the
“Carbon 2” level. To the Company’s knowledge, as of the date of the Annual Financial Report,
there are no other solutions allowing eligibility for the constructability bonus. Given the
carbon footprint of Hoffmann Green cements, this regulation gives the Company a significant
competitive advantage. This regulation has a significant favourable impact on the Company.

The European “Taxonomy” regulation aims to establish a classification of economic activities
to determine those that can be considered “environmentally sustainable” or “green”. The
objective is to redirect investments towards activities favourable to the energy and ecological
transition, in particular those contributing to the fight against global warming. This green
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taxonomy can be used to award “green” labels. It promotes market transparency and the
development of green finance (green bonds, etc.) and sustainable finance. It also makes it
possible to limit green washing (“green washing”).

The “Taxonomy” defines a “green” cement as a cement with a carbon footprint of less than
469 kg of CO; per metric ton of cement produced. All Hoffmann Green cements have a carbon
footprint significantly below this limit, which gives the Company a considerable competitive
advantage in this regard.

1.6. EMPLOYEES

The Company had 43 employees at 31 December 2022 compared to 33 employees at 31
December 2021

1.6.1.1. Operational organisation chart of the Company as at the date of the Annual
Financial Report
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§F
Julien BLANCHARD David HOFFMANN
Président du Directoire Directeur Général et Scientifique
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1.6.1.2.

The Company’s salaried workforce at the end of the year changed as follows:

Number and breakdown of employees

31/12/2022 | 31/12/2021 | 31/12/2020 | 31/12/2019
Executives 20 17 11 8
Supervisors and technicians 19 13 5 4
Employees 3 2 2 2
Apprentices 1 1 3 2
TOTAL 43 33 21 16
1.6.1.3. Employee representation

The election of a Social and Economic Committee (CSE) was organised in the second half of
2020. However, no candidate came forward. Thus, no employee representation system was
in place within the Company at the date of the Annual Financial Report. The next elections will
be held in July 2024.

The Company believes that it has good relations and listens to its employees. No labour
disputes have arisen since the creation of the Company.

At the date of Annual Financial Report, the provisions relating to legal profit-sharing do not
apply to the Company, insofar as it has fewer than 50 employees.

The Company has not set up a company savings plan.

On 16 January 2023, two new free share plans were set up for the benefit of all employees
who joined the Company since 19 January 2022 (Plan No 5), on the one hand, and members
of the Management Committee, extended to the exclusion of David Hoffmann (Plan No 6). At
the date of the Annual Financial Report, the Company has set up six free share plans for its
employees (excluding David Hoffmann). At the date of the Annual Financial Report, 34,306
shares were acquired and 57,084 shares were in the process of being acquired under these
plans.
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At the date of Annual Financial Report, the Company has not implemented any incentive or
profit-sharing mechanisms.

1.7. SHARE CAPITAL

At the date of the Annual Financial Report, the Company’s share capital amounts to
€14,636,693 divided into €14,636,693 shares with a par value of €1 each, all fully subscribed
and paid up.

At the date of the Annual Financial Report, the Company holds 17,162 treasury shares.

N/A

1.8. MAIN SHAREHOLDERS

1.8.1.1. Breakdown of share capital and voting rights as of the Annual Financial Report

The shareholding table below shows the breakdown of the share capital and voting rights of
the Company' historical shareholders and shareholders holding more than 5% of the share
capital at the date of the Annual Financial Report:
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- N -
Number of shares % capital Th?orelecal % tI?eor?tlcaI
voting rights voting rights
Julien BLANCHARD 2,740,028 18.72% 5,455,056 23.10%
Gillaizeau Terracotta (1) 1,867,961 12.76% 3,709,804 15.71%
Julien BLANCHARD 4,607,989 31.48% 9,164,860 38.81%
David HOFFMANN 2,715,028 18.55% 5,430,056 23.00%
Hoffmann Capital Holding (2) 27,900 0.19% 55,800 0.24%
David HOFFMANN 2,742,928 18.74% 5,485,856 23.23%
Julien BLANCHARD + David o o
HOFFMANN 7,350,917 50.22% 14,650,716 62.04%
ELUDOM (formerly o o
COUGNAUD SA) (3) 848,218 >-80% 1,656,436 7.01%
EMPLOYEES 34,306 0.23% 32,306 0.15%
Treasury shares 17,162 0.12% 17,162 0.07%
OTHER SHAREHOLDERS 6,386,090 43.63% 7,255,113 30.73%
14,636,693 100,00% 23,613,733 100,00%

(1) Simplified joint-stock company with share capital of € 2,611,374, whose registered office is located at La
Bretaudiére, Chaillé-sous-les-Ormeaux, 85310 Rives de I'Yon, registered with the RCS of La Roche-sur-
Yon under the number 546 150 061. Julien Blanchard holds 57.52% of JB Finance, which holds 87.90%

of Gillaizeau Terre Cuite.

(2) A non-profit company with share capital of € 19,760, whose registered office is located at La Bretaudiére,
Chaillé-sous-les-Ormeaux, 85310 Rives de I'Yon, registered with the RCS of La Roche-sur-Yon under
number 825 008 774. David Hoffmann holds 99.9% of Hoffmann Capital Holding.

(3) Simplified joint-stock company with capital of € 4,000,000, whose registered office is at Mouilleron Le
Captif (85000) - CS 40028, registered in the Trade and Companies Register of La Roche-sur-Yon under
number 380 730 721.

Julien Blanchard, Gillaizeau Terre Cuite, David Hoffmann and Hoffmann Capital Holding act
together in respect of the Company.

- Each member of the Supervisory Board and Management Board must own, directly or
indirectly, or become the owner within three months of being appointed of at least
1,000 shares in the Company (this condition does not apply to independent members
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of the Supervisory Board such as Philippe Duval, Alessandra Gaudio and Hervé
Montjotin), in accordance with Article 12 of the Articles of Association. At the date of
the Annual Financial Report, Julien Blanchard holds 4,607,989 shares in the Company
directly and indirectly (via the company Gillaizeau Terre Cuite);

- David Hoffmann holds 2,742,928 Company shares directly and indirectly (via
Hoffmann Capital);

- Eric Cougnaud holds 848,218 Company shares indirectly (via ELUDOM);

- Mrs Isabelle Mommessin directly holds 459,963 Company shares;

- Thierry Didelon holds 251,100 Company shares indirectly (via the company SCP Ardi);
- Gil Briand holds 172,235 Company shares indirectly (via Hestia);

- Alessandra Gaudio holds 2,758 Company shares;

- Hervé Montjotin holds 4,542 Company shares.

The voting rights attached to the Company’s shares are proportional to the portion of the
share capital they represent and each share gives the right to one vote.

However, in accordance with Article 9 of the Company’s Articles of Association, double the
voting rights of other shares, in view of the percentage of the share capital they represent, is
applicable to all fully paid-up shares for which proof of registration in the name of the same
shareholder for at least two years is provided.

As at the date of the Annual Financial Report, Julien Blanchard and David Hoffmann act in
concert with respect to the Company (the “Concert”) and jointly control the Company within
the meaning of Article L. 233-3 of the French Commercial Code.

Julien Blanchard holds:

- directly: 18.72% of the share capital and 23.12% of the voting rights of the Company;
and

- indirectly: 12.76% of the share capital and 15.72% of the voting rights of the Company,
via Gillaizeau Terre Cuite, itself 87.90% owned by J.B. Finance, itself 57.52% owned by
Julien Blanchard,

amounting to a total direct and indirect holding of 31.48% of the share capital and 38.84% of
the voting rights of the Company.
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David Hoffmann holds:

- directly: 18.55% of the share capital and 23.01% of the voting rights of the Company;
and

indirectly: 0.19% of the Company’s share capital and 0.24% of the voting rights, via
Hoffmann Capital Holding, itself 99.9% owned by David Hoffmann,

amounting to a total direct and indirect holding of 18.74% of the share capital and 23.25% of
the voting rights of the Company.
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. A

2. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2.1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED UNDER IFRS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2022

HOFFMANN GREEN CEMENT
TECHNOLOGIES

IFRS financial statements 2022 and 2021
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1. Statement of financial position

ASBETS [in thousands of eusos)

Assets MNotes 3171272022 31/12/2021
Inmangible zzsets 6.7.1 6,750 5,275
Property, plant and equipment 6.7.2 40,370 20434
Orther finaneial assets 6.7.3 10,664 11,634
Orther non-current asssts 6.7.4 35 45
Dreferred tax assets 6.7.5 9378 7,257
Total non-current assets 67,397 30,696
Inventones and work-in-progress 6.7.6 4330 2,736
Trade receivables 6.7.7 2319 2,244
Other current assets 6.7.7 2,852 3,445
Corgent tax zssets 6.10.1 14 13
Cazh and cazh equovalents 6.7.8 30,247 58,704
Total current assets 39,784 65,160
TOTAL ASSETS 107,581 115,856

The notes form an integral part of the annual financial statements.
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LIABILITIE® ian thowsands of euros)

LIABILITIES Motes 31/12,72022 31/12,/,2021
Share capital 5 and 6.7.9 14,635 14,602
Share premisms 3 32,693 82,733
Orther comprehenzve income items 3 4 2
Conzolidated reserves attributabls to _ I -
5 -15.905 -10,376
owners of the parent : i
Conszclidated income attrbutable to - - .-
3 -6,73%9 -5.562
owners of the parent
Equity attributable to owmers of the 5 74,693 51,390
parent
Consolidated reserves — non-controlling -
intesests .
Consolidated income — non-controlling 5
interests
Equity attnbutable to non-controlhing -
interasts .
Total equity 74,693 31,399
Borrowings and financial debt 6.7.10 19,605 21,196
Pm.nm.nns for retirement banefic 6712 16 3
oblizations
Orther long-term proTisions
Other non-current hzbhilities 6.7.15 3,082 2,630
Deferred tax hahilities 6.7.1% 207
Total non-current habihnes 22,01 23,908
Borrowings and finzncal debt 6.7.10 4018 3701
Trade pavables 6.7.15 5857 5,808
Other current Labibibes 6.7.15 1,502 1.042
Corent tax Lahilities 6.10.1
Total current habibities 10,077 10,550
TOTAL LIABILITIES 107,681 115,836

The notes form an integral part of the annual financial statements.

-59-



CATALYST OF

CARBON TRANSITION

2. Income statement

In thouzands of euros

Notes /12702 312200
REVENUE .81 2,219 2,380
Other operating ncome 38 85
Purchzzes consumed 6.8.2 -2,822 -2,130
Emploves benefit: expenze 6.3.3 -2.19%9 -2,154
External expenzes 6.8.4 -4.232 -3,607
Taxes and dutes -107 -7
Deepreciation charge 6.7.1and 6.7.2 -2.332 -2,113
L .. N €74 and -

Appropriztions ‘reversals of provisions and impairments P -183 -14
Chanpe in ventores of work in progres: and finished goods 133 1
Other recurting operating income and expenzes 6.8.5 434 283
PROFIT (LOSE) FROM CONTINUING g a5 K
OPERATIONE 3338 7,360
Other operating income and expenzes 6.3.6 1104 4
OPERATIING INCOME -3,254 -7,356
Czzh and cazh equivalents 499 3
Gros: bomowing cost -1.510 -39a
Net borrowing cost 6.8.7 -1,111 131
Other financizl ineome znd expenzes 6.3.7 o o
Income tax expenze 6.10.1 2,526 1,663
CONZOLIDATED NET INCOME -6,739 -3,362
Oromers of the parent -5,73%9 -3,362
Zhare of non-contoling interests

BAZIC WET INCOME FER SHARE 6425 -0.460% -0.4066
DILUTED EARMINGE PER SHARE 6.4.23 -0.4609 -0.4066

The notes form an integral part of the annual financisl statements.
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3. Comprehensive income items

In thouzands of euros

31/12/ 2022

31/12/2021

FROFIT FOR THE FERIOD

-5,730

-5,562

Items recyclable to the income statement

Tranzlation differences

Bevaluation of inancial aszets

Tax on items recopnized directly in other comprehensive mcome

Items not recyclable to the income statement

Tax on items recopnized directly in other comprehensive mcome
Actuaral differences

Income and expenses recognized divectly in other zive income

-1

-1

OTHEER COMPREHENMEIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

COMPREHENEIVE INCOME FOR THE FPERIOD

6,735

Cromers of the parent
Zhare of non-contrelling interests

The notes form an integral part of the annual financial staterments.

-61-

£735



CATALYST OF

CARBON TRANSITION

4. Cash flow statement
In thousands of euros

Notes 31/12/2022 31/12/2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OFPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income 2 -6,739 -5,562
Net depreciation, isatiom 2nd provisi 671212 2,348 2,132
Reverszls of grants 683 -274 -150
Gains and losses on di.sposals 691 i
Expenses without cash mpact (Skare-based parnents) 42 342
Income with wo mapact cu cash flow (reversal of badwall) -1,075
Cash flow after net borrowing cost and tax -5,496 -3,069
Net bo:zcn.»'ing aost 687 1,11t -13t
income tax expense (including deferred tax) 692 -2,626 -1,653
Cash flow from operations before cost of net borrowing cost and tax -7,012 -4,862
Tax paid 6.9.3 0 -7
Change in kang capital requi
- Othey nop-cuvrent assets 674 11 178
- Inventories 504 -1,330 2,711
- Customers 693 162 -1,799
- Othey assets (excludi z loans uwlé : 696 832 -473
- Othey nop-current habilitss 6.7.15 Z 935
- Supplers 6.9.7 -102 1,408
- Other current Eabilities 6.9.8 452 634
Total 237 4,777
Net cash from operating activities -6,774 -6,647
CASH FLOWSE FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of now 2szats 500 -18,118 11,691
Disposals of non-curvent 2ssets 6.9.10 108
Change in loans and advances granted 69.11 -13 -1,499
New socpes of ABC BROYAGE and AB CESAR & -624
Net cash flow from investing activities -1B,649 -13,390
CASH FLOWE FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Farent company capital increase 5 22,300
Es;:enus ralatad to the IFO 6912 -2 -939
Treasury shares 5 45 -1t
Boxowings 6.9.13 2,733 11,186
Rzpa}mmts of bom?:.mgs 6914 -3,716 -2,242
Net borxoing cost 6.9.15 -52 19
Net cash from (used in) financing activities -1,054 30,472
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -26,457 10,436
Opening c2sh position 678 35,704 46,258
Closing cask and cash equivalents 6.78 20,247 56,704
Change in cash and cash equivalents -26,457 10,436

" Excluding new leases and operating leases for €361 thousand at 31/12/2022 and €161 thousand at 31/12/2021.
¥ price paid -€1,636 thousand + cash acquired + €1,072 thousand = -€624 thousand.

The notes form an integzal part of the annval financial statements.
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5. Table of change in equity

In thowsznd: of euros

Other Frofit MNon-
cas.h:t:l Fremdumes | comprehensive | Reserves ('.In:]:]jt.ﬁm' :;:i contralling E;zutf
income items pericd - interests -

Az 31 December 2020 13,602 61,952 -2 -4,791 -6,119 64,643 54,643

Impact of chanze in 1AS 10 method iz 1z 1z
Ar 31 December 2020 after change in method 13,602 61,952 -2 -4, 776 -6,119 64,655 64,655
Movennents:
Income appropdation M-1 2 5,121 G119
Dtividemds paid to shareholders of the parent
compRET
Treasury shares -9 -1e -9
Acnural dffarences 2 z 2
share-based parments 24z 342 342
Capatal increase 1,000 21,300 22,300 22,300
Allooation of IPC costs net of corporate tax -TiR -Tig -Tig
Consolidated income -5,562 -5,3482 -5,3482
Az 31 Decamber 2021 14,602 22,733 2 -10,376 -5,562 E1,390 81,399
Movennents:
Inpome approprxton BN-1 -2 -3,540 3,362
Dtividemds paid to shareholders of the parent
compRET
Treasury shares -1t -1t -1t
Acnural dffarences 4 4 4
Share-based parments 43 43 43
Capital increase (AGA) 3z -32
Allocation of IPC costs net of corporate tax -3 -z 2
Consolidated income 6,738 -5,730 5,738
Ar 31 Decamber 2022 14,635 22,698 4 -15,905 -6,739 74,693 74,693

The notes form an integral part of the annval Enancial sttements.

The premivms st 31 December 2022 ace due to a succession of events:

- ot June 30, 2017, as part of the merger between HGCT (formerdy HOLDING HJE TECH)
and ARGIWEST, = mergar premiven of €500 thousand and a premiom in the amouat of €125
thousand for loss of retroactmty was recognised;

- in 2018, the soceessive capital increases carried out in HGCT (focmedy HOLDING HJE
TECH) resulted in issue premiums totalling €2,118 thousand incorporated ato the share
capitzl in the amount of €2,113 thousand;
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- the merger of HGCT (formesdy HOLDING HJE TECH) and HGCT on 28 June 2019,
generated a capital increase of €233 thousand accompanied by a mesger preminm of €2,451
thousand;

- on 17 Oetober 2019, conversion of bonds into shares as part of the TPO resulted in a capstal

increaze of €244 thousand accomparced by an zzsue premaom of €17,5536 thouzand;

- the successive capital ncreazes of 153 October 209 and 12 November 2019 i relation to the
company's [PO amountng to €783 thousand in total, generated a new :zsue premmum of
£55,602 thousand, to which the IPO expenses net of corporate tax m the amount of €3,554
thousand were charged;

- on 18 November 2019, HGCT carried out 2 new capital increase by allocating = portion of
the 1=sue premiom, in the smount of €10,202 thousand;

- on 30 November 2021, HGCT again requested the financisl markets and carried out a capital
increaze in the amount of €1,000 thousand, together with an issue presmam of €21,300
thousand. expenses related to this capital increzze net of cozpocate tax for an amount of €719

- ot 4 and 13 Jenuary 2022 HGCT carred out two successive caprtal increases as part of the
zettlement of the two free share allocation plans, carved out by deduction from the izsue
premium, for 3 total amonnt of €32 thouwsand;

- dumng the 2022 fmancial vear, additional costs related to the IPO of the prewiouws financial
vesr were charged in the amount of €2 thousand net of corporation tax.

O 4 January 2021 and 13 Janvary 2022 the Management Board decided to zllocate free Company
shares to emplovess subject to the following conditions:

- Plan 3: 5,665 shares;

- Plan 4: 14,443 zhaves.

The shares will only vest after 2 vesting peciod ending on 4 January 2023 (Plan 3) and 158 January 2025
(FPlan 4.

These shares must be retzined and may not be disposed of by the beneficiaries untl one vear after the
vesting perod.

The free share sllocstion plens therefore relate to 20,108 shares to be issued as part of one or more
capital increases or through the buvback of existing shases by the Company.

In sccordance with the prowvisions of IFES 2, emplovee compensstion items settled in equity
instruments are recognised in the income statement under “Personnel expenzes™, with an offsething
entyy i equity.

For free share allocation plans, the totzl expensze is measored on the allocation date taking into account
2ll the specific conditions likely to have an impect on the fair value, and distributed on a strasght-line
basiz over the vesting period.

Flan= INo. 1 and Mo, 2, both of which expired in Janwary 2022, and for which the acheal expense had
been tzken into account at 31 December 2021, had no impact on the net income for the finaneial year.
As of 31 December 2022, the actuzl settlement of plan 3 1= taken into zccount, bonging the final
expenses, including emplover contabutions, to €25 thousand. Deducting the expenze of €51 thousand
that had been reported in 2021 net income, the Group recorded meome of €26 thouwsand justifred by
the decresze in the share price between the grant date of the plan and the final completion of the plan,
and to 2 leszer extent, by the departure of certain emplovess dusing the financial vear.
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With regard to Plan no. 4, taking into account the departures of emplovees since the beginning of the
vear, it would result in the allocation of 8,518 shares out of the 14,443 chares intially planned. For this
purpose, @ probabidity of presence, at the acquissttion date, of 72%% was used, based on the proportion
of departures recorded over the penod from 18 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 Once these
zzsumptions have been recogmized, the expense related to plan 4 amounts to €77 thouwsand for thas
financial year.

Treasury shares are rectated in zccordznce with Note §.7.9.
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6. Notes to the financial statements IFRS

The information below constitutes the notes to the IFR2 financizl statements and iz an integral past
of the financial statements presented for the finsncisl vears ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021. Each of these fizcal vears has 2 duration of 12 months covering the period from 1
January to 31 Decamber.

In all the financsl statements and notes, the amounts are indicated in thousands of eusos (€ thousand),
vriless otherwise indicated, and differences of T €1 thousand ace due to rounding.

6.1. Presentation of the Company and important events

6.1.1. Information on the Company and its actvity

HOFFMANN GEEEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES i= 2 public limited company (54) with =
hlanagement Board and a Supernizory Board.

The finzncizl staternents are prepared in accordance with IFRE guidelines and cover a 12-month
period from 1 Jammary to 31 December.

Fegistered office: 6 Lz Bretaudiére — Chaillé-Sous-Les-Ormezun — Erves de I'Yon (835317), France.
Trade and Companies Register number: 809 705 304

HOFFMANN GREEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES has developed an innovation that involves
changing the actual compostion of the cement to achieve 2 much smaller cerbon footprint than

traditionz] “Postland”™ cement.

HOFFMANN GFEEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES zad s subsidiary is hereinafter reforred to
2= the “Company™ or the “Gronp™.
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6.1.2. Significant events in financial yvear 2022

Free share allocation plans were approved by the Management Board on 13 January 2020, 4 January
2021 end 18 Jamsary 2022, Two of the four plans signed (Plans 1 and ) expired on 4 January and 13
Jzauary 2022; emplover contributions had been fully provisioned st 31 Decembar 2021. These plans
therefore have no impact on the net income for the vear. The other two plans mature on 4 January
2023 (Plan No. 3) and 18 Janwary 2025 (Plan Mo, 4). These plans have been recorded in accordance
with JFRE 2.

To develop its sctivities znd increase production volumes, the Company decided to build 2 new plant
named HZ, bazsed :n Bournezean, near the H1 plant €21.5 million in expenses were comeutted at 31
December 2022 acheding €3.9 million for this financial vear). These expenses are recorded under
nof-cucrent assets in progress. The plant is scheduled for commissioning in the firsthalf of the 2023
financial year.

On 28 Jone 2022, HOFFMAN GEEEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES took coatrol of 2AS ABC
EBROYAGE, renamed HOFFMMANN BROYTAGE, which itzelf owned SARL AE CESAR On 14
MNovember 2022, HOFFMANN EBEEOYAGE absorbed AE CESAR with setroactive tax and
sccounting effect from 1 Jamuary 2022 HOFFAMANDN BROYAGE is incloded in the scope of
consolidation as of 28 June 2022 on the basis of the position 2= of the szme date. The shares were
zequired for €1.696 thouzand, in Ene with the walue of shareholders” equity. An zppraisal was
commuissioned in the valuation of real estate assets, which revealed 2 real estate capitsl gain of €1,461
thousand, of which €69 thousand on the ground. After taking into account the deferred taxes on thas
capital gain this transaction generated badwill of €1.075 thousand. The latter is recognized in non-
racurring meome durmng the financial vear.

The IFRS financizl statements mclude the parent company HOFFLANN GREEN CEMENT
TECHNOLOGIES and its sobsidiary HOFFMANN BROYAGE.

In July 2022, the Company entered mto a first parinership m Switzerlend with 2 local construction

company theough the czeation of a2 joint venture. This Swiss compsny, majorty-conteolled by the
partner, 15 the Company’s excluzive heenses m Sontzerland.
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6.2. Assessment of nsk factors

The Group may be exposed to different types of fnancial risk: market risk, credit risk Lguidity risk,
foreimn emchange nik and interest zate mzk Where appropriate, the Group implements smple
measiures proporbionate to its size to auniruse the potentially adverse effects of these risks on financial
performance. The Company’s policy is not to subscribe to finencisl instruments for speculative

puposes.
# Credit risk

Credit gisk is the r:zk of finanmal loss for the Company in the event that = customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet 5ts contractnal obkgations.

The Company is not exposed to 2 sigrificant credit risk, which is mainly concentrated on trade
recervzbles. The net carrying amount of receivables recognized reflects the value of net cash flows
recerveble estmated by management, bazed on the mformation at the reporting date.

With regzrd to trade recervzhblez, the Company performs regular aszeszments mternally on the
customer credit risk and the financial position of itz costomers.

* Liguidity risk
The Company’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to €30,247 thousand at 31 December 2022,
Available cash inchades {7) bank sccounts and () investment zecounts. The Company has €22 4 milion
it1 highly lquid short-term cash investments (term deposits) that are easily conmrertible with a matority
of less than three months into a known amount of cash and whose value iz not exposed to foctuation

rizks.

The Company iz not exposed to a bquidity risk resulting from the potential implamentation of eary
repavment clanzes on bank loans.

The Company has carried out a specific review of itz hgudity risk and considers that it 1= in a position
to meet its future maturties over 2 period of 12 months.

* Foreign exchange risk

The Company’s strategy :s to favour the euro as the currency when entering into contracts. The
Company iz therefore not cozrently subject to foreign exchange nsk.

# Interest rate msk

At 31 December 2022, the Compeny’s financial debts were not subject to interest rate nck.
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6.3. Events after the reporting period

O 16 Jammary 2023, two new free share plans were set up. At the date of the Annual Financial Beport,
the Company has zet up four free share plans for itz emplovees (excluding Diavid Hoffmann). At the
date of the Annval Finaneizl Feport, 34,306 zhares were acquired and 53,388 shares were in the
process of beng acquired under these plans.

6.4. Accounting policies, rules and methods

The financial statements zre preseated in thousands of euros ualess otherwise indicated. Founding 1=
zpphed when czleulating certain financral data and other mformation contzined in these financial
statements. Az 2 resolt, the fisures shown 2= totals in some tables mav not be the exact sum of the

figures preceding them.

6.4.1. Declaration of compliance

The Company prepared its finzncial statements which wese zpproved by the Manzgement Board on
24 March 2023, 1n accordance with the standards and interpretations publzhed by the International
Accounting Standards Boards [TASE) and adopted by the Evropean Usion at the date of preparstion
of the financial statements, and presented in comparson with the 2021 finsncial year prepared
zecording to the same sccounting basis.

Thi=z framevwork, available ot the Euwropean Commission website
ihttp:/ /ec enzopa en/internal_market/accounting fias_frhtm), incluodes internstionzl accounting
standards (IAS — International Accounting Standzrds and IFES — International Financizl BEeposting
Standards), the interpretations of the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and the IFRIC -
International Financizl Interpretations Commuttes.

The general principles, accounting policies and options used by the Company are described below.

6.4.2. Principles of preparation of the financial statements
The Company’s IFRS financial statements have been prepared accosding to the historical cost
principle with the exception of certsin categomes of assets and habilibes in accordance with the
provizions laid down by IFRES: emploves benefits measured vaing the projected vt credit method,
borrowings and financial habilities measured vang the amortized cost method (see MNote 6.11.3).
6.4.3. Business continuity

The going concern prnciple has been adopted by the Execotive Board.
6.4.4. Accounting policies

The zccounting principles vsed are identicel to those used for the preparation of the sannal IFRS
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 Dlecember 2021, except for the application of the
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follownng new standards, smendments to standard: and interpretations adopted by the Eoropesn
Union and whech are mandatory for the Compeny from 1 January 2022,

Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations applicable from the financial year
besinning on 1 January 2022

Amendments to LAS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

Amendments to LAS 37 — Onerous contracts — Contract fulfilment costs

Amendments to IFEE 3 — Beference to the conceptoal framework

Anmual mmprovements (2018-2020 cyele) — Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-
Z0Z0 evcle (3tandards concerned: IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and LAS 41)

These amendments to standards have no mmpact on the Company’s annmal financial statements.

Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations published but not applied in
advance by the Company:

¢ Amendments to TAS 1 and the IFRES 2 Becommended practices — Disclosure of accounting
poboies

¢  Amendments to TAS 8 — Definition of accounting estimates

¢  Amendments to IAS 12— Deferred tax related to assets and habiities ansmng from = single
tramsaction

# IFES 17— Insurance contracts

& Amendments to IFEE 17 — Amendments to IFES 17

¢ Amendments to IFRS 17 — First-tme adoption of IFES 17 and IFES 9 — Comparative
wiformation

Thase zmendments to standards have no :mpact on the Company’s annual financisl statements.

6.4.5. Consolidation method

The Company applies IFRS 10, “Consolidated Financizl Statements™, IFRS 11, “Joint Arrangements™
and IFRS 12, “Dhzclosure of Interests in Other Entities™.

IFES 10, which deals with the recogmtbon of consclidated financial statements, presents a single
consohdation model that :dentifies control as the enterion to be met in order to consobdate an entsty.
An investor exercizes control over an wivestee, of it has power over that entity, of it iz exposed to the
ranigble retuens of the investes, or :f it has rights to those vanahle returns by mirtue of its rolrement
i1 that entity, and whether it has the zbility to use its power over the entity to affect the amount of
those zeturns.

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Company exercises control.
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6.4.6. Use of judgments and estimates affecting assets and habilities

The Company’s management regularly reviews its estimates and zszessments on the basis of its past

expenence, as well as various other factors deemed rezzonable n mew of the curcumstances. These
form the basis for its asseszment of the carrmng amount of items of come 2nd expenzes and assets
and lshilities. These estimates have an impact on the zmouat of income and expenses and on the
valzes of zssets and Habilities. The actizl amounts may subzequently prove differeat from the
estimates uzed

The main items that reqoire estimates made at the reporting date based on zssumptions shout futuze
changes and for which there is & significant risk of material change in their value, as recorded 0 the
statement of financial position the reporting date, relste to:

valuation of mtangible azsets related to the development and valuation of the mdustrsl process
(see MNotes 6.6 and 6.7.1);

inventory valuation (see Motes 6.£.11 and 6.7.6);

mezsurement of provisions for retirement benefit obligations (see Notes 6.4.15 and 6.7.12);
provizons for expenses (see MNotes 6.4.10 and 6.7.13);

recognition of deferred tax assets (see MNotes 6.4.17 and 6.7.3);

gszessment of the lease term and the sssessment of rates for the applicaton of IFES 16 on
leases (zee INotes 6.4.20, 6.7.1 and 6.7.2);
the research tax credit (see note 6.4.1%).

6.4.7. Breakdown of current/ non-current assets and labilities

In accordance with IAS 1, the Company prezents itz assets and Labilities by distinguzhing betwean

current and aon-corrent items:

the aszetz and habikties constituting the wodking capital requirement included in the nosmal
operating cvcle of the activity in question are classified a5 corrent;

frxed azsets are clazsified 25 non-cocrent;

fenanicial sssets are beoken down into cucrent and nos-cucrent;

provizions recogrized as habdities withen the nosmal operating evecle of the activity i1 question
gnd the portion of other prowisions due i less than one vear are classified as cucrent
Provrizions that do niot meet these coteria are clas=ified as non-corrent habdties;

financial debts that must be settled within 12 months after the reporting date of the financial
vear are clazsified a5 current. Conversely, the portion of financal debt maturing in more than
12 months i1z classified 2= non-current liahilites;

deferred taxes are presented in their entirety a5 non-cucrent assets and Labdities.
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6.4.5. Intangible assets
Intanigible aszets mainly comprize development costs, the raluation of goodwnll, ERTF and CFRLL

In sccordance with TAS 38, development costs are initially measured at cost and then amortized over
their estimated usefisl Efe.

Development costz are mainly costs incuered to develop innovative technologies, called H-PZA, H-
EVA, H-UEFR and H-IONA.

Development costs are capitalized, insofar as the =ix coteria defined by IAS 38 are met:
- technical feasibdity for commizsioring or sale;
- intention to complete and wze or sell it
- zhility to use or sell if;
- likely economic benefits;
- availabilbity of resousces to complete the development and use or sell;
- 2hility to reliably aszezs expenses related to different projects.

Capitalised development costs are costs directly attnbutable to a technology, as they result from the
monitoring of costs by technology. The share of the research tax credit related to capitalized costs i
restated under other ourrent/ non-cusrent liahidities.

The implementation of IAS 23 Interest on bozrowings did not result in the inclesion of interest in
development costs.

The Company regularly analyses compliance with the activation criteriz. These costs are retained 2=
azsets as long a: the Company getain: most of the benefits and risks related to the technologes
developed, and in particular when the Company retzins the intellectual property and has granted z
temporary dght to use and /o exploit the results of the development phases.

Cazpitalized costs are amortised on a straight-line baszizs over the usefil Life expected by the Company,
fe 2 period of ten years. This duration takes into consideration the technologicsl brezkthrough that
the process represents.

Intangble zssets in progress amount to €215 thousand = relation to the caprtalisation of expenszes
relating to the development of new technology.

Intangble assets also comprise goodwill resulting from the azbsorption of ARGIWEST by
HOFFMANN GREEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES, representative of the valvation of the
industrial process.

This goodwill is tested for impairmant in accordance with the proceduses defined in Note 6.6
Lastly, intangible azsets include ERF and CRLL which are amortized over eight years.

Fight-of-use assets recognized in accordance with IFRS 16 are amortsed over the estimated term of
the lezse, ie seven years.

-72-



CATALYST OF

CARBON TRANSITION

6.4.9. Properny, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment mainly correspond to land and buildings, generzl mstallabons and
fiztures, equipment and tooling, transpost, office and IT eguipment, zad fommitore. In sccordance with
IAS 16 and IFES 14, thev are valued at cost and amortized over their estimated wzeful bfe at acquisition
and reviewed annually.

Components have been :dentified for the property complex. Each component has been depreciated
over an appropeiate veefinl life:

structaral work
framework framework
facade

joinery

electricity,/ plombing

axr conditoreng heating
general installations
fxtuzes

40 years;
40 years;
30 vears;
25 yaars;
20 vears;
20 years;
15 years;

15 vears,

For other property, plant and equipment, the deprectation penicds applied are as follows:

facalities
technical mstallatons

inndustrial equpment and tools

general installations, fixtares and fittings

trensport equipment
1T equipment
furtshare

five to exght vears;
one to tetl vears;
three to five vears;
five to 15 years;
five vears;

two to five years;

theee to five vearss.

Depreciation schedules and residual values, if they exist, are remewed sach year.

Right-of-use assets recognized as assets in accordance with IFES 16 are amortised over the leize term:

buildings

industrial equapment
trensport equipment
office & IT equipment

-73 -

two to ten vears;
five vears;
three to four years;

four and five vears.



CATALYST OF

CARBON TRANSITION

6.4.10. Monitoring the value of non-current assats (excloding financial assets)

MNon-depreciable fized assets arge tested for impairment each year, or more frequently if internal oz
external events or circumstances indicate that 2 reduction in value may have ocourred.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in
nze.

The value in use of assets, to which independent cach flows can be attached, i determined according
to the following prnciples:
- cash flows are derived from projected results over five to six vears and then extrapolated to
nfinity. They are prepared by the Company’s menzgement and allow the celeulation of an
explicit value to which a ternunal valoe 1= edded (dizcounting of cazh flows to mfinety);

- the discount rate 1z determined on the basis of the weighted average cost of capital
In order to deternune the velue in use, intangible end tangible assets, to whech it is not possible to
directly relate independent cash flows, are grouped within the Cash Generating Unit (CGT). to whach

they beloag. The recoverable amount of the CGU iz determined by the discounted cash flow method
(DCF) according to the same principles as those described shove.

The recoverabls amount of the cash-generating urit determined in this war is then compared with the
carrying amount of its non-cuerent assets in the consobdated statement of financisl position.

Impairment losses are recogmized in the income statemnent when it sppears that the carrying amount
of an asset 15 sigraficantly hegher than its recoverable amount.

The Company has a single CGU corresponding to its only operating segment as per its business model.
As a resnlt, impairment tests are performed on the basis of this single CGT.
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6.4.11. Inventories

Iaventosies zre recognised at cost oo 2t their net zealisable value, whichewver is lower. The net realizable
walue represents the estimated selling price under normal operating conditions, less marketing costs.

The zequisiion costs of inventogies include the purzchzsze price, customs dubies and other tazes,
excluding tazes that may subsequently be recovered by the entity from the tax authonties, 2z well 2z
transport, handkng and other costs. Costs directly attebutable to the cost of raw materals, goods,
work in progress and finished products. Trade discounts, rebates, cazh discounts and other similar

items are deducted to determine acquisition costs.
Inventories are valued wsing the weighted sverage cost method.

An imparment of inventories egual to the difference between the gros: value determined accosding
to the methods indicated asbove and the current market price or reshsshle value less proportional
selling costs, 1= taken mto sccount when this gross value is grester than the other term stated.

6.4.12. Trade and other receivables
Trade zand other receivables are measured at amortized cost less zny impairment losses.

Management regulasly reviews and assesses the recoverable amount of trade recemables.

When determining whether credit rizk has increased signaficantly since inatial recognstion and making
estimates of expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that
czn be obtzined without undue cost or effort This includes guantitative and qualitative information

and analryzes, based on the Group’s historiczl experence and an informed credit aszeszment, as well
az forward-looking information.

Tha Group has sno recerzbles incorporabing a significant financial component. Conseguently,
zpphcation of the expected loss principle does not generate a significant impact for the Group.
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6.4.13. Financial assets and habilities

Financyal assets

The measurement and recognition of finzncial aszets depend on their classification in the statement
of finanecial position, 1 accordence with the provisions of IFES -

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: These zssets are measured at fair value. et
profits and losses, mcluding interest or dividends received, are recognised in the income
staternent. The Group has €10 million in long-term cazh ivestments (UCITE). As the valoe
at 31 December 2022 was less than the amount invested, 2n impaiement of €1,128 thouzand
was tecogrused in the income statement, after reverszal of the previous mmpairment, whach
amounted to €69 thousend. The objective of this financizl instroment s to obtain an
anrmzhized net retum of more then 3.63% over an investment honzon starting at the launch
of the fund until 31 December 2026 while being subject to a hvbad monetary and equaty nisk
The management cbjective iz to achisve, over its recomumendsd investment pedod,
performance inked to trends in intermationsl bond markets, w1 parbeular through exposue to
high-meld secunties matanng no later than December 2026, This objective is bazed on the
achievement of market assumptions set by the management compeny. This fnancial
instrment 15 classified as bonds and other debt securities denominated in euros by the French
Finene:al Markets Authonty (AMF - _Asdons’ gor Marehér Frramears);

financial assets ot amosticed cost: These assets zre measured at amortized cost using the
effective mterest rete method Amortized cost 5 reduced by mmpairment losses. Interast
inncome, foreizn exchange gain: and loszes and impairments are recogmuzed in the income
statement. Gamms and losses resulbng from derecogmtion sre recorded in the mcome
statement;

debt instroments at fair value through other comprehensive income These szsets are
measured at fair value. Interest income caloulated wsing the effectrre mterest rate method,
foreign exchange gzinz and lozses and impaements are recogiuzed in the income statement.
Other net gains and lozses are recorded in other comprehenzive mecome. On derecognition,
gainns and losses accommulated in other comprehensive income are reclaszified to profit or loss;

equity instroments at fair value through other comprehensive mcome. These assets are
subsequently meszused at far value. Diomidends are recognised a2z income in the :ncome
statement, unless the dividend clearly represents the recovery of a portion of the cost of the
ivestment. Other geins and losses are recogmsed in other comprehenszive income and are
never reclassifiad to profit or loss.

Financral falwlines

All borrowrings or debt bearing interest are initially recorded at the fair value of the amount recarred,
less directly attrbutable transaction costs. Subseguent to wutial recogrition, interest-bearing loans are
measured at amortized cost, vang the effective mterest rate method.

Borrowings are classified as curgent liabikties, except when the Group has en unconditional right to
defer parment of the debt at least 12 months after the reporting date, in which case theze borrowings
are classified as non-cuerent labdities.
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6.4.14. Cash and cash equivalents

Cazh and cash equivalents conszist of bank accounts and inrestments.
The Group has €224 million in highly Lquid short-term cash investments (teen deposits) that are
eazily convertible with a maturity of less then three months into 2 known amount of cash whose value

is very little expozed to fluctuation nsks.

The statement of cash flows iz presented uvsing the indirect method under IAS 7. The income tax
expense s presented globally in operating cash flows. Financial interest paid 1= recognized in financing
flowrs. Dividends paid are classified as cash flows from financing actrorbies.

6.4.15. Employes benefits

Emplovee benefits aze recognised in accordsnce with [AS 19, The Group’s obligations in terms of
petision, sopplementary pension znd retirement indemiuty re those mmpozed by the legal texts
zppheable :n France. Pension and supplementary pension obligations are fully covered by pavments
to orgarnizations that release the emplover from any subsequent obligation, while the organization 1=
responsible for paving emplovees the amounts due to them. These inclade French joint pension
schemes.

Posr-employment benefirs

Fetirement benefits are paid to emplovess npon retirement according to their length of sernice and
their szlary at retirement age. These benefits are part of the defined benefit plan. As a result, the
method uzed to measure the smount of the Company’s commitment with regard to retirement benefits
is the retrospectve projected vt credit method.

It reprezents the probable present value of the rights scquired, asseszed taking into account salary
iticreases up to retirement age, likebhood of departizee and of surrmral.

The formulz for past commitment can be broken down into four main terms as follows:

The main assumptions used for this estimate are as follows:

Assumptions 3/ /12020
Diisconnt rate bemchmark: IBCEE conpomte rate A4 + 10 vears
Diiscount rate 3.TT% 0.98%
Life tabls IMSEE 20i4-2016 IMSEE 20d4-2016
Wage grooth £%: declmne &% declimmes
Tumorer rate 29005 2907
Betrement azme 62 vears 82 vrars

Actuanial gains end losses are recogruzed in other comprehensire income.
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Other post-employment beneftrs
el

Thase benefits are mainly bzsed on the defined contribution plza (generzl plaa).
Under this plan, the Group has no other obligation than the parment of contebutions; the expense
corresponding to the contnbutons paid i3 recogmzed in the mcome statement for the vear.

Cther fong-rerm benefirs

As the Group is not subject to the obligation, it haz not set up a company savings plan or profit-
sharing sgreement. Diue to the recent creation of the Company, long-zservice awards sre neglioble.
Where zpplkeable, severance pay iz provizioned.

In other words, there are no long-term benefits granted withen the Group.

6.4.16. Provisions and contingent liahilities

In accordance with TAS 37, 2 provision is recognized when a current ohligation to a third party 1= lkely
to result in an outflow of resources necessary to settle the obhgaton and when it can be rebably
estimated. The zmouat of the provision is the best possible estimate of the outflow of resources
requared to settle the oblization.

A contingent bahbility :s based on a potentizl obliation resulting from past events and whose exstence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence {or non-ocourrence) of one or more uncertain foture events
that are not wholly within the control of the company. A contingent hability 1= also a present chhigation
that arises from past eventz but is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodring economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or either, the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022, the Group has not made any provision and has not
identified any contingent hahdities.
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6.4.17. Tax

Deferred taxes are recognised using the babdity method to the extent of the temporary differences
between the tax baze of the aszets and Lzbilities and their accounting baze.

The carrying amouat of deferred tax zssets is seviewed at ezch reporting date and deferred tax assets
are only recograzed if it 1= probable that a future taxshle profit will enable them to be recovered.

Deeferred tax assetz and habdkties zre valued at the tax rate adopted or substantially adopted at each
reporting date and the application of which is expected in the financisl vear dusing which the asset
will be reslized or the hability will be realized settled for each tax regulation

Tazmes relating to items recognized dizectly in equity or in other comprehensive income e recognised
i1 eguity of in other comprehensive income and not in the income statement.

Deferred tax zs=ets and hahilites are not discounted.
Deferred tax zz=ets and hahilities are offset when they relzte to the zame tax entify.
They are evidenced by means of proof of tax (see Note 6.10.1).

In the :ncome statement the Company valoe-zdded contribution ([CVAE) is incladed in the line Tex

EXpEIses.
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6.4.15. Product recognition

IFEE 15 establizhes the principles of zevenue recognition on the basis of 2n analvzis i fve successive
stages:
- identification of the coatract;

- identification of the various distinet performance obligetions, £2 the list of goods or sermices
that the seller has undertaken to provide to the buver;

- detersmination of the overall price of the contract;
- the zllocation of the overzll price to each performence oblization;
the recognition of revenue and related costz when a performance obligation 1= satisfied.

Revenue is recogmzed when the Group fulfils 2 performance obligation by transferring & promised
pood or service to 2 customer. An asset i= transferred when the customer obtans control of the asset.

These revenues are net of value-added tax, merchandise returns, rebates and rebates and deductions
made, whers zpplkeable, from intra-group sales.

The Group distinguiches between two trpes of revenue:

- revenue related to engineermg servmices promided as part of the signatore of exclosmnty
contracts whose revenue 15 recogmised according to the performance of the sermces: access to
technologies and engineering services related to the marketing of products by the partner
clisit;

2

- revenue related to the sale of low-carbon cement for which revenue is recogmized on delrery.
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6.4.19. Grants

Public grantz are publc aid in the form of transfers of resources to an entity, in exchange for its
comphzance or future comphance with certain conditions related to its operationsl activites. Under
IAS 20, asset-related grants are public grants whose main condition iz that an entity meeting the
conditions must purchasze, buxdd or otherwise sequire long-term sszets.

Government grants are recogmised m profit or loss on a systematic basis for the periods in which the
entity recognizes 25 expenses the costs that the grants are intended to offset Thuos, grants related to
zzsets are presented under deferred income in the statement of finanecial pozition and amortized over
the same period as the subsidised asset.

The Group benefits from repavable non-interest bearing advances granted by BPI to finznce the
development progremme for geopolymers and innovative low-carbon technologies. The difference
between the present valoe of repavment flows at the market rate and the amount recerred in cash
from the public body constitutes a grant under TAS 20, This difference 15 recogrused as 2 grant over
time based on the repayments, given that the corresponding costs are cepitalised. The financial cost
of tepavable advances, caleulated zccording to the effectve intesest rate, iz secorded in fimancial
expenses.

The Group zlso benefits from resezrch and innovation tax credits. These amounts are recognized as
grants in the income statement, a2t the same rate as the amortisation of the development costs related
to each technology.

These grants are recogmsed as deferred income.
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6.4.20. Leases

Under IFRS 16, 2 lease 1= zn agresment wheseby the lessor transfers to the leszee, for a specified
period, the right to use an aszet in exchange for payment or 2 series of payments.

Lesses

For most lezzes, 3 nght of use is recogiized in the lessee’s assets in exchange for a kability determined
by discounting the rent payzable at the market rate. This processing i= carried oot oaly if the contract
has a duration of more than 12 months and if the value of the leased aszet 1z greater than 115D 5,000,
Each payment under the contracts is broken down between the financial expense and the amortization
of the balance of the debt, =0 2= to obtzin a constant periodic interast rate on the outstanding balance.

The discount rate used corresponds to the finanecing rate that the baaks would grant for each of the
contracts. The rates vary between 0.30% and 3.30% depending on the date of the contracts. Whenever
possible, particularly on certain vehicles where the residusl value at the end of the contract 1= known,
the interest rate implicit in the contract i= used, Lo around %346,

The Groop preseats the “oght of use™ asset on the same line 25 the underdying assets of the same type
which it fully owns.
Intangible aszets under a lease are smortised over the useful Life of the ssset (if the lease transfers

ownership of the asset to the lessee) or over the leaze term.

6.4.21. Met financial debt

Long-term financial debts include loens contracted with credit institutions, repavable public grants, as
well as loans recogrised as an offset to the recognition of rights of use attached to leases. Thesze long-
term debts are clazsified as non-cusrent labdities for their part due in more than one vear and are
walzed at amorbzed cost at the end of the reportng period vsing the effective interest rate method,
with amortization of issue costs, when these costs. 2re significant. All thesze debtz are 2t 2 fixed rate at
the teporting date.

Zhort-term borrowings include the short-term portion of long-term borrowings, as well as bank
overdrafts and other short-term borrowings.

IMNet financial debt consizts of the borrowings defined abowre, less cash and cash eguaralents and long-
term financial investments.

The cost of net borrowing cost includes interest on borrowings znd other financial Ezbilities, and

income on cash wvestments.
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6.4.22. Segment information

The main operational decision-makes only mosnitors performance at the level of the eatire Group; the
zppheation of IFRS B has led the Group to present only one operating segment.

6.4.23. Equity

Shareholders’ equity consists of the share capital of the parent company, preminms, reserves and
eartungs.

Treasury shares held zre deducted from consclidated equity; no expense or income resulbing from
these transactions affects the income statement.

6.4.24. Presentation of the income statememnt
The Group presents its mcome statement by nature and has identified performance indicators adapted
to itz business model that are not systematically defined by accounting standards.
Fevenus

The Group’s reverme corresponds to revenue from cement sales and engneering services under
partnership agresments.

EBIT/Current operating profit

EPIT [Easning: Before Interest & Tazes), also called profit (loss) from coatinuiag operations
corresponds to all recurning income zad costs directly related to the Company’s actrmities.

EBITDA

EBITDA (Earmings Before Interect, Taxes, Depreciztion & Amortisation) is an indicstor defined by

HGCT as profit (loss) from contnuing operztions before depreciation, amorbsation and impairment
of assets net of reversals.

-83-



CATALYST OF

CARBON TRANSITION

6.4.25. Methods for caleulating net earmnings per share

Earmings per share age caleulzted by dmuding net income attnbutzble to shareholders by the weaghted
average number of shares outstanding doring the financial vear.

Diluted earnings per share are caloulated by dividing net income attributable to shareholders by the
weighted average rmumber of shares outstanding duging the vear, adjusted for the impact of the

conrersion of didutre instments into crdinary shares.

Dhuring the 2022 financial vear, the weighted average number of ordinary shares was:

Averape weighted
Ordimary shares Cumlative Temm mamber of crdinary
shores
01,/01,/2022 14,602,387 14,602,387 3 120,020
04,/01,72022 E,004 14,510,481 kS 360,238
13,/01,2022 24,233 14,624,736 253 14,153 554
14,624,736 283 14,632,872
Treasury shares - 13,681
Avemage waighted romber of codivery shares 14,520,181
Incowne attrbntable to owmers of ordinery shares - 6, T3R.9ET
- 4609

In 2022, diluted earnings per share were equal to basic earnings per shars.
The free share allocation plans decided by the Company are instruments that could dilute basic
eartungs per share in the future, but which are not included :n the caleulabon of diuted earmings per

share becanse they are anti-dihutive for 2022

Drging the 2021 financial vear, the weighted averagme number of ordinary shares was:

Averaze weighted

Cirdimary shares Crxmilatore Tenn mumaber of ordinary
shares

O1,/01,/2021 13,502,287 13,802 387 232 12,400 52D
J0,/11,3021 1,000,000 14,802,387 32 1,280,209
14,802, 387 383 13,680,058
Treasury shares - 9,354
Average weighted mumiber of codinary shares 13,680,504
Income attrbuhible to osmers of ordinzry shares - 3,562,338
- 02056

In 2021, diluted earning= per share are equal to basic earmings per share.
The free chare allocation plans decided by the Company are instroments that could dilute basic

earn:ngs per share in the future, but which zre not included i the caleulation of diluted earmings per
share because they are anti-dihutive for 2021
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6.5. Consolidation scope

Unless otherwize stated, percentages of voting nghts are identical to the portion of share capital held.

2022 scope

- Consclidation Equity Contralling R
Emntities e 3 perce perce registered office ‘Coumntry
HGCT IG - - RIVES DE L'YCON France
HOFFALLAINI BRCOYAGE G L0 1000054 MAREUIL EIN FERIGOFRD France
2021 scope

- Consolidation Equity Contralling R
Emntities e 3 perce pezce registered office ‘Country
HGCT s - - EIVES DE L'YON France

O 28 June 2022, HOFFMAN GREEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES took control of 2AS ABC
EBEOYAGE, restamed HOFFLIAND BROYAGE, whech itzelf cwned SAFL AE CEZAR On 14
MNovember 2022, HOFFMANN BEOYAGE absorbed AB CESAR wuth retroachive tax and
zocounting effect from 1 Januwery 2022 HOFFALANIN BREOYAGE i3 included in the scope of
consolidation s= of 28 June 2022 on the basis of the position a= of the same date.

-85-



CATALYST OF

CARBON TRANSITION

6.6. Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment tests 2re performed on property, plant and equipment and intangble assets with a finite
uszeful kfe where there is evidence of impairment. These tests consist of reconciling the nst carrying
amount of the assets with their recoverzble emount, corresponding to the hugher of their market value
lezs selling costs or value in use estmated using the DCF (discounted cash flow) method.

Cazh flows are discounted over & imited period of five to six years and extrapolated to nfinsty, and
the discount rate uzed corresponds to the weighted average cost of the capital of the entity concerned.

The weighted average cost of capital used for 2022 15 estimated at between 15.530%% and 1B.73%
depending on the sensitivities apphed and taking into account the nizk premiums apphed.

For mntangble assets with an indefinite usefil kfe, impairment tests are carrred out at least once a year
on z fined date and between two dates if there is emidence of impairment

The impairment tests, carded out according to the methodologr desertbed above, showed that no
impairment was necessary. Lhe sensibivity ansbysis on the key szsumptions (growth rzte, EBITDA
zate, discount rate) uzed to determine the value in use shows that 2 vadation of +/- 10% would have
nio mmpact on the concluzions of the impairment tests carried out (no impairment recorded).

Intangible assets that are not vet ready to be commissioned are tested for impairment at least once a
vear and whenever there 1= an mdication that the asset may be :mpaired.
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6.7. Statement of financial position
6.7.1. Intangible assets

Chanoe mn pross mntanoible assets (in thousands of euros)
= & LT

. Froperty, plant
Gross values D'“::im Dﬂ":s"::;ﬂ‘"jh" and .:.quip;::u in TOTAL
PIDETEES
At 31 December 2020 2,861 E76 122 3,860
Acquisitizas 1,898 &4 43 2028
Diisposals
Inter-item trapsfers
Clange in scope
Az 31 December 2021 4,76l 40 187 =5,888
Arquisitions 1,544 a1 2,005
Diisposals
Tater-itemn tramsfiars a3 -33
Clanege in scope o o
Az 51 December 2022 6,705 973 215 7,883
Chanme in amomizagon of intanotble assets {in thousands of euros)
. Property, plant
Depreciations D"";:im Dﬂm’;‘;‘f-hk and aquip;::u in TOTAL
progress
Ar 31 Decamber 2020 253 17 28D
Appropraticas 236 ) 333
Reversals
Dnter-item trapusfiors
Clanee in scope
At 31 December 201 549 [ 613
Appropeations 477 34 530
Reversals
Inter-item trasfers
Clange in scope o o
At 31 December 2022 1,025 118 1,143
Change i ner imangihle assets (in thousands of euros)
. Property, plant
Met values D"f:im Dﬂ";i‘;iﬂ'-h e na aquip;::u in TOTAL
FICETESS
Az 31 December 2020 2,598 ESE 122 3,579
Az 31 December 2021 4,212 BTE 157 3,275
Az 51 December 2022 3,678 B33 213 [ xE

* Including goodwill for €333 thousand (zee MNote 6.4.5)
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Thea uzefal lives vzed to amortise identifizble intangible zssets are as follows:

- development costs ten years;

- =zoftware & beenses two to eight vears.
Development costs related to FH-P2A and H-EVA technologies amounted to €1.338 thousand gross.
These gelated to the H-UEKR technology amounted to €4,934 thousand gross. Lastly, those relating to
the new H-IOMNA technology amounted to €413 thowsand gro=s.

Other intangihle assets mainly correspond to the goodwill resulting from the takeover of ARGTWEST
at 30 June 2017. The zest corresponds to an ERP and 2 CRML

Intangible aszets in progress amount to €215 thousand m relation to the captalization of expenses
telating to the development of new technology.

The flows on intanzble aszets above include flows related to fixed assets recognised in accordance
with IFRZ 16, 2= detailed below:

Change m gross mrangrbie assets under finance legses or leases (In thousands of euros)

Orther intangible
assets

At 31 Diecember 2020 34 34
Arquisitions a1l al
Disposals

Inter-itern tragsfiars

Clunee in scope

At 3] Diecember 204 -5 -+
Disposals

Inber-itern tragesfiers

Clunee in scope

Ar 31 Diecember 2022 &3 a3
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Changmes in amomization of Intangtble assets under Anance laases or leases {in thousands of euros)

Crther intsmgible

Diepreciations R TOTAL
Ar 3] Decembeer 2020 ] o
Appropeations B B
Reversals
Inter-item tragsfisrs
Clenge in scope
Ar 3] Decembrer 204 B
Appropeiations 10 10
Faversals
Inter-itern trapsfiors
Clanee in scope
Ar 31 Decembver 2022 1E 1E

Change i ner imtanoible assers under fnance leasas or feases (in thonsands of enros)

et values Crthies intangible TOTAL
E-141:9
At 31 Decerber 2020 53 3
At 31 Decemier 2021 a7 5
At 51 Decermizer 2022 I 7
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6.7.2. Property, plant and equipment

Change m gross propery, planr and eqimpment (in thonsands of eanes)

Techmical
facilities, Other property,  Properiy, plant
Gross values Land Buildings industrizl plant and and equipment TOTAL
aquipment and sguipmsnt in progress
tools

Ar 31 December 2020 1,47 5,621 5,324 1,706 1,045 13, B4
Arquisitions 16 To0 L] 11,098 12,248
Disposals -G8 -8
Inter-itern tragsfiars -17 17 -33 -33
Clunee in scope
Feparment by asset
Ar 31 December 201 1,232 3,604 0,024 2,002 12,957 30,83E
Arquisitions 237 a1z 463 13,825 14,337
Disposals -230 -41 -200
Inber-itern traomsfiers 333 -a33
Chavge in seope 7= 1,363 1,056 193 3,187
Feparment by asset
At 31 Diecember 2022 1,307 7,705 10,368 2,707 26,256 46,343
Change m amonisaton of propeny, plant and equipment (in thousands of ewros)

Techmical

facilities, Orther property, Property, plant

Depreciations Lamd Buildings industrzal plant and and equipment TOTAL
equipment and aquiprnent in progress
toals

At 31 Diecember 2020 57 400 1,506 434 1,788
Appropeations a4 a7 1189 91 1,785
Reversals -G8 -85
Inter-itmen trapsfars o] Q
Clunee in scope
Ar 31 December 2021 a1 TEl 995 L= 4,505
Appropeations a3 B3 1272 as7 2,023
Reversals -130 -41 -i1%2
Inber-itern tragesfiers
Clange in scope 245 1022 1aG2 1432
As 31 December 2012 127 1372 £,139 1,135 7,773
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Change m net propeny, plant and eguipment (in thousands of euros)

Technical
facilities, Other property,  Property, plant
Idet values Land Buildings industrial plamt and and eguipment TOTAL
equipment and squipment in progress
toals
At 31 Dicember 2020 1,180 5,131 5,318 1272 1,945 16,026
At 51 Diecember 2021 1141 4,543 §,023 1,483 12,957 26,434
Ar 31 December 2012 1,180 £,333 5,219 1,572 26,238 40,570

The Company is continuing the constrocton of the H2 building, for which it paid €8.9 million in new
expenses in 2022 These expenses are recorded uader non-current assets in progress. The plant is
scheduled for commussioning in the first half of 2023, In addition, the Company began the
conistruction of a concrete mamng plant for whach it zpent €2.0 aulbion in 2022,

Following the entry of HOFFAMANMN EROYAGE into the scope of conzolidation, a real estate capatal

gain of €1,461 thousand, of which €69 thousand on the ground, was recorded on the basis of an expert
report. This capital gain is amortized over 2 pedod of 15 years.

The cash flows on property, plant and equipment above inclade cash flows celated to fined assets
recogmnised i sccordence with IFRS 16, a= detailed balow:

Change i gross property, plant and eqimpment feased or feased (in thousands of euros)

Techmical
facilites, Orther property,
Gross values Lamnd Buildings industrial plamt and TOTAL
equipment and =gquipmnent
toals

Ar 31 Diecembeer 2020 400 4,530 1,167 410 &,543
Arquisitions 150 130
Diisposals -G8 -E5
Inter-itern tragusfiars

Clenee in scope

Feparment by assex

Ar 31 Diecembeer 2021 200 4,530 1,167 400 &, 604
Arquisitions 3T i 1Z5 361
Disposals -41 -3
Inber-itern tramsfiers

Clenee in scope

Feparment by asset

Ar 31 Decembeer 2022 409 4,776 1,165 a7 G, 924
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Change in depreciamon of propenty, plant and equipment nnder finance feases or leases {in thousands

of euros)

Technical

facilities, Orther properey,

Diepreciations Land Buildings induserial plant and TOTAL
equipment and equipment
toals

Ar 31 December 2020 387 32Z 1E6 ans
Approprations 27 174 125 517
Faversals -G8 -3
Inber-itern tragesfiers
Clange in scope
At 31 December 2021 624 496 243 1,363
Appropsations 251 ims 157 583
Feversals -41 -41
Iaber-itern tramsfiers
Clange in scope
At 31 Decamber 2022 B36 671 330 1,915

: i per party; pl { eqgun) leased 3 ] 53 euros
Change i ner propenty, plant and equipment feased or leased (in thousands of euros

Techmical
facilities, Orther property,
Met valu=s Lamd Buildings induserial plamt and TOTAL
equipment and equipment
tools

At 31 Decamber 2020 a03 4142 345 243 5,638
Ar 31 December 2021 £03 3,514 &70 247 5,241
At 3 Decamber 2022 403 3,890 487 M3 5,009

¢l
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6.7.3. Other financial assets

In thousands of euros 31712/2022 31/12/2021

Crther equity secuzities(t 11 1
UCITS (in the form of bonds) 10,000 10,000
Depreciation of TUCITS [z the form of bonds) -1,12 -59
Orher long-term investments™ 53 0
Loans 1

Deposits and puamntees® 1,72 1,703
TOTAL 10,664 11,684

% Unconsolidated Hoffmann shares in Switzerland for €9.9 thousand and shares in a GIE for €0.8
thousand.

 Bank shares in the amount of €35 thousand.

¥ Deposits and guarantees correspond to puarantee deposits on bank loans in the amount of €1.5
million, the guarantee holdback on the BPI loan in the amount of €200 thousand, rental deposits
and guarantees on motorway badges.

6.7.4. Other non-current assets

In thousands of euros 31712/2022 31/12/2021
Customers > one yeac 33
Customer impairmant =27
State — VAT receivable on Batiroe 20 22
Prepa:d expenses > one year 15 13
TOTAL 33 43

Doubtful receivables were reclassified as irrecoverable receivables during the financial vear with
reversal of the related impairment.
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6.7.53. Deferred tax assets

31712/ 022 3,12/ 202

Baseline Tax Baseline Tax
Temparary delays
Tax deficits 40,820 10,230 29,633 TATL
Festatements
Fonration sxpenses o o
Special depreciation alloommoss -1,027 =257 -351 138
Rertals 37 14 33 13
Credit laasing 541 -133 334 96
Ratrement commitnents 16 4 a2 ]
Dropairment of trezney shares -4 -1
Ili;cl:;s;::ﬂm of soquisition eosts of a8 2z
TOTAL 39,512 B,E7E 20,029 7257

Froof of tax is prowmded :n Note 6.10.1.

TAS 12 recommends using the last tax rate voted when caloulating defesred tax. The Group has
therefore uzed the rate of 23%:.

The deferred tax recognised is therefore mainly due to the tax losses accumulated by HOFFMANN
GEEEN CEMENT TECHMNOLOGIES. The Company has cepitzlised &l of the deficits of the
Company on the basis of forecasts that will make it possible to settle the deficits in queston over 2
period of frve vears. There were no varecognised losses as at 31 Decamber 2022

In sccordance with TAS 12, we prezent the following tax planning as of 31 December 2022, which
shows the doe date of deferred tax assets and their recovershility:

Porticn at Fortion at Fortion at Fortion at
. mars than maors than mars than .
Fortion at maores than i Fortion at
In thousands of suros lezs than M-  one year and Fears eaTs years mors than TOTAL
1 less 4 and less and less and less P
than thres than fouar than five ¥
D FEATS
Tax dafizits -3,115 -1,004 1,435 5,905 5,914 10,230
Special ‘i‘:l’"”"m 166 123 B0 24 -7 -562 257
Cradit Jaaging 25 4 42 42 44 -333 =123
Fsmtals a 1 1 1 2 - 14
Semuritiss pogaisition costs * 4 4 4 * s
Sootzl adjustmemt a a
Fetimmment coppmitmemts 4 4
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TOTAL -2,909 -533 2,565 6,070 5,893 -803 9,573

6.7.6. Inventories and work in progress

Net change in inventormes and work-in-progress

In thousands of euros 3/12/2022 3101272011

Faw materials and other supplies 4563 2,736
Wiek in progress
Intermediate and finished products 134 1
Goods 50 19
Provisions for depreciation
TOTAL 4,330 2,756

Changes in provisions for impairment 31272022 317122021
Opering value
Increaze
Drecreaze
Closing value 0 0
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6.7.7. Trade receivables and other current assets

Trade receivablos

In thousands of suros kG I e 1 ] /125201
Gross trade repmivables 1539 244
Frowisions for depreciation =220
TOTAL 1319 2,244

Other current asssrs

In thousands of euros 311272022 3127200
Adbrances and deposits paid 193 51
Soeial security repeivablas 0 7
Tax acaivables 2141 3,005
Other cuxrant receivablag 34 11
Frepaid saxpemsas 57 aT
TOTAL 2,652 3,443

The matucity of the receivables iz presented in the tzble in Note §.11.2

Tiase recervabies are brofew doww s foliaws:

T receivables 311272022 312/202
State — Tuwestment grants recenrable a 1,206
Seate = VAT 1.416 18]

‘Goversment — receprable related to inTestment tax
oredit and & tax credit

TOTAL 2,141 3,005

w5 1,113

As a remuinder, a: of 31 December 2021, subsidies recarvable corresponded to:
- the ERDF grant awarded under the “Support for collsborative Fesesrch & Development
projects and innoration poojects™ of the ERDF-ESF operational programme under the 2014-
2020 programme in the amount of €993 thousand. By decision of 7 June 2013, the Pay= delz
Loire region notified the Company HOFFMANN GREEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES
that it had been awarded an ERDF grant This grant was awarded as part of the project:
"Diefirition of low-carbon binder manufactusing process";
- the BPI grant for the H2 investment for 2 balence of €200 thousand;
the regional cvber-security grant in the amount of €15 thousand.
ThEe subsidias were raceivad duﬂ.ﬂg ﬂ'ua financial year, except for the last one, which was recogrized
25 NON-recULnng expenses in fiscal vear 2022
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The :ncrease in the VAT recervzble mainly corresponds to the VAT pending reimbusrsement as well
as the VAT on fixed assets, justified by the volume of investments made.

Current assets include the amounts obtained each year in respect of the investment tax credit and the
research tax credit. The amounts for 2021 were reimbursed by the State; those for 2022 will be
collected in 2025.

Osher current resetvables are detailed as follows:
J

Other receivables 31/12/2022  31/12/2021
Supplier dabtcrs and AAR 34

Abscellanacns debtors 23 11
TOTAL 56 11

Schedule of trade recervables

The breakdown of 2022 trade recervables by matunty is as follows:

Matured
ASSETS (In thousands of euros) B”"':l:"“' Notmatured < 90 days :69::::; = 6 months
Trade receivables (curzent assets) 2,519 1,228 &0 292 730
TOTAL 2,319 1,228 50 202 739
The breakdown of trade receivables in 2021 by matusity is as follows:
Matured
ASSETS (In thousands of euros) B"”:_‘:l:"m Not matured < 90 days :69:1:2:: > 6 months
Trade receivables (current assets) 2,244 1,601 320 1 322
TOTAL 2244 1,601 320 1 322

6.7.8. Cash and cash equivalents

In thousands of euros 31/12/2022 31/12/2011
Temm depcaits 22423 40,456
Cash 2t bank and in hand 7,525 16,219
Totsl closing cash 30,247 56,704

Eank orerdratts [see 6.5.10)

Total net cash and cash equivalents
30,247
at end of period A,

56,704
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6.7.9. Capital
Changes i share capiral

At 31 December 2022, the share capitsl of HOFFAANN GREEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES
consisted of 14,634,736 shares, which changed as follows m the 2022 financial year:

o/ 2022 Increase Feductions 1z 202z
Diimbes of shaves 14,605,357 33,349 14,654,736
Iominal jn € 1.00 1.00 1.00
Capital in suTos 14,602,357 32,349 14,634,736

On 4 and 13 Jamsary 2022, HGCT carcried out oo successive capital inereases as part of the setflement
of the two free chare allocation plans Wo. 1 and Neo. 2. These czpital increszses were carried out by
deduction from the issue premium for 2 total emount of €32 thousand.

Share capital informarion

HOFFMANN GEEEN CEMENT TECHNCOLOGIES shareholding stroctuce:

Holders INumber of shares Ommership percentages

Tulien Blanchard 2,740,028 18.72%%
Drerad Hodffmern 2,715,028 18.35%%
SAS Gillaizemy Teere Cuots 1,847 961 12.78%%
SAS Eladom {formedy

Crougrand) 345,216 5.80%
Trezsury shares 13,691 0.09%%
Other shareholders 6,445,810 407
Total 14,634,736 100005

Treasuny shares

Treasary shazes acquired are deducted from consolidated equity. INo profit or loss resulting from the
purchaze, zale or cancellattion of shares affects the income statement.

- Number of treasuer shares held ot 31,/12/2022: 13,691 shares
- Value of trezsury shares held at 31,/12/2022: €135,924

- Number of treasury shares acquired w1 2022: 38,558 shares

- Value of trezsusy share: acquared :n 2022: €726,700

- Number of treasury shares sold in 2022 54,201 shares

- Value of treasury shares sold i 2022: €711,459
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8.7.10. Financial Habilities

Non-current,/currant borrowings and financial debre

In thousands of eurcs M 2/202z 11202021

Bank borromsings 12,423 13,511
ADEMTF adrance 1,008 1,104
Fepaveble BFT gramts 169 262
Repavzble BFL sramts 463

FDL Region loan 2,000 2,000
Totzl equity loan B
Lizbdliies on rentals 3,430 3,513
Accrued fmterest 110 115
INon-current borrowings and finsncizal debt 19,605 I11%6
Bank borromsings 3,835 2,523
ADEMF adrance 106 17
FRepavzble BFL gramts B3 B0
Total equity Loan B 147
Lizbdlities aon rextals 1] 633
Apcried frtsrest ] T
Currant borrowings and financial dabe 4,018 3,701
TOTAL 24,523 24,306

Non-cumrent /cument borrovwangs and financral debt fows
=

Total FDL

Bank ADEME vakble Bank Liabilities Accrued
Grozs values bomowings advance Elwt =quity Region overdrafts  on rentals  imterest TOTAL
koan loan
At 31 Decamber 2020 B B30 1,367 473 229 o o 4,033 110 15,812
HNew 2,000 100 2,000 161 a6 11,337
Reparments -1,228 -14& -122 -125 -623 -2,242
Ghm.g?: G‘_\:Id'l! o
Az 31 December 2021 16,434 1211 352 233 2,000 o 4,471 126 24,696
HNew 2,300 465 251 e 3,146
Fparments -2,652 -113 -0 -147 -T13 -3,716
Clunge in scope 19a )
Ar 31 Decamber 2022 16,279 1100 717 B4 2,000 o 4147 s 24,523
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Term of loans outstanding at 31 December 2022

Portionat Portionat Portionat Portionat
more than more than mwore than  more than

Portion at RIS o Portion at
In thousands of eurcs lss‘.ﬂlun T EOeE e e x;me than TOTAL
z than than three  than four  than five P
WO FERrs years years years

At 51 December 2022

Bank borrowings 3,853 3,889 3,454 2842 1,630 26 16,27
ADEME advance 102 108 207 218 473 1,109
Repavable BFL zrants % 9% 74 282
Repavable BPL zrants & 131 133 136 483
FDL Rezica loax 400 400 400 400 400 2,
Total equitr loan 36 36
Bank overdrafis

Liskities on rentals 636 636 352 390 324 1,32 4117
Accrued interase 95 20 z 19 19 % 205
Borrowings and financial debt 4,918 5213 4,506 3,902 2,726 3,077 24,523
Teade pavables 3,857 3,857
;:;l‘: o os2 o8z
Other lizhiltias o o
Frapaid products and seross 239 92 98 93 94 1,356 3,106
other liabilities 5,150 203 298 295 294 1,586 7,926
TOTAL 10,077 5,507 4,505 4,237 3,020 4,663 32,449

Term of loans outstanding at 31 December 2021

Portionat Portionat Portionat Portionat
more than more than more than more than

Portion at RERHA Sy ey B yeas Portion at
ol thimmamde of oo lessNS%  andless  andless  andless  andless por oo TOTAL
than thon three  thenfour  then five year
two years years years years

At 31 December 2021

Bank borrowings 2,622 3,444 5,454 3,006 2454 1,442 16,454
ADEME zdvance 117 247 259 192 207 1,221
Repavzble BFI grants 90 92 96 74 252
Repavzble BFI grants

FDL Rezicn loan 400 400 400 800 2000
Total equitr lean 147 36 232
Lazbalities on rentals 652 618 356 307 284 1,762 4471
Vagous fmanci] Babddities

Accroed mterest Tt 24 24 24 24 e 186
Borrowings and financial debt 3,701 4,611 4,900 4,202 3,449 4,025 24,896
Trads pavzbles 5,808 5,808
;::: plopes eatact 757 9 786
Other liabilties 10 10
Prepaid products and sercices 274 292 298 295 294 1,491 2,546
Ortheer liahilities 6, B40 302 198 a5 a4 14m 0,520
TOTAL 10,550 4,913 2,207 4,497 3,743 3,516 34,426
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The ADEME advance is a public aid granted by the State to the company as part of the project to
brodld an indosteizl pilot to menufactuce 2 binder with a low carhon footpring. This aid was graated in
Diecember 2015 for a total smount of €1_367 thousand, of which the balance was recerwved on 28
September 2020, The end of repeyment date 15 30 June 2029 a= revenue i= expected to reach €7 mullion
i1 2023, thus toggering the second repayment phasze. In sccordance with IFES 9, the debt = mitially
recogrised at its fair value and corresponds to the discounting of future withdrawals at the rates
defined :n the contract

BFI tepavable advances are mnovation grants granted to the Compeny as part of the same project as
the one mentioned abowva:

* 2 first advance, for 2 total emount of €500 thousand, was granted in 2018, The end of repayment
date initislly set for 31 JMasch 2025 has been postponed to 30 September 2025 because of Covid-
19. In sccordsnce with IFRS 9 and simular to the first grant, the debt is recorded st its fair value,
f.2 with 2 discount, so as to reduce its interest rate from Zero to that of 2 normal debt. The benefit
arizng was treated 2z 2 grant in accordance with LAS 20 and iz therefore listed under deferred
mecome (Other corrent babilities and Other non-cugrent liabdbtie: depending on matuety). The
balance at 31 December 2022 was €262 thouzand. Notwithstending the technical or commercial
failure or the partial techmical or commercial success of the programme, the Company guarantees
to BFI France Financement the payment of a lump sum of €200 thousand, of which the full
amount has been paid as of 31 December 2023;

* @ new advance, for 2 total amount of €700 thousand, was granted i Llar 2022, of which €450
thouzand were received at 31 December 2022, The repayment end date is 30 June 2029 In
zccordance with IFRS 9, the debt i= recorded at its fair valoe, re with 2 discount, so as to reduoce
its interest rate from zero to that of 2 niormal debt The benefit erizsing was treated a5 2 grant in
accordance with ITAS 20 and iz therefore listed under deferred meome (Other current liabilites
and Other noa-corrent lzbilites depending on matorty). The balance at 31 December 2022 was
£465 thousand The fiest repayment iz scheduled for 30 September 2024, Notwithstanding the
techmical or commercial fadure or the partal techrical or commercial success of the programme,
the Company goarsntee: to BFI Franee Financement the pavment of a lump sum of €280
thousand.

The Total participating loan is a non-bank loan granted by the Total Group in a total emount of €400
thousand, of which the balznce of €100 thousand was collected in May 2021 The purpose of the funds
pranted br the lender is to promote the estzblishment or development of activities that create long-
term employment in the mdostosl end industrial services sectors. In this case, the zim was to create
12 permaneat jobs by 31 Dlecember 2020, which the Company effectively did. This loan was
contracted at @ fimed rate of 190 and benefited from a grace pecod of 24 months, setting the first
matueity on 15 Augest 2020 It iz scheduled to expire an 15 July 2023, There is no guarzntee associated
with the current contract. It should be noted that the loan may be converted into new shares at the
tequest of the lender and by muotoal agreement.

As part of the financing of the H2 plant, the Company was granted four loans for a total amount of

€11 million, all disburzed over 2021:

*  zloan by the Pays de Iz Lodre region (FDL) in the amouat of €2 million. Thiz loan was contrzctad
at 2 fixed rate of 2% and has 2 grace period of 24 months sething the first matorsity on 4 Apel
2024. Tt is scheduled to expire on 4 Aprl 2028, There is no guarantee zssociated with the cucrent
conitract;
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» aGreen Loan from Lz Bangque Postale in the amount of €3 million. This loan was contracted at a
frzed rate of 1.43%. The term of the loan is seven vears. Az collateral, the Company has pledged
a current account that it holds with La Banque Postale in the amount of €750 thousand;

= aloan from BNP Paribas in the amount of €3 million. This loan was contracted at a fixed rate of
1.14%. The term of the loan is five vears. By way of gnarantee, Company has pledged a term
deposit in the amount of €730 thousand;

* alean from the Caisse d’Epargne in the amount of €3 million. This loan was contracted at a fized
rate of 0.95%. The term of the loan is five vears. By way of guarantee, Company has pledged a
term deposzit in the amount of €730 thousand.

In December 2022, the Company tock out a new bank loan in the amount of €2.3 million to finance
the refit work on the shredding equipment at the HOFFAMANN BROYAGE site. This lozn was taken
out at a fixed rate of 3.13%, for a pedod of 72 months, with a matunty date of 31 December 2028,

6.7.11. Analyzis of net borrowing cost

Change in ner borrowing cost

In thousands of euros .1‘1.-"12;‘2022 31!12,-"2.02:1

Long-term portion of finaneiz] debt 12,603 21,196
Current portion of borrowings 49018 3,701
Bomowings of less than one vear and creditor banks

Total groas debt 24,323 24,596
Bank shares 35 0
Long-term guarantees on fnancial debts 1,700 1,700
Long-term portion of finaneisl investments 10,000 10,000
Zhert-term porton of financisl invesmments 22423 40486
Cazh at bank and in hand 7823 18,219
Total cash assets 42,001 63,434
TOTAL NET DEBET -17,478 -43,538

Details of gross debt are prezented in Note 6.7.10.
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6.7.12. Provision for pension commitments

Change in commiitment

In thousands of euros mmﬂus
At 31 December 2020 37
Impact of change in TAS 19 methed -1&
At 31 December 2020 after change in method 21
Appropriztions 14
Beverzals
Changs in zcope
Actuaral gzins znd losses -3
At 31 December 2021 32
Appropriztions
Beverzals -1
Changs in zcope
Actuarial gains and loszes &
At 31 December 2022 16

The new position adopted by IFRIC in June 2021 constitutes a change of method. IFRIC considers
that where no rghts are acquired if the emplovee leaves before retirement age and where rights are
capped after a certain length of service, it is the final vears of the employee’s career in the company
which confers rights on them at the time of departure. As this application is retrospective, HGCT
recalculated its commitments on 31 December 2020, which amounted to €21 thousand compared to
€37 thousand in the consolidated financial statements pubkshed at 31 December 2020.

6.7.13. Other provisions

The Company has not recognised any other provision.

6.7.14. contingent assets and liabilites

Mo contingent assets or liabilities have been recognized by the Company.
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6.7.15. Trade payables and other payables

Breakdown by type of trade payables and other payables

Trade pavables

In thousands of euros 31/12/2022 312/
Trade pavables 272 2735
Debt on non-CcUrTent assets 1136 3,073
TOTAL 3,837 3,308

At 31 December 2021, debts on non-current assets mainly related to work in progress as part of the
construction of H2.

Other non-current liabilities

In thousands of eurcs 3122022 3171272021
Tax and emplovee-relzted pavables 0
Advances and deposits received
Oither habilities
Frepaid products and serviess 3,082 2672
TOTAL 3,082 2,680
Prepaid products and servicas 31/12/2022 31/12/2021
FAD tax credit 2,313 2138
Investment tax credit 129 ¥l
EFI - Grant on zero-Tate adrance 30 13
Investment grants 409 423
TOTAL 3,082 2,672

¥ ¥

For the settlement of BCPs, see note 6.11.2.
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MNon-current tax liabilities

31/12,/2022 3112201
Baszeline Tax Baseline Tax
Temporary delays
Tax deficits -384 -144
Restatements
Reramation difference 1,414 is4
TOTAL 330 207

Proof of tax 15 provided in MNote 6.10.1.

IAS 12 recommends using the last tax rate voted when caleulating deferred tax The Group has
therefore used the rate of 23%.

The deferred tax recorded is mainly due to the capital gain recorded on the real estate of
HOFFMANN BROYAGE, in return for which the losses were capitalised There were no
unrecognised loszes as at 31 December 2022

In accordance with TAS 12, we present the following tax planning as of 31 December 2022, which
shows the due date of deferred tax assets and their recoverability:

Portion at Portion at Portion at

Fortion at more than more than more than
Portion at more than PR thres vears four vears Portion at
Inthousands of  jops than M- one year and ¥ ! ) more than TOTAL
EuTOs 1 lese than and less and less and less five vears
than three than four than five ¥
W0 Years
- Veadls Vears VealE
Tax deficits 23 23 23 23 23 a0 145
Rerduation -23 23 -23 23 -23 -238 -354
differsnce
TOTAL -207 -207
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Orther current liabiliries

In thousands of eurce 31/12/022 31/12/2021
Tax and emploves-relzted pavables e3 TET
Advances and depesits received

Orther liahilities 0 10
Prepaid products and services 330 274
TOTAL 1,302 1042

Tawe and employee-related Kabtitzier are broken down ar follows:

Tax and employee-related payables 312 2022 3171272021

Emploves-related pavables 328 G73
State— VAT 104 53
State — accrned expenses i 17
TOTAL 963 737

The increaze in social security debts iz due to the fact that zalaries had been paid on 31 December
2021 for €144 thousand, £ before the end of the previous financial vear. In addition, the provision
for paid holidavs charged was up by €77 thousand in kne with the increaze in the workforce as well as
some individual counters that were up. The inclusion of HOFFMANN BROYAGE in the scope of
consolidation had an impact of €35 thousand on social security debts at 31 December 2022, In return,
at 31 December 2021, the item included €148 thousand in emplover contributions to the free share
allocation plan: paid in January 2022 at the time of the unwinding of plans 1 and 2.

Ozher leabiliter ave detailed ar follows:

Dither liabilities 31/1z/ 2022 J112/201
Cuostomer credit and PPA ¥

Nizcellaneons creditors ¥ 10
TOTAL 0 10

Deferved income i detasled az follows:

Prepaid products and services 31/12/2022  3112/2021

FAD tax credit an4 249
Inrestment tax credit 14 8
EFI - (zzant on zero-rate adrance T 10
Irorestment grants 14 G
TOTAL 339 74
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6.8.Income statement

6.8.1. Revenue

Revenue includes the sale of products and services.

In thousands of euros 31/12/2022 311272021
Cement zalez and other 1,893 2,243
Sales of services 326 138
TOTAL 2,219 2,380

In thousands of euros 31/12/2022 311272021
France 2,005 2,380
Exzport 214
TOTAL 2,219 2,380

6.8.2. Purchases consumed

In thousands of euros 3171272022 31/12,/2021
Purchases of raw materizls -3,560 -3,789
Change in raw matenals inventones 1,397 2,709
Puschazes not held in inventory -413 =157
Tranzport on purchases -344 -B13
TOTAL -2,022 -2,150

Non-stocked purchases mainly include electricity, fuel, small tools and laboratory supplies. The
increase in the item iz justified by the increase in H1 maintenance supplies and fuel in particular.

During the previous financial year, the Company had incurred significant shipping costs with Bulk
Atlantic.
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6.8.3. Personnel expenses and headcount

In thousands of euros 3171272022 3122021
Wages -2,282 -1,503
Change in provizion for paid leave -63 -63
Preminms T -52
Indemanities & miscellaneous benefits -111 -T2
Social secunty charges -952 -713
Share-bazed compenzation’™ -51 -699
Czpitalized production [development costs) 1,182 Ba0
Reclassifications of expenses 101 94
TOTAL -2,199 -2,154

%) Share-based compensation includes expenses calculated in accordance with IFRS 2 on free share
plans. Given the probability that the emplovees concerned will still be with the company at the end of
the vesting period, and the share price on the grant date, the free share allocation plans represent an
emplovee benefit for 2022 of €51 thousand, including emplover contributions, compared to €699
thousand the previous financial year.

The increase in salaries is directly linked to the increase in the number of employees.

Average Company headcount

31,/12,/2022 31/12/2021
Executives 20 14
Supernsors and technicians 17 10
Apprentices 1 2
TOTAL 38 7
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6.8.4. External expenses

In thousands of euros 31/12,/2022 31/12,/2021
One-off rentals -3 -116
Interview -350 -252
Study expenzes 900 -562
Remuneration of intermedizsies and fees -2,024 -2.451
Advertising 661 447
Travel, mussions and zeceptions -503 -202
Crther items 622 -39
Capitalised production (development costs) B13 1,092
ERDF grant 51
Grant— Evzopean aid and cybessecusity 17

=]

Subsidy — ecological wanuton spangboard

L

Grant — brand protection strategy

Reclassifications of expenses 3 12
TOTAL -4,252 -3,607

The increase in one-off leases is justified by the signing of several precarious leases that are not restated
under IFRS 16.

Study costs correspond to the purchase of materials for performing tests.
The fees consist mainly of accounting, legal and consulting fees (to determine the R&D tax credit in
particular but also for the preparation of IFRS consolidated financial staternents, CSTB studies, patent

management, laboratory tests, stock market consultancy or certification fees).

Advertising costs consist of strategy expenses and communication expenses. During the financial vear,
the Group took part in the Batimat and Sibca trade shows in Paris.

Capitalised production corresponds to the capitalisation of expenses for tests and laboratory tests,
mainly recognised as fees, and used to improve the technologies developed by the Group.
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6.8.5. Breakdown of other operating income and expenses

In thousands of euros 31/12/2022 317127201
QF investment subzidy reversed i profit or loss 274 130
Other products 247 133
Other expenzes -67 -33
TOTAL 454 233

The investuent grants are broken dows gz follows:

QP investment subsidy reverzed in profit or loss 311122022 31/12/2021

Feversal of resezrch tax credit 240 136
Beverzal of CIT grant ] 3
Beverzal of grant on interest-free advancs 10 14
Beverzal of ERDF prants for the mamifactuing process 5 &
TOTAL 274 150

Ozher curvent income i derailed ar follows:

Other products 3112/ 2022 31/12/2021

Drepraciaton and ameortsaton capitalized for development costs 216 170
Other products 3 7
TOTAL 247 183

6.8.6. Breakdown of other operating income and expenses

In thouszands of euros 31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Zale price of non-current azzets sold 108
AW of assets zold -108
Feeverzal of badodll 1075
Other non-recurring income and expenzes an 4
TOTAL 1,104 4

Other operating income mainly conzists of the reversal of the HOFFMANN BROYAGE badwill (ses
Note 6.1.2).
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6.8.7. Cost of net debt

Net borrowing cost

In thousands of euros 3f1z/2022 310127201
Income from UCITS (in the fom of bonds) 420 408
Current aceount income 2 7
Reverzal of impaimment of TCITS (in the form of bonds) &0 112
Cash and cash equivalents 490 327
Interest on borrowings -232 -182
Interest om leases -72 -B5
Interest om operating leaszes =27 =27
Interest om FLA 1 reparzble aid =38 =30
Interest om repavable EPI grant -10 -14
Interest on participating Totl loan -2 -3
Interest on FDL Fegion loan -T1 -3
Bank interest -11 -4
Deepreciation of UCITS (in the form of bonds) -1,128
Gross bormowing cost -1,610 -3%6
Met borrowing cost -1,111 131

The cost of net borrowing cost includes interest on borrowings and other financial habilities and
investment income.
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6.9.Cash flow statement

The following options were selected:

- Interest and dividends paid are classified as financing cash flows because they zre the cost of
obtaining financial resousces or returns on investments.

The change in cash flow reflects changes in the Company’s actwity.

The notes below detail certain items in the statement of cash flows.

691

Disposal pace 6.8.6 -108

Net caymg amoumt 6.8.6 106

Gains and Josses on disposals 1

6.9.2

Accrzed Moome tax expense 37 194
Deferrad tax expeause -2,682 -1,857
Tax daderal

I 12X &xp (inchuding deferred tax) 6101 -2,626 -1,663
693

Tax recerrahle /parzble at begiuming of year 6101 13 -2
New consoldation scope 2

Accnsad moome tax expense b 9
Tax receivable, payzble at dosng 6.10.1 -16 -13
Tax paid 0 -7
6.9.4

Change i ivventodes 6.7.6 -1,792 -2,711
- Entry mto soope 283

Change in inventories in WCR -1,550 -2,711
6.9.5

Change I trade racerrables 6.2.7 =75 -1,799
- Exery mato soope 238

Change in trade receivables in WCR 183 -1,799
6.9.6

Crher cuxyent 2ssets (excindmy loans xxd paaravtess) 627 7ot -473
- Entry mito soope 42

Change in other current assets in WCR 833 -473
6.9.7

Change i trade parakles 6.7.15 -1,950 3,377
- Vacation 2 debts ow nou-currant assets 6.7.15 1,957 -2,170
- Exery mto soope -90

Change in trade payables in WCR. -103 1,408
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G0.E

Chamae i other carreaes Habilities 6.7.15 250 304
Ferarsal of prawts 683 i 130
- Entry pto soape -TZ

Oxtber cumrens lizbiliti=s 453 634
600

Acquisiticens of won-cament assets 6.71and a2 14,342 -14,231
- New pmtals 6.7.10 241 151
- Varatian by debbs om noo-enrret assets 6.715 -1,837 2,170
Acquisitions of non-current asseis -1 11E -11 8ol
S0.10

Disposal price 686 108

- Freparmast of an opemtmp laase nbdine

Disposals of non-cummsnt assets 106

G

Other fawcial assets at begimive of pecod 6.7.3 11,684 10,073
Other Snaevcial gssets at cosing 673 -10, 654 -11,684
Change in non-current assets 1,020 -1,612
Mentlisation of inpzinneat 673 -1,058 112
- Entry mato soape 24

Change in loans and advances granted on non-current zssets -15 -1,499
&01r

Expepnas related to the PO net of sappoete e 3 -2 -Tie
- Inpome tax o costs pelated to the TP -1 -240
Expenzes related to the IPO that gemerated 2 cash carfiow -3 -050
G013

Mew bomrosiess 6.7.40 ERE] 11,327
- New enpals 6.7.40 241 -141
Mew bomowings 2,735 11,166
6014

Femaresees of borronings 6.7.10 -3,716 -2,24%
Decrezse i mispallomecys el Jaivt 6.7.10

Repayments of borroaings -3,716 -1,243
s013

Met boerooing cost 687 -1,111 131
Drepreciatios of CITS (n the fonm of bowds) 6.8.7 1,058 -112
Adjusted cost of net barrowing cost -52 i
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0.10. Other information

6.10.1. Tax

Balance sheet assets (in thousands of enros)

31,12/ 2022 311272021
MOM-CURRENT ASSETE
Deferrad tax 0,878 7,357
CURREINT ARSETS
Tax receirable 1& 13
TOTAL ASEETS 0,594 7,270

¢ Tax receivable from parent company Snancial stztements excluding CIR and CII

Balance sheer fabilinies (in thousands of euros)

3/12/20%2 31/12/2021
Mon-current liabilites
Dieferred tax 207
CURRENT LIABILITIESR
Tax payzhle
TOTAL ITABILITIES 27 -

2 Tax debt from parent company fnancial statements exchiding CIR and CIT

Net tax receivable (In thonsands of euros)

Current Mon-current

31712/2022  312/2071 | 31/12/2022 31/12/2021

INet tax receivable 16 13
IMet tax liahility
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Analysis ef income tax expense (in thousands of euros)

31/12/2022  31/12/2021

Accounting income before tax 9,145 -7,225
Theoretical tax income 2,286 1,806
Impact of definitively non-deductible expenszes net of 0 152
definitively non-taxable income -
Impact of tax credits 1 g
Feversal of badwall 269

Impact of tax rate differances

Effective tax income/expense 2,626 1,663

The Company’s tax income was €2,626 thousand in 2022 and €1,663 thousand in 2021.

6.10.2. Related parties
In accordance with IAS 24, the Company discloses information relating to significant transactions

between related parties when they do not constitute flows within the Company or when these
transactions are carried out with entifies over which control or sipnificant influence is identified.
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The impact of relationships with related parties on various items in the statement of financial position
and income statement i3 a3 follows:

Assets 31122022 31/12/2021
Property, plant and equipment 4529 2,012
Total non-current assets 4,829 2,012
Trade zeceivables 119
Other current azsets
Total current assets 119 9
TOTAL ASSETS 4,047 2,021
Liabilities 3112 /2022 3171272021
Borrowings and financial debt
Trade payzbles lo4 641
Crther currant hahiditias
Total current hiabilities 1a4 641
TOTAL LIABILITIES la4 641
3171272022 /1272011
External expenszes -123 -52
Orther operating income and expenses 1
OPERATING INCOME -123 -81
Orther financial income and expenses
CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME -123 -81
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6.10.3. Compensation of key executives

The Company has defined and limited the main executives to the executive corporate officers, narnely
Chairperson of the Management Board of HOFFMANN GREEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES
Mr Julien BElanchard and member of the Management Board Mr David Hoffmann. Compensation
paid to key executives breaks down as follows (in thousands of euros):

In thousands of euros 3171272022 3171272021

Compensation Chairperson of the Manzgement Board 137 138
Socizl seconty contnbutons Chaisperson of the 57 57
Ianagement Board
Compensztion Member of the Management Boasd 139 139
Social secunty contnbutions Member of the Managemant

] G4 G4
Boad
Executive compensation 398 398

Managers do not recerve:
- short-term benefits;
- post-employment benefits;
- other long-term benefits;
- temmination benefits;
- share-based pavments.

Benefits in kind are included in the items “Salaries of the Chairperson of the Management Board™ and
“Member of the Management Board™.
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6.10.4. Statutory Auditors’ fees

31/12,/2022 3112200
Statotory Starstory
Auditors Netwrork And:tors Network
[EFLIG) [KFPLIG)
Cernficaton and hmited half-yearly review of individual
and consolidated financial statements
v Izsuer 33 46
* Fully conzolidated subsidiaries
Sub-total 53 48
Services other than certification of financial statements
v Issuer
* Fully conzolidated subsidiaries
Sub-total - -
TOTAL Stamutory Auditors’ fees a3 - 46 -

6.10.5. Operational performance indicators of the Company

EBITDA

In thousands of euros

31,/12/2022 3171272021

Profit (loss) from contnuing operatons -9,338 -7.360
Depreciation and amortisation 2,238 2,118
Impzioment of assets net of reversals 133 14
EBITDA! -6,617 -5,228
Ar a perewtage of revenug -298.2%% -219.6%

! EBITDA: EBITDA is defined by the Company as current operating income before depreciztion, amortisation and
impairment net of reversals and addition: to and reversals of provisions for rizks and charges.
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6.11. Risks borne by financial instruments

6.11.1. Amnalysis of covenants

The Company is not subject to any covenant for the 2021 and 2022 financial years.

6.11.2. Marurity of financial assets and liabilities

2022
Balance ; 1 At more
ASEETS (in thousands of auros) sheet Lezs A_t o At A_t four A_I five than five
Omne Year Vears years years years
value - - - - - VEALS

Other finanecizl azzetz 10,664

Other equity securities 11 11

UCITE (in the fonm of honds) 10,000 10,000

Drepreciation of UCITS {in the form of bonds) -1,128 -1,12

Other long-tenn investments (works councl == =

S - 33 33
portions)

Dreposits and puarantess 1,72 730 200 TTE
Other non-current assets 33 5 5 3 3 15
Mon-current financial azsets 10,699 o 3 3 0,627 205 856
Inventores and work-n-progress 4,550 4,330
Trade receivables 2319 2310
Oither ourrent assets 2,632
Advances and deposits 103 198
Zocial security receivabies 0 o
Tax receivables 2,141 2,141
Other operating receivables 36 36
Frepaid expenzas 257 257
Cazh and cazh equivalents 30,247 30,247
Current financial assets 39,763 39,763 ] ] 1] ] ]
TOTAL FINAMCIAL ASSETS 50,466 39,768 3 3 9,627 203 836

-119-



CATALYST OF

CARBON TRANSITION

Balance i 1 At more
Liabilities {In thousands of euros) sheet Lesa A_t oo M ﬁf four ﬁ_t frve than five
valua one year VEArs years VEears Years vears

Bormowings and financial debt 19,603

Bank bomowings 12423 3,880 3434 1043 1,630 ]
ADEME advance 1,006 109 ] 207 218 472
Eepavable BFI grants 169 D5 T4 0 0 0
Fepavable BFI grants 453 63 131 133 135 ]
FDL Fegion loan 2,000 400 400 400 400 400
Liabilities on rentals 3,430 G306 333 300 224 1,528
Accmed interest 110 2 3 19 19 43
Other non-current liabilities 3,082

BED tax credit 21513 233 233 233 253 1,172
Investment tax credit 12 13 5 13 13 &7
EF1I - Grant on zero-rate advanece a0 o ] 7 4

Investoment grants 409 G G 16 16 345
INon-current financial liabilities 212687 ] 5,089 4,072 4,363 3,007 4,663
Borrowings and financial debt 4,913

Bank bomowings 3,835 3,833

ADEME advance 103 103

Fepavable EFT grants 03 03

Total equity loan 5 86

Liahilities on rentals GEG5 G836

Accmed interest 03 03

Trade payables 3,837 3,837
Other current liabilities 1,302

Tax and emplovee-related payables 063 063

Crther Habilities ] 0

Frepaid products and services 330 330
Current financial liabilities 10,077 10,077 1] ] ] ] ]
TOTAL FINATWCIAL LIABITLITIES 32,764 10,077 5,089 4,972 4,363 3,007 4,663
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2021
At more
ASSETS (in thousands of euros) l!s.la::we Laga than A_t ™o .n!.tﬂa:\ee AT four R_‘[ five than five
cheet value  one year years years years years veara
Oither financial aszsts 11,684
Orther equity securities 1 1
UCITS (i the form of bonds) 10,000 10,000
Drepreciation of UCITS (in the form of bonds) -58 -5
Crther long-term investments (works couneil =0 =0
portons)
Drgposits and gpuarantess 1,703 T30 033
Other non-cusTent assets 43 3 3 3 3 3 20
INon-current financial azsats 11,730 3 3 3 3 10,686 1,023
Inventories and work-in-progress 2,756 2,736
Trade receivahles 2,244 2,244
Cither ourrent azzets 3,443
Advances and deposits 3| 51
Social security receivables 7 7
Tax raceivahles 3,003 3,003
Crther operating receivables 11 11
Prepaid expenzes 370 370
Cazh and cazh equivalents 06,704 35,704
Current financial azsets 63,148 63,148 ] ] 0 ] ]
TOTAL FINATCIAL ASSETS 76,877 63,133 3 3 3 10,686 1,023
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At more
Lisbilities (In t ands of 5) Bala::w:e Lazs than A_t o Atﬂ:l.t\ee A} four ﬁ_‘l: five than five
sheet value  one year years years years years vEars
Bomowings and financial debt 21,196
Bank bomrowings 13,811 3444 3464 3,006 2434 1443
ADEME advance 1,104 347 330 12 207 0
Eepayable EFT grants 262 03 D& T4 ] ]
Repayable EFT grants ] ] ] ] ] ]
PDL Regicn loan 2,000 o 400 400 400 500
Total equity loan 86 86 o o o o
Liabilifes on rentals 3,518 618 366 507 D 1,763
Accmed interest 115 24 24 24 24 i
Oither non-current liabilities 2,680
Employee-related payables o o
BED tax credit 2,138 230 269 269 269 1,091
Investment tax cradit 7 o o o o 2
EFI - Grant on zerc-rate adrance 13 7 4 1
Investment grants 423 18 16 16 16 358
MNon-current financial liabilities 23,876 ] 4913 5,207 4,497 3,743 5,516
Bomowings and financial debt 3,701
Bank bomowings 2,623 2,623
Eepavable EFT grants o0 o0
Eepavakle BFT prants ]
FDL Fepicn loan ] ]
Total equity loan 147 147
Liabilities on rentals 533 533
WVardous financizl Babilites ] ]
Trade payables 5,808 5,808
Other current liabilities 1,042
Tax and emploves-related payables 757 757
Crther Dabilites 10 10
Frepaid products and services T4 T4
Current financial Habilities 10,350 10,350 ] ] ] ] ]
TOTAL FINAMCIAL LTABILITIES 34426 10,550 4,513 5,207 4,497 3,743 3,316
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6.11.3. Fair value of financial assets and habilities

The Company’s aszetz and liabilities are measured as follows for each year according to the valuation
categories defined by IFES o:

In thousands of 2 31,/12/2022 Value — statement of Anancial position under
IFR= 9
Value — - -
Fair value Fair value .
Sections in the statement of financial position St;temep:juf through through C;;SEE]
P!';:?;‘:‘“ profit or loss equity
INon-owrent fnancial assets 10,6654 10,000 aa4
trade receivables 23e 2310
Other receivables 1,687 2687
Czzh and cazh equivalents 30,247 30,247
Total sections comprising an asset position 45,917 40,247 664 3,008
Current financial lahilities 4018 4018
INon-owrent fnancial lizbidides 18,503 10,503
Trade pavables 3,837 3,857
Other hiahilities 4,384 4,354
Total sections comprising an asset position 32,764 - - 32,764
In thousands of g 317122021 Value — statement of financial position under
IFR= 9
Value — - -
Fair value Fair value .
Sections in the statement of Ainancial position Stﬁatemfj:luf through through c;::md
PE:?;;“ profit or lose equity
INon-owrent fnancial assets 11,584 10,000 1684
Trada receivables 2244 2244
Other recerrables 3488 3488
Czzh and cazh equivalents 36,704 56,704
Total sections comprising an asset position 74,121 &6, T4 1,684 3,733
Current financial Hahilities 3,701 3,701
INon-owrent fnancial lizbidides 21,194 21,194
Trade pavables 3,808 3,808
Oither hiahilities 3,722 3,722
Total sections comprising an asset position 3 426 - - 34 426
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6.11.4. Off-balance sheet commitments by matarity

Financial commitments ar 31 December 2022

In thousands of euros TOTAL 2023 2024 2023 20248 027 g’?;;

Cormmitments given

Pledgng of tenn deposits 1,000 1,000

Cders of non-current assets 2231 2231

Interest on FIA 1 repayable advances 232 55 26 30 35 43 43

Total interezt on conditioned loan [ a

Imterest on FDL Ragion loan 132 10 41 3z 24 18 ]

Interest on bomowings T4E 257 207 143 i 41 ]

Interest om leases 330 &2 57 30 42 37 102

Interest omn rentals [+ 21 17 12 B ) 5
Total commitments given 4,301 2,657 348 1,269 219 142 166
Commifments received

Cders of non-current assets 2231 2231

Interest on FLA 1 repayzble advances 252 55 26 30 35 43 43

Total interezt on conditioned loan [ a

Interest on PDL Region loan 132 10 41 3z 24 16 ]

Interest on bomowings T4E 257 207 143 i 41 ]

Interest om leases 330 &2 57 30 42 37 102

Interest omn rentals [+ 21 17 12 B ) 5
Total commitments received 3,301 2,637 HE 269 219 142 le6
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Financial comnutments ar 31 Decamber 2077

In thouwsands of suros TOTAL 2022 2023 2024 2025 2025 Amf:f

Conpmitments giver

Fledging of teom deposits 1,000 1,000

Crders of non-current assets 2835 S5

Imterest cn PIA 1 repayable advances 125 43 23 27 17 10

Total intezest on conditonsd loan 2 2 a

Iterest o FDVL Regioe loan 172 10 41 41 22 24 24

Iptexest ca borromdngs 731 223 109 120 100 57 22

Imtevest cn remls 477 &7 78 &7 E-] 47 141
Total commitmeants given 12,424 0,250 358 254 1208 139 157
Conunitments reosived

Crders of non-cumrent assets ol EE5

Dntexest on PLA 1 repayeble advamces 134 43 23 a7 17 1o

Totzl intezest cu conditionsd loan 2 2 Q

Intexest on DL Region loan 172 10 41 41 2 a4 a4

Dnwtexest on bomowings T3l 223 192 130 100 37 22

Trtexest oo reprtals 477 &Y 3 &7 ] 47 141
Total commitments received 11,424 10,250 358 254 2046 139 157

As collateral for a loan of €2,350 thousand taken out with a banking institution, whose outstanding
cepital was €1.336 thousand at 31 December 2022 HOFFMANN GREEN CEMENT
TECHNOLOGIES pledged a term deposit for 2n emount of €1 million

As guarantee for two loans of €435 thousand each with a total outstanding capital of €163 thousand
2t 31 December 2022, HOFFLLANN EROTAGE granted a lender’s privilege in the amount of €433
thousand for each of the two loens. These same loans zre backed by 2 33% OZEQ guarantze.

HOFFMANN GEEEN CEMENT TECHNOLCHGIES is cucrently building its H2 building, nezr its
emsting H1 plant. In thus respect, the amount of orders pleced to date wath workers on the
cotistruction site amounted to €224 million, of which €21.3 million had zlready been invoiced and
recorded at 31 December 2022, The reciprocel commitment on H2 construction therefore zmounts
to €0.9 mulbon at 31 December 2022

HOFFMANN GREEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES is zl=o studying the construction of a storage
project at the port of La Fochelle. In this respect, the amount of orders placed to date with wotlers
on the construction site amounts to €335 thousand, of which €235 thousand was already invoiced and
recorded at 31 December 2022, The recipeocal commitment on the project therefore amounts to €100
thousand =t 31 December 2022, The estimated overall budget to date amounts to £10.0 millian.

HOFFMANN GEREEN CEMENT TECHMNOLOGIES 1= alse buildiag an “F&DF concrete mixing
plant. In this respect, the amount of orders placed to date with workers on the construction =ite
amounts to €2.230 thouwsand, of which €1,937 thousand was already invoiced and recorded at 31
December 2022, The reciproc:l commitment on the project therefore amounts to €263 thousand =t
31 December 2022, The estimated overzll budget to date zmounts to €2.3 million
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6.11.5. Operating segments

The breakdown of revenus between cement sales end services and the breakdown of revermoe between
France and Expost iz presented in secton 6.3.1.

The Company has no expost business.

Fevenue is low. The Company is in the start-op phase.
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STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE IFRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 - CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS IFRS 2022 AND 2021
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Horfmann Green Cement
fechnologies SA

Statutory auditors’ report on the consolidated
financial statements

For the year ended December 31st, 2022
Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies S.A
La Bretaudiére - Chaillé-sous-les-Ormeaux - 85310 Rives de I'Yon
Reference : GC-23-71
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KPMG S.A.
7 Boulevard Albert Einstein
3 BP 41125

44311 Nantes Cedex 3

This is a translation into English of the statutory auditors’ report on the financial statements of the Company
issued in French and it is provided solely for the convenience of English speaking users.

This statutory auditors’ report includes information required by European regulation and French law, such
as information about the appointment of the statutory auditors or verification of the management report and
other documents provided to shareholders.

This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and
professional auditing standards applicable in France.

Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies S.A.

Registered office: La Bretaudiére - Chaillé-sous-les-Ormeaux - 85310 Rives de I'Yon

Statutory auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended December 31st, 2022

Dear Shareholders,,
Opinion
In compliance with the engagement entrusted to us by your Annual General Meeting, we have

audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hoffmann Green Cement
Technologies S.A. for the year ended December 31%, 2022.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and
liabilities and of the financial position of the Group as at December 31%, 2022 and of the results
of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

Audit Framework

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Statutory Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
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KPMG
Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies S.A.
Statutory auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements
17 April 2023
Independence

We conducted our audit engagement in compliance with independence requirements of the
french Commercial Code (code de commerce) and the French Code of Ethics (code de
déontologie) for statutory auditors’ rules applicable to us, for the period from january 1%t 2022 to
the date of our report.

Justification of Assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L.823-9 and R.823-70f the French Commercial
Code (“Code de commerce”) relating to the justification of our assessments, we inform you that
the most important assessments made by us according to our professional judgment focused on
the appropriateness of the accounting principles used, the reasonableness of the significant
estimates and the presentation of consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, relating
particularly to the following matters : The recognition of deferred taxes relating to activated
deficits.

These assessments were made in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. We do not provide a separate
opinion on specific items of the consolidated financial statements.

Specific Verifications

We have also performed, in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, the
specific verifications required by laws and regulations of the Group information given in the
management report of the Board of Directors.

We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its consistency with the consolidated
financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is expected to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors.

GC-23-71 - For the year ended December 31st, 2022 3
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KPMG

Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies S.A.
Statutory auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements
17 April 2023

Statutory Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our role is to issue a report on the consolidated financial statements. Our objective is to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with professional standards will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As specified in Article L.823-10-1 of the French Commercial Code (code de commerce), our
statutory audit does not include assurance on the viability of the Company or the quality of
management of the affairs of the Company.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with professional standards applicable in France,
the statutory auditor exercises professional judgment throughout the audit and furthermore:

¢ Identifies and assesses the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, designs and performs audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtains audit evidence considered to be sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for his opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ Obtains an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

* Evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management in the consolidated
financial statements.

* Assesses the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. This assessment is based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of his audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. If the statutory auditor concludes that a
material uncertainty exists, there is a requirement to draw attention in the audit report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are not
provided or inadequate, to modify the opinion expressed therein.

* Evaluates the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements and assesses
whether these statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

GC-283-71 - For the year ended December 31st, 2022 4
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Statutory auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements
17 April 2023

*  Obtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. The statutory auditor is responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the consolidated financial statements and for the opinion
expressed on these consolidated financial statements.

Nantes, on the 17 April 2023

The Statutory Auditor

French original signed by Gwenaél Chedaleux - Partner

GC-23-71 - For the year ended December 31st, 2022 <
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2.3. PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

SADIR HOFFMANN GREEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES

La Bretaudiére
CHAILLE S50US LES ORMEAUX
85310 RIWES DE L'YON

Financial Statements from 01/01/2022 to 31/12/2022
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A& Presentation of the annual financial statements

PRESENTATION OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT S

In accordance with the mission entrusted to us, we camied out a presentation of the annual financial statements
of the company SADIR HOFFMANM GREEM CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES for the financial year from 01/01/2022
to 31272022,

These annual financial statements are attached to this report. They contain the following data:

Totsl statement of financisl position

Revenus

Net income (loss)

We performed the procedures required by the professional standards of the Conseil Supérieur de I'Ordre des
Experts-Compiables applicable to the presentation of the financial statements.

Sigmed in Les Herbiers
on 29 March 2023

Julien Morand Fhilippe Aucher
Chartered Accountant Chartered Accountant
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& Income statement

r. | FF 2

Operating income™
Sales of goods 228 9,533 -9.304( -ETED
Production sold (goods) 1627402 2.733,308 505,908 -27.13
Production sold (senices) 80,576 223415 157,181 T0.25
MNet revenue 2,008 207 2,466 256 -458 049 1857

Of which for export and intrs-EU delivanzs 214 3701 147,721 BE, E43 4512
Praduction held a5 imentory 133,224 1,213 13211 NS
Capitalised production 2210837 2,130,802 80,035 aTa
Oiperating subsidies 8,353 87,230 481,336 -8B
Reversals of provisions (& deprec.), Cther 131,415 108,138 25,216 2374

148,891 142,124

Operating expenses™
Purchases of goods 47,855 1,582 15,873 48.01
Changes in inventaories -31,455 -18,854 -12.8M 68.62
Purchazes of raw matenals and other supplies 3573251 4,513,240 -B40,MEl  -20083
Changes in inventories -1.474,230 -2 600,831 1218382 -453
Cither purchases and extemal expenses (3) 6,420,433 5,848,978 573,457 .81
Tames and simillar payments 83,732 G7.351 19,331 2878
Wapes and salaries 2,375,257 1,778,200 B8, 457 3368
Socisl security charges 1,108,822 T4r.802 359,080 48.01
Depreciation, grnarisation and impainment:
- Om non-current assets: depreciafion allowance 1.293,553 1.588,145 07,407 18.38
- n non-current assets: provisions for
impairrnent
- Om current assets: provisions for impairment 230,000 230,000
- For risks and charges: allecations to provisions
Crther expensas 184,855 82,817 84238 10189

Total operating expenses (11} 14,384,814 2,441 245

OPERATING INCOME (1-HI) -9, 745 587 -2,581,244
Share of income from operations

Profit allocated or loss fransfemed (1)
Loss incurred or profit transfemed (W)
Financial income

Participation™ 106 106

Crther secunties and receivables

Crther inferest income™ 430,430 414,854 15,535 T4
Reversals of provisions and impairment 73,095 112,295 -3g.1880  -34@
Positive exchange differences

Met proceeds on disposals of marketable

securities.

Total financial income (W) 503.891 537,248 -23.558 -4 47
financial expenses

Depreciation, amortisation and impainrment 1,127,788 4,333 1123425 NS
Imterest and similar expenses" -338,437 273,828 1,881 33
MNepgative exchange differences a7 24 28 Ba.14
Met expenses on salkes of marketsble securities

Total financial expenses (W) 1,468,322 281,18 1215314 432 47
FINANCIAL INCOME (V-V} 992 641 246,230 1,238,872 503.14

CURRENT PROFIT before tax 10,738,228 6,918,112 3,820,116 5522
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& Income statement (continued)

JMM22021

Exceptional income

On management transactions -41 874 37,174
On capital fransactions 123,385 89151 34214
Reversals of provisions and impairment and other expenses

Total non-recurring income (V1) 165,239 83,851 i
e e I O
Exceptional expenses
On management transactions 15,188 822 14 364
On capital fransactions 274,091 38 797
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 476,540 287 955
Total exceptional expenses (VI 765,817 327 574 438,243

EXCEPTIONAL INCOME (VII-VIIN)

600,578 -233,7123 -366,855

Employee profit-sharing (1)
Income tax () -689,938 -374 738 184,850 -21.13

Total income (1 + 1l + ¥ + VII)
Total expenses (11 + IV + VI + VIl + X + X}

5,308,257
LERLLT N

5,400,426
11,677,472

92,169 -1.71
4279653  26.65

PROFIT OR LOSS -10,648,868 6,277,046 4,371,822 69.65

(8} Including:
- Real estafe leasing fees 174,191 156,722 17,465 11.15
- Real estafe leasing fees 296,676 296,100 57| 0.19)

(1) Including income from prior yesrs

(2} Including expenses relating to prior years
(3} OF which income from related enfities

{(4) OF which inferest from related entifies
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A Balance sheet asset

Uncalled subscribed capital
HNOM-CURRENT ASSET
Intangible aszets
Start-up costs
Research and development expense

Caoncessions, patents, licences, software, rights & similar
Goodwill

COther intangible assets

Adwvances and prepayments on intangible assats

Land

Buildings

Technical facilities, industrial equiprmeant and toocls
Other property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment in prograss
Adwvances and deposits

Imvestments (equity method) Other
imvestments

Receivablas from investments Other long-
term imvestments

Loans

Other financial investrments
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

823,702
1,082,802
3,204,078
1,980,815

25,847 487

1,782,847
50,000

2,358,855
50,082,827

127,01
182,245
3,583,215
516,195

5617124

TET.E20

Property, plant and equipment

Ga6.621
000,357
4,731,743
1373618
25,847 487

1,702 047

50,000

2,700,855

44 465,703

732,355
044,031
5367701
1,232,815
12,888,810

500
50,000

2,510,350
29,034 373

Inventories and work-in-progress

R=w materials and other supplies
Wiork in progress (goods and services)
Intermediate and finished products
Goods
Advances and deposits paid on omders
Receivables'

trade receivables
Other receivables
Capital subscribed snd called, not paid
Mizcellaneous
Impesiment securifies
Cash at bank and in hand
Prepaid expenses™
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
Loan issuance costs to be amoerdised
Bond redemption premiums
Currency translation adjustments
GRAND TOTAL
(1} tncluding lease rightz
(2) OFf which at lez= than one yesr (gross)
[3) OF which at more than one yesr (grozs)

4,210,777

134,437
50,108
197,869

2,483,711
2,081,775

32,423,423
,358,520
320,383
48,810,003

093,892,830

1,127 788

1,347,788

6,064,912

4,210,777

134,437
50,108
197,869

2,283,731
2,081,775

31,205,835

6,388,520
328,383
47,462,215

91,927,918

178,293
43,075

50,416.948
16,218.510
443,104

75,192,490

104,227,569

285721
85,53
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A Liability balance sheet

EQUITY

Capital

Share premiums, mearger premiums, contribution premiums, afe.
Revsluation differencs

Legsal reserve

Statutory or contractual reserves

Regulated resenves

Other reserves

Retzined eamings

INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (profit or loss)

TOTAL EQUITY

14,634,736
83,321,358

1,042

-21,831,742
10,648,868

14,502,387
83,250,048

OTHER CAPITAL

Income from the issuance of perticipating securities
Conditionsl advances

TOTAL OTHER CAFITAL

PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCIES AND CHARGES
Prowisions for risks
Provisions for expenses

TOTAL PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCIES AND CHARGES

LIABILITIES™

Convertible bonds

Other bonds

Bormrowings and debis from credit institutions”™
Miscellansous loans and borrowings"™'

Advances and deposits received on orders in progress
Trade payables

Tax and employee-ralated payables

Amounts paysble on non-curment assets and related accounts
Other iabilities

Prepaid products and services

TOTAL DEBT

Transistion differences - iabilfies I

GRAND TOTAL

{1} Of which at more than one year (a)
{1} Of which at less than one year (3)
{2) Of which bank overdrafts and balances
{3} Of which participating loans
(=) With the exception of advances and deposits received on ordars in progress

135,092

168,110,518
254,885

2,584,124
801,477
1,135,818
15,395

20,992 119

91,927,918

12488016
8.485,202

242283

16,433.741
408,085

2,815,301
608 652
3072912
18,057
23,455,052

104,227,369

14,108,376
9,345,676

308,419
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Significant events during the financial year with an accounting impact
ACCOUNTING TRANSACTIONS AND OPTIONS
1) Treasury shares in HOFFMANM GREEN CEMENT TECHMOLOGIES

Dwring the 2022 financial year, HGCT repurchased some of ifs shares. The main changes
during the year are as follows:

- number of shares in stock at 1 Januwary 2021: 9,554 shares;

- number of shares purchased during the financial year. 58, 338 shares;

- total purchase value of the shares: €756,700;

- number of shares sold during the financial year: 54,201 shares;

- total value of the sale of shares: €711,459.

This resulted in an overall capital loss of €174,252 and an overall capital gain of €18,413.
The value of the shares at 31/12/2022 was €10.16 per ghare.

Af 31M22022, HGCT held 13,691 shares valued at the original acquisition price of €£135,924 (account 277100).
The valuation of these 13,691 shares at 31 December 2021 was £13%,101, i.e. an unrealised capital
gain of €3, 177.

2} Comments on intangible assets

HGCT records development costs that comply with the capitalization conditions as assets.

The=e costs can be capitalised because they relate to clearly individualized projects with a serious chance of
technical success and commercial profitability.

Ag the company complied with all the activation criteria, the following amounts were capitalised:

- for the 2017 financial year. €308 thouszand;

- for the 2018 financial year: €452 thousand;

- for the 2019 financial year: €1,068 thousand;

- for the 2020 financial year: €1,145 thousand;

- for the 2021 financial year: €2,131 thousand;

- for the 2022 financial year: €2,211 thousand.

The capitalized production for the yvear at 31/12/22022 is recorded in intangible assets for an amount of
£1,944 thousand, in intangible assets in progress for €55 thousand and in Property, plant and equipment in
progress for €212 thousand (H2 building and concrete plant).

This product mainly concerns the development of products related to existing and new technologies.
These amounts relate to clearly individualised projects.
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These costs are therefore recognised in accounts 203000 and 232000 by the counterparty of a capitalised
production account 722000. These costs relate to personnel costs allocated to projects, the depreciation of
equipment needed for research and subconiracting to research organizations approved by the Ministry.

These assets are subject to economic depreciation over a period of ten years and tax-exempt depreciation over
five years.

As a result of a merger, the HGCT company acquired €552 576 corresponding to the

recovery of a unique industrial process. This intangible asset is recognised in 208100 account and is not
subject to economic amortisation or impairment at 31/12/2022. This process can be duplicated

In the construction of new plants.

3) Aid and subsidies

3.1 Mew grants during the year

HGCT was awarded an operating grant of:

- €5/, 000 for export - regional system:;

- €1,653 for the energy springboard by ADEME.

Thiz aid is fully recognized in income over the financial year.

3.2 Existing BFI grant

- €400,000 for the H2 invesiment.

As the new production unit (H2) is under construction, the corresponding subsidy is not amortised at 31/12/2022;
no income is therefore recognised for the financial year. The €200,000 subsidy was received on 06/M2/2022.

3.3 FEDER 2 grant

The outstanding FEDER grant, for an amount of €953 360 was received in September 2022 and December
2022

-143-



CATALYST OF

CARBON TRANSITION

# Significant events

3.4 Obtaining a BFI repayable advance (FIA 4)

On 14 April 2022, BpiFrance awarded the HGCT company an innovation grant for the following project:
Development of H-EVA technology.

Part of this recoverable advance of €700,000 was received during the 2022 financial year, in the amount of
€450,000.

This advance represents a grant rate of 44.91% on eligible expenses of €1,553,551. The balance of the
subsidy (£210,000) must be received in December 2023.

It will be repaid in instalments from 2024 to 2028 (five annual instalments of €140, 000).

4) Consequences of the COVID-19 event on the annual financial statements:
The impact of the COVID-19 health crisis on the Company's assets, financial position and results is as follows:

In 2020, lockdown measures and border closures due to the COVID-19 health crisis had an impact on the
Company's ordinary course of business.

In 2022, the Company was impacted by the effects of the COVID-19 crisis but to a lesser extent than in 2020

and 2021.
The impact is not measurable.

5} Implementation of a free share allocation plan for the Company’s ordinary shares

By decision of the Management Board on 18 January 2022, it was decided to grant free shares of the
Company to employees subject to conditions.

This is a new plan, in addition to plans Nos. 1, 2 and 3 already in place. It includes the following
procedures:

Plan 4. 14,443 shares to be issued

The shares will only vest after a vesting period of three years, ie. on 18 January 2025. These shares must be
retained and may not be disposed of by the beneficiaries uniil one year after the vesting period.
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6/ Capital increase

0On 13/01/2022 and 04/01/2021, the Management Board decided to grant free Company shares to
employees subject to conditions:

- Plam 1: 29,038 shares;
- Plan 2: 8,094 shares.

The shares are only definitively acquired after a vesting period of 04/01/2022 {Plan no. 2} and. 13/01/2022 (Plan
no. 1).

These shares must be retained and may not be disposed of by the beneficiaries until one year after the vesting
period.

The Management Board decided to grant these shares to employees in accordance with the grant conditions
dated 04/01/2022 for plan Mo. 2 and 13/01/2022 for plan No. 1.

In this respect, new shares were issued under the following conditions during the 2022 financial year:

- Plan No. 2 on 4 January 2022 8 084 shares at the price of €24 .10 (current price), ie. a value of € 195,065;
- Plan No. 1 as of 13 January 2022: 24 255 shares at the price of €22.50 (current price), i e. a value of €545 738,

These free allocations generated social security contributions (social lump sum) of €148,161.

As a result, the Company's share capital will be increased by €32,349 corresponding to 32,349 new shares
issued at a par value of €1.

The amount of share capital therefore amounts to €14,634,736 at 31 December 2022, broken down into
14,634,736 shares with a par value of €1.

7! Allocation of cosis related to the capital increase to the share premium

The company has opted to allocate the costs related to the capital increase to the share premium.
In respect of an adjustment of expenses for the 2021 financial year, the company allocated an amount of €3, 123
on the share premium generating a corporate tax of €781, i.e. a net charge of €2,342.

-145-



CATALYST OF

CARBON TRANSITION

& Significant events

&/ Equity investments
8.1 - Hoffmann Broyage

By decision of the Management Board on 3 June 2022, HGCT acquired 100% of the shares of ABC Broyage.
The latter, itself holding 100% of the shares of AB Cesar.
This acquisition forms part of a strategy to control its manufacturing process and its supply of raw materials.

The acquisition of the 8,830 shares comprising the share capital of ABC Broyage, amountad to €1,696,322
(excluding acquisition costs).

Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies is appointed as Chairperson of the Company, as of 15 Sepiember
2022,

By decizion of the sole shareholder, dated 14 November 2022, the company changed its name to HOFFMANMN
BROYAGE.

By decision of the sole pariner, ABC Cesar (absorbed) was merged with Hoffmann Broyage (absorbing) with
legal effect from 21 December 2022, with retroactive tax and accounting effect at 1 January 2022.

8-2 Hofimann Green Cement Technologies Suisse SA

HGCT acquired a stake in Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies Switzerland in June 2022.

This equity investment is carried out as part of the creation of a public limited company under Swiss law. The
equity investment corresponds to 10% of the Company’s share capital (10,000 shares out of a total of
100,000) for 10,000 Swiss francs, corresponding to €9,853.

The purpose of this company will be to manufacture and market innovative cements with a very low
carbon footprint and related products in Switzerland, under a license agreement entered info with
HGCT.

9/ Construction H2
To develop iis activities and increase production volumes, HGCT decided to build a new plant named H2, based
in Bournezeau, near the H1 plant.

The amount of investments as at 31 December 2022 amounted to €21.5 million (non-current assets) out of an
overall budget estimated at €22.4 million fo date.
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Company name: 3ADIR HOFFMANN GREEN CEMENT TECHNOLOGIES

Motes to the balance sheet before distribution for the financial year ended 31 December 2022, for which the
total is €91,927 918 and to the income statement for the financial year, presented in list form, showing a loss of
£€10,648 865,

The financial year lasts 12 months, covering the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.
The notes and tables below form an integral part of the annual financial statements.
General rules

The annual financial statements for the year as at 31 December 2022 were prepared in accordance with
Regulation 2014-03 of the French Accounting Standards Authority (Autorité des Normes Comptables) of 5 June
2014, updated with various additional regulations at the date of the preparation of the aforementioned annual
financial statements.

The accounting agreements have been applied fairly in accordance with the principle of prudence, in
accordance with the basic assumptions:

- gQoing concern;

- consistency of accounting policies from one financial year to the next;

- independence of financial years;

and in accordance with the general rules for the preparation and presentation of annual financial statements.
The basic method used to value the items recorded in the accounts is the historical cost method.

Only significant information is stated. Unless otherwize stated, amounts are expressed in €.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are valued at their acquisition cost for assets acquired
against payment, at their production cost for assets produced by the company, at their market value for asseis
acquired free of charge and by way of exchange.

The cost of a non-current asset consists of its purchase price, including customs duties and non-recoverable
taxes, after deduction of rebates, commercial discounts and payment discounts of all directly attributable costs
incurred to bring the asset into profit. in place and in working order for its intended use. Transfer taxes, fees or
commissions and legal costs related to the acquisition are not included in this acquisition cost. All costs that are

not part of the purchase price of the asset and that cannot be directly related to the costs necessary to put the
asset in place and in working condition in accordance with planned use are recognised in expenses.
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The cost of a non-current asset produced by the company for itself is determined using the same principles as
for an acquired non-current asset. This production cost includes the purchase price of the materials consumed
and the costs attributable to preparation for the intended use after deduction of rebates and payment discounts.
Interest on loans specific to the production of non-current assets is not included in the production cost of these
non-current assets.

Depreciations
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life.

* Concessions, software and patents: 2 to & years
* Other intangible assets:
Research and development costs: 10 years

Industrial process: not amortised
* Land and development:
Land and facilities: 5 to 8 years
* Buildings: 15 to 30 years
* Technical facilities:
Industrial process amortised in batches of 1 to 10 years.
* Industrial equipment and tools: 3 to 5 years
* General installations, fixtures and fittings: 5 to 15 years
* Transport equipment: five years
* IT equipment: two to five years
* Furniture: three to five years

The depreciation period used is the useful life for assets that cannot be broken down at the outset.

At the reporting date, based on the internal and external information at its disposal, the Company assessed
whether there was any evidence that the assets could have significantly lost value.

The Company uses accelerated depreciation in order to benefit from the depreciation tax deduction for non-
current assets whose accounting period is longer than the period of tax use.

Start-up costs

The incorporation, transformation and initial establishment costs have been recorded as stari-up costs under
asscets.
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Equity securities
Equity securities are valued at their acquisition cost including ancillary costs.
Accelerated depreciation is then recorded to take into account the depreciation of these ancillary costs.
The inventory value of the shares comresponds to the value in use for the company. It is determined according
to the net assets of the subsidiary, its profitability and its future prospects. When the inventory value is less than
the acquisition cost, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference.
Inventories
The acquisition costs of inventories include the purchase price, customs duties and other taxes, excluding taxes
that may subsequently be recovered by the entity from the tax authorities, as well as transport, handling and
other costs, costs directly attributable to the cost of raw materials, goods, work in progress and finished products.
Trade discounts, rebates, cash discounts and other similar items are deducted to determine acquisition costs.
Manufactured products are valued at production cost including consumption, direct and indirect production
costs, and depreciation of goods used in production. The cost of sub-activity is excluded from the value of

inventories. Interest is excluded when valuing inventories.

Inventories are valued using the weighted average cost method. For practical reasons and unless there are
significant differences, the last known purchase price was used.

An impairment of inventories equal to the difference between the gross value determined according fo the
methods indicated above and the current market price or realisable value less proportional selling costs, is taken
into account when this gross value is greater than the other term stated.

Receivables

Receivables are valued at their nominal value. Impairment is recorded when the inventory value is lower than
the camying amount.

Provisions

Any current obligation resulting from a past event of the Company with regard to a third party, likely o be
estimated with sufficient reliability, and covering identified risks, is recognised as a provision.
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Loan issuance costs

Loan issuance costs are recognised immediately in expenses for the year.

Exceptional income and expenses

Maon-recurring income and expenses include items that are not related to the Company’s normal activity.

Pension commitment

The Company's commitments in terms of retirement benefits are calculated using the projected unit credit
method with final salaries, taking into account the provisions of the Collective Agreement, life expectancy and
presence in company, and a financial discount.

The actuarial assumpfions used are as follows:

- discount rate: 3.77%;

- salary growth rate: 4%;

- retirement age: 62;

- mortality rate table: (INSEE table 2014-2016).

Consequences of Covid-19

Covid-19is likely to have significant impacts on the assets, financial position and results of companies. Relevant
accounting information on these impacts is a key element of the financial statements for the period in question.

To this end, the Company has adopied a targeted approach consisting of presenting the main relevant impacts
on performance over the financial year and on its financial posifion. This approach is recommended by the
Autorité des Normes Comptables in its note of 18 May 2020 to provide information on the effects of Covid-19 in
the financial statements.

As Covid-19 is still ongoing at the date of preparation of the annual financial statements, the Company is unable
to assess the precise consequences for future financial years.
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Non-current asset

Table of non-current assets

- Start-up and development costs
- Goodwill

- Cither infangible assets
Intangible assets

- Land

- Building=s on freehold land

- Building=s on non-freehold land

- General facilities, fiztures and fittings

- Technical facilities, industrial equipment and tools
- General facilities, miscellansous fittings

- Transport equipment

- Ciffice equipment and furniture

- Recoverable packaging and miscellansous.
- Property, plant and eqguipment in progress
- Advances and depaosits

Property, plant and equipment

- Investments walued using the eguity method
- Cither investments

- Cither long-term investrments

- Loans and other financial investrents
Financial investments

NON-CURRENT ASSET

A Notes to the statement of financial position

4,763,827

1,062,482
5,826,318

823,702
1,082,802

7,850,888
1,338,540
55,337
207,387
47,589
12,886,610

24,398,923
500
50,000

2514732
2,565,232

32,790,473

1,844,483

3,356
2,037,819

585,610
268,183
37,830
34,580
13,445,306

14,351,649

1,782,847

75,807
2,558,855

138,943,323

2,706
32,7196

127,500

584,439

711,989

500

510,634
911,184

1,655,969

6,708,260

1,123,052
7,831,341

823,702
1,082,602

8,294,878
1,808,732
93,207
241,028
47,539
25,847,487

38,038,584
1,792,947
50,000

2,350,855
4,212,902

50,082,827
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Cash flows can be analysed as follows:

Breakdown of increases
Inter-item transfers

Transfers from current assets

Acquisitions 38,746 14,138,785 2,558,855 16,737,385
Caontributions

Creafions 1,808,073 211,864 2,210,837
Revaluations

Increases during the year 2,037,819 14,351,649 2,558,855 18,948,323
Breakdown of decreases

Inter-itamn transfars 32705 54 450 G17.285
Transfers to cument assats

Dizposals 127,500 211,184 1,038,684
Spin-offs

Decommissioning

Decreases during the year 711,989 911,134 1,655,969

Intangible assets

Start-up costs

Farmation expenses

Start-up costs
Capital increase costs

Industrial process
HGCT acquired the amount of €552 576 wa merger, corresponding to the valuation of a unique Industrial

process. This intangible asset is recognised ina 208100 account and is not subject to economic amortisation ar
impaimment at 31 December 2022. This process can be duplicated for the construction of new plants
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Research and development expense

Explanation of the exemption from depreciation rules over a maximum period of five years.
Research and development costs are amortised over a period of ten years economically and five years for tax

purposes.
In this respect, accelerated depreciation is recorded.

The amount of R&D costs in progress at 31/12/2022 amounted to €215 thousand corresponding to
technologies under development (including €187 thousand in progress at 31 December 2021).

HPF2A technology project 154,120 10
HUKR technology project 1,208,791 10
HEWA technology project JE7. 064 10
Improvernent and new development HUKR 2020 1,103,082 10
Improvernent and new development HEWA 2020 20182 10
Improvernent and new development HF24 2020 3,465 10
Improvernent and new development HUKR 2021 1377213 10
Improvemnent and new development HEWVA 2021 258,551 10
Improvement and new development HPF24 2021 75821 10
Technology development HIOMNS 2021 187,280 10
Improvement and new development HUKR 2022 1,243,825 10
Improvement and new development HEWVA 2022 474748 10
Improvernent and new development HIOMNA, 2022 Z28.088 10

Research costs 6,704,761

Property, plant and equipment

Assets in progress

Amount of expenses recognised: €13,445 366

Amount of new expenses recognised at 31 December 2022: €13.4 million, representing a total amount of non-
current assets in progress of €26 million, consisting mainly of:

- new H2 production unit: €21.5 million;

- concrete miing plant: €2 million;

- buildings/offices: €2 million (pending allocation by component) - Acquisition of 19 December 2022;
- storage silos Port La Rochelle: €235 thousand,;

- ongoing bagging project; €73 thousand.
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Fimancial investments
Fimancial investments in the amount of €4.2 millicn include:

- loan collateralised accounts and deposits: €1.7 million;
- Hoffmann Grinding shares: €1.3 million;

- Hoffmann Suisse shares: €10 thousand;

- lessee advance on property lease: €526 thousand;

- tfreasury shares: €136 thousand;

- investment secunties: €50 thousand;

- miscellaneous deposits: €3 thousand.

List of subsgidiaries and equity investments

Table in Kilo- €

{1) Capital - {2) Equity other than capital - {3) Share of capital held (in percentage)

{4) Gross carrying amount of securities held - (5) Met carrying amount of gecurities held

{6) Loans and advances granfed by the company and nof yet repaid - (7) Guarantees and pledges given by the
company

(8) Revenue excluding taxes for the last financial year - (9) Net income for the last financial year

{10) Dividends received by the company during the financial year

A DETAILED INFORMATION ON
EACH SECURITY

- Subsidiaries
(#50% owned)

SARL HOFFMANN BROYAGE 230l 1233 100.00 1.782 1782 504 -158

- Equity imvestments
(betwsen 10% and S0% hald)

HOFFMAM GREEN CEMENT TECH a9 10.00 10 10

B. OVERALL INFORMATION OM
OTHER SECURITIES

- Cther French subsidiaries
- Cither foreign subsidianes
- Other imvestrments
- Cither imvestrnents

The capitalization method for acquisition costs on equity interesis is applied. The costs are
therefore added to the value of the securities held and amortized over a peried of five years
through exceptional amaortisation.
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As the amount of the acquisition costs of the subsidiary’s shares is not definitively known at the closing
date of the annual financial statements, the Company has chosen to amortise them as of 1 January
2023

The amount of accelerated depreciation not applied at 31 December 2022 is not matenal.

Depreciation of non-current assets

Frovisons al LIease | JECTEXS Frovisions al

- Start-up and development costs 552,051 476,749 1,028,500

- Gpodwill

- Cther intangible assets BB TEQ 43,878 8p,637]
Intangible agzets 607,810 520,627 1,128,437
- Land 01,348 35,685 127,011
- Buildings on freehold land

- Buidings on non-freehodd land 137672 44,573 182,245
- (General facilities, fdures and fitings.

- Technical facilifies, industrial equipment and tools 2,408,077 1.001,818 27 660} 3,563,235
- General facilities, miscallaneous fittings 301,408 132,048 434 355
- Transport equiprment 2565 14,782 17,348
- (Office equipment and furnifure 110,242 a0,829 161,164
- Recoverable packaging and miscellaneous 1.112] 2213 3,325
Property, plant and equipment 344341 1,372,926 27,660 4,488,687

NON-CURRENT ASSET 3,751,232
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Statement of receivables

A& Notes to the statement of financial position

Total receivables at the end of the financial year amounted to €7,274,823 and the breakdown by maturity is as
follows:

Non-current agzet receivables:

Prepaid expenses

Loans granted during the year Loans
recoverad during the year

Receivablas related to equity investments

7,274,823

Loans
Other 2,360,855 178,383 2,180,582
Receivables from current assets:
Trade recsivables 2483731 2483731
Other 2,081,775 2,057 550 34,218
Subscribed capitsl - called, not paid

328,383 34501 14,852

5,035,183

2,239,640

Income receivable

Customer invoices to be issued

Trade payables receivable
Accrued interest/securities
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Investment securities

At the end of the financial year, the market value of the main components of the portfolio amounted to €8,872 255
for a carrying amount of €10,000,043. The amount of the comesponding unrealised losses is €1,127,788.

The porifolio of marketable securities at the end of the financial vear was as follows:

value value gains. losses
10,000,042 8.3?2.255 1,127,788

10,000,043 8,872,255 1,127,738

Term deposit

The company subscribed to various term accounts for a total amount of €22.15 million, with different maturities.
Equity

Composition of share capital

Share capital of £14.634,736.00 broken down into 14,634, 736 shares with a par value of

£1.00.
Shares comprising share capital at the beginning of the financial year 14,802,387 1.00
Securities issued during the year 32,348 1.00)
Securities redesmed during the year
Shares comprising share capital at the end of the financial year 14,534,735 1.00)
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Appropriation of net income

Decision of the General Meeting of 3 June 2022.

Carried forwand from the previous financial year -15,554,885
Profit{loss) from the previous financial yesr -8,277.045
Deductions from reserves

Total origins -2,831,742
Allocations to reserves

Distributions

Other distributions

Retained 2amings -21,831,742

Total allocations -2,831,742

Table of change in equity

1 (0 (K23 of e3 ' PP,

Capital 14,602,387 32340 14,634.738
Share premiums 93,350,040 34,601 83,321,358
Legal raserve 1.042 1.042
Retsined eamings -15,564,885 6,277,048 6,277,044 -21,831.742
Profit (loss) for the pericd 8,277,048 56,277,048 -10,548,358 8,277,048 -10,548,358
Investment grant 428,178 6,175 423,003
Regulsted provisions 550,554 476,540 1,027,094

Total equity 77,107,468 -16,417,025 6,236,130 66,926,623
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Regulated provisions

Reconstruction of oil deposits
For investments

Far price increasas

Special depreciation allowances
Installation loans

Other provisions.

Total

Breakdown of allocations and reversals:
Operations
Exceptional financial

550,554

476540

476540

1,027,094

Exceptional depreciation corresponds to the amortisation of research and development costs over an economic
period of ten years, and over a tax period of five years.
As specified, the acquisition costs of equity interests will be subject to exceptional amortisation from 1 January

2023,

Provisions

Provisions table

Special depreciation allowances
Provision for taxes.

Provision for financial investrments
On customer accounts

Ctther provisions for impairment

Totsl

550,554
98,430
4,383
27,385
68,532

750,204

476,540
35,802

220,000
1,127,788

1,850,080

4,383
27,385
88,532

100,280

1,027,084
135,009

220,000
1,127,758

2,500,874

The provision for taxes recognised in the financial statements represents the corporate income tax

payable when the real estate leasing option is exercised.
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Liabilities
Statement of liabilities

Tetal liabilities at the end of the financial year amounted fo £20,992,119. Defailed classification by maturity is
as follows:

Convertible bonds (%)

(Criher bonds (%)

Bomowings (%) and debis from

credit instifutions of which:

- gt na more than ane year onginally

- at mone than one year originally 16,110,518 3,787,758 11,684,571 628,187
Mizscellan=ous loans and bomowings (%) () 254,885 174217 48,232 32,136
Trade payables and

refated sccounts 2534124 248441 40,804 58,730
Tax and employee-relaied payables B 47T 0. 477

Liabilities on non-cument assets and

refated sccounts 1,135,918 1.135.818

Criher Esbilities () 15,385 11,408 2,576 1,411
Prepaid products and services

Total 20,992,119 8,495,202 11,776,333 720,583
[*) Borrawings taken cut durng the year 2,300,000

{*) Loans repaid during the year 2623223

(**) O which to sharsholders

Fimancial debts also include participating loans not menticned in total liabilities.

Az part of the paricipating loans granted fo HGCT, the following loans for a total amount of €3,674, 084
break down as follows:

- ADEME paricipating loan (P1A 1): £1,109,084;
- BPI participating loan (P14 3) €275,000,

- PDL region loan: €2 000,000;

- BPI participating loan (P14 4): €490, 000.

Provizional repayments are as follows:

- Le=s than one year: €202,897;

- Maturing in more than one yvear and less than five vears: €2, 7938 T03;

- Maturing in more than five years: €872 4583;

Tetal liabilities at the end of the financial year amounted fo €24 866 202,
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A& Notes to the statement of financial position

Accrued expenses

Accrued supplier imaices 718,030
Mon-current assets, accrued supplier imvoices 83,125
Accrued interest on paricipating loans 158,085
Accrued interest on other borrowings 12.423
Personnel, accrued leave 213,085
Accrued employes expenses 80,000
Corporate bodies, accrued leave B, 762
Corporate bodies. other sccrued expenses 45510
Apprenticeship fax 2.071
Staterment of other accrued expenses 8.878
Chents g, to be granted 1,200
Di=hit credit accrued expenses 13.830
Total 1,409,161

Other information

Treasury shares

In account 2771 or 2772 at the reporiing date of the financial year:

number: 13,691;
value: €135 924,

Accruals

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses
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A Notes to the income statement

Revenue

Breakdown by business sector

Sector of activity

Product sales
Services

Other ancillary income
Carriage and costs invoiced

The company sold 12,010 metric tons during the financial year.

Operating and financial expenses and income

Compensation of the Statutory Auditors

Statutory Auditor
Fee for certification of financial statements: €52 519
Fees for other services: €0
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AF Notes to the income statement

Met finance income (expense)

Investment income

Incarme from other securities and recevables from non-current assets
Crther interast and similar income

Reversals of provisions and expense transfers

Positive machanpe diffarences

Met income on disposal of marketable securifies

Total fimancial income

Depreciation, amortsation and provisions
Interest and similar expenses

MNegative exchange differences

Met expenses on salkes of marketsble securities

Total financial expenses

S| PF

430,489
73,085

1,127,788
308,487
a7

1,496,332

414,854
112,285

Met finance income (expense)

992,641

Exceptional expenses and income

Exceptional income

Transactions during the year

Penalties, tax and crirminal fines

Crther non-recuming expenses on management transachions
Carrying values of assats soid

Crther expensas

Special depreciation allowances

Crther non-recuming income on management transacions
Proceeds from asset disposals

Investment grants transfemed to profit or loss

Crther products

TOTAL

3932
11,254
90,340

174,252
476,540

765,817

Froducts i

21,874
98,777

6,175
18,412

165,239
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A Notes to the income statement

Income and income tax

Tax credits

Competitiveness and Employment
Research loan

Innovation loan

Apprenticeship loan

Family loan

Investment in Corsica

Corporate philanthropy loan

Other allocations

Impact of exceptional tax assessments

Net income for the year after tax
+ Income tax
+ Tax supplement related to distribufions

- Income tax receivables

Profit (loss) before tax

Change in regulated provisions

Provision for investmenis
Provision for price increases
Special depreciafion allowances
Tax provisions

Other regulated provisions

-11,338,806

476,540

Income excluding special tax assessments (before tax) -10,862,266
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AF Notes to the income statement

Tax breakdown

+ Recurring income 10,738,228 539,933 10,045,290

+ Exceplional income -600,578| -600 573

Accounting income -11,338,806 689,938

(*) includes tax credits
(amount taken from the “Comesponding fax" column)
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A Notes to the income statement

Increases and reductions in future tax debt

The deferred tax position, taking into account a corporate tax rate valued at 25%, shows a future receivable in
the amount of €10,343,898. This amount does not take into account any payment of the social security
contribution on profits.

Amount Increases in future tax liabality

Related fo accelerated depreciation allowances
Related fo provisions for price increaszes
Related to capital gains fo be reintegrated

Relafing to other items

A. Total bases contributing to increasing future debt 1,027,094

Reductions in future tax debt

Related fo provisions for paid leave

Related fo provisions and non-deductible accrued expenses for the year 1,383,450
Relating to other items
Provision for laxes 99,430

A. Total bases contributing to increasing future debt

C. Tax loss carryforwards 40,919,805

D. Long-term capital losses
Estimated amount of future receivables
Base=(A-B-C-D)
Tax valued at the rate of 23%.

10,343,898
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&F Other information

Events after the reporting period
Subsequent event related to free share allocation plans.

By decision of the Management Board on 4 January 2021, it was decided to grant
free shares of the Company to employees subject to conditions.

- Plan 3: 5,665 shares

The shares will only vest after a vesting period from 4 January 2023.
These shares must be retained and may not be disposed of by the beneficiaries until one year after the vesting
period.

The Management Board decided to grant these shares to employees in accordance with the grant conditions on
4 January 2023

In thiz respect, new shares were issuad under the following conditions during the 2023 financial year:
Plan Mo. 2 as of 4 January 2023: 1,957 shares at the price of €10.60 (current price), i e. a value of €20,744 20

These free allocafions will generate social security confributions {social security
contribution) of €4,149. These social charges have not been provisioned in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

As a result, the Company's share capital will be increased by €1,957 comesponding fo 1,957 new
shares issued at a par value of €1 during the 2023 financial year.

By decision of the Management Board on 16 January 2022, it was decided to
grant free shares of the Company to employees subject to conditions:

- Plan no. 5. 22,147 shares for employees who have joined the company since 19 January 2022
The shares will only vest after a vesting period of three years, from 16 January 2026.
These shares must be retained and may not be disposed of by the beneficianes until one vear after the vesiing

period.

- Plan Mo. &: 20,500 shares for cerfain employees who are also members of the Extended Management
Committee

The shares will only vest after a vesting period of three years, from 16 January 2024.
The=e shares must be retained and may not be disposed of by the beneficiares until one vear after the vesiing
period.

-167 -



CATALYST OF

CARBON TRANSITION

A& Other information

Headcount

Average headcount: 39 people, including one apprentice.

Executives
Supervisors and technicians

Employees
Workers

Information on executives

Compensation allocated to members of the management bodies

This information is not mentioned because it would indirectly indicate individual compensation.
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A& Other information

Financial commitments

Commitments given

Unmatured discounted notes

Pledges and guarantees

Pension commitments

Equipment leasing commitments 451,281

Real estate leasing commitments 3,230,852
Commitment on orders of non-cuiment assefs 2,250,609
Interest on loans and participating foans 1,126,552
Pledging of term deposits 1,000,000
FPledge of lesses’s deposit in favour of lessor 326,411

Other commitments given 4903, 608

Total 8,585,741

Of which relating to:

Directors

Subsidiaries

Participations

Other related companies

Commitments on actual sureties

As collateral for a loan of €2 550,000 taken out with a banking institution, HGCT pledged a term deposit account
for an amount of €1,000,000.
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A& Other information

Commitments received

Authorised overdraft limits

Pledges and guarantees

Commifment on orders of non-current assets 2,250,605
Commifments on equipment leasing 4571 281
Commifmenis on real esfafe leases 3,230,852
Farficipating loan receivable (P4 4) 210,000
Other commitments received 6,142,733

Total 6,142,738

Of which relating to:

Directors

Subsidiaries

Participations

Other related companies
Commitments on actual surefies

HGCT is in the process of constructing its H2 building near its existing H1 plant.

In this respect, the amount of orders placed to date with workers on the construction site amounts to
€22 4 million, of which €21.5 million already invoiced and recorded at 31 December 2022

The reciprocal commitment on the H2 building therefore amounts to €0.9 million at 31 December 2022,
included in the above commitments.

HGCT is also studying the construction of a storage project at the port of La Rochelle.

In this respect, the amount of orders placed to date with workers on the construction site amounts to

€335 thousand, of which €235 thousand already invoiced and recorded at 31 December 2022.

The reciprocal commitment on the project therefore amounts to €100 thousand at 31 December 2022, included
in the above commitments.

The estimated overall budget to date amounts to €10 million.
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A& Other information

Credit leasing

tools

Orniginal value A08 550 3,395 440 1,035,000 6,019 4 345 009
Cumulation of previous financial years 241,967 462 464, 925 705,356
Lppropnations during the financial year arer2 147,857 301 235,830
Depreciations 320,639 610,221 1,226 941,186
Cumulation of previous financial years 102,022 783,437 492 505 1,503 1,379,767
Financial year 31,552 264 763 155,623 465 4532 402
Fees paid 133,573 1,048,199 648 428 1,968 1,832,168
At one year or more 31,832 285286 155,623 465 453,007
At more than one year and at less than five 127,344 1,066,476 283,308 1,876 1,451,005
years

At more than five years 185,572 1,549 466 2,734 1,737,772
Fees outstanding 344 548 2,881,228 440,931 5076 3,671,784
At one year or more

At more than one year and at less than five 10,350 10,350
years

At more than five years 1 1
Residual value

Amount paid during

the financial year
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Table of the last five financial years

Share capital at year-end

Share capital 2120462]  13.602.387| 13602387 14602387 14634730
Mumnber of ordinary shares 2120462] 13802387 13602387 14602387 14634736
Operations and income:

Revenue (exd. Tax) 539,397 620,633 513,582 2,486,256 2,008,207

Profit (loss) before fax, shareholders,
depreciation and amortisation
and provisions -283.095 -6,304,148 -8,349.897 -5,385,865 -7.721,405

income tex -185,302 507434 -724.403 -B74,758 -585,938

Income after tax, profit-sharing,
depreciation and amortisation
and provisions -148.038 -7,721.872 -7.478,873 -8,277.048 -10,548,358

Earnings per share

Income after tax, profit-sharing,

but before depreciation and amortisation
and provisions -0.04 -0.50 -0.41 -0.31 053

Income after tax, profit-sharing,
depreciafion and amortisation

and provisions -0.07 -0.587 -0.55 -0.43 073
Dividend distributed

Personnel

Employees 5 15 17 27 38
Total payroll 3468182 1,478,554 1.181.725 1,776,800, 2,375,257
Armount paid

in employes benafits 1685244 64,121 500,873 74T, 352 1,108,822

Pension commitments

Amount of commitments made in terms of pensions, supplementary pensions and similar benefits: €38,345
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& Income statement

. a2z Faa021 Abs. (M) Abs.[%)
Operating income (1)
Sales of goods
FOFT0000 - Sakes of oils - fr 228 7903 =5, -9r.14
FOTTH000 - Sale of ois - export 4E1 -481|  -100.00
FOTT5200 - Sskes of oils - ey 1,073 -1,073  -100.00
228 8,533 -3,304 -BTED
Production sold (goods)
FOSDOI00 - Sakes of Ainished products 1,373,582 2087, 121 -713,.238 -394 17
FOHDO008 - Finished products - fr- not billed 12,457 12,454
FOEZ0000 - Sake of low-carbon concrels 26,539 26,655
TOAR000 - Ssles of finished products expor 147,007 58,474 Br. 527 14747
FOHS2000 - Sakes of intrs-communi)y finished &T.369 8E, 713 15,344 -3 3
products
1,827 402 2,233,308 -GG, 808 2713
Production sold (senvices)
TORTZ000 - Inithal fass 253,000 137,500 161,500 {11743
TORTS000 - Garbon credlt 26,738 2B, 755
FORSO000 - Gamsge and costs invoiced 50,925 57,144 -B,215 -f0E8
376,723 184,544 182,079 B354
Production sold (senvices)
FOREN000 - Ofher income from ancifary sctivihies 3554 28,771 -24517  -BEAT
3,054 28, 24,817 -BE.61
Net revenue 2,008,207 2456 256 -458,043( -18.57
Of which for export and intra-EU deliveries 214,370 143,187 68,183 45,64
Producton held as inventory
71350000 - Ghange in finished goods 133,224 1,213 132014 NS
inveniones
133,224 1,213 132,011 ME
Capitalised production
FE200000 - Production of infangible assets 220937 2130 502 80,035 3aTE
2,210,837 2,130,802 80,035 ]
Ciperating subsidies
FAO00000 - Operating subsidies B.653 B7, 985 61,236 -8027
6,653 67,580 61,338 -B021
Cther products
TSE00000 - Ofher income: cument mansgement 22 587 4,4.30) 18457 41663
SE20000 - Frocesds from refinsncing operstions| 126,004 2,337 123,667 NS
TEI74000 - Reversals on prowvisions for impaime] 27,385 27,385
of receivahies
TIT10000 - Transfer of externs! senice charges 2,689 11,719 L5030 -TRO08
TH20000 - Recfassificstion of expenses, exception 373 =373 -100.00
nses
TH130000 - Reclassfcafion of fax axpanses &1 343| -345  -100.00
TI140000 - ReclassiMizafions of expenses, 17233 35,730 -18457  -51.77
TH141000 - Reclassfizafion of expenses, persiEg 54108 58,033 26,077 4494
280,308 112,868 167,341 148.13)
Total operating income 4,639,327 4,779,326 -139,993 -2.93
Operating expenses
Purchases of goods
EOTT0000 - O purchases - fr 47 833 31,983 15,673 43.07
47,8658 31,082 15873 48,01
Change in inventory (goods)
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S03T0000 - Changs in goods inventary 31,455 -18 654 12801 6862
-31,455 -18,654 12,801 63.62
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Nl ' i | i
Purchases of raw matenals. & other supplies
EO00000 - Raw mstenal purchsses 675,245 Tar.388 -108, 744 -13.73
EOIO0008 - Purchase of raw matesals f 7245 24,451 -17208 -7035
B0 20000 - Purchases of infra-EL rew E44 E44
matenals
E021000 Mineral fllers 4,143 -4, 143 -100.00
EOS0000 - Purchases of mw materals 2 568 475 2376 451 291,585 283
E01591000 - Purchases of mw malerals 47,024 31,525 15,456 43,15
E0223000 - Purchases of lsborston 35 43, 660) -33,622  -38.97
supplies
EG'EE-SOI:I-IJ- Furchsses of packaging + big 127, 545 2E, 735 41,210 4751
3
Eﬂgfﬂoﬂ-ﬂ- Transpont of rmw matenals ED, F55 ToE 547 -GRE, 143 -31.97
BOBZ000T - Ancillary costs on supplies 21,830 501,929 -420053  -B3F0
3573231 4.513,238 -B40,018 -20LE3
Change in imwentory (rEw materials)
BO3T0000 - Change in raw malenals -1,422, 751 -2 654, 563| 1261, 778  -47.00
imvenfony
S0320000 -Change in inveriones and oither -31,455] -E, 115 -45280 THLFS
supplies
-1.474.2809 -2,680,581 1,218,382 4521
Crther purchases & external expenses
E0ET1000 - Wafer 3,055 3,020 35| 118
EOGRT2000 - Liguid air gas 15,403 7. 163| 12,235 {70.E8
EOGT4000 - Elecinziy 55,009 TT,E54 17,315 2229
BOGT5000 - Fuel 73, TE4| 35,540/ 34,226 & 56
BOBINMNT - Furchases of maindenance 503 BE,315| -35412  -3835
senaces and smal egquipment
E0G1000 - Mainfensncs T5,025 5,025
and small equipment
EOGIZ000 - Wk clothing 17,0356 28,507 -5471 -35T3
EOG23000 - IT supphes 10,016 10,016
BOGI4000 - Mainfansnce supplies 51,581 91,581
EOGA000 - Purshsse of saminisfrafive 13,323 16,424 -3,101 -13.88
E0GS0000 - mm o equisment 45 i -r26|  -34.18
E1220000 - Real esiste lessing foes 174,151 156, 723| 17,465 11.15
51250000 - Real estsie lessing fees 296, BT 296, 100 57| o
E1320000 - Argilus real estste rendsls BE, 752| 56,285 30,504 54.19
E1320900 - Lesse 01 JG Golf Club 11,280 T.200] 4 080 5667
E1321000 - Ofher resl extafe leases 36,0001 36,0001
E1322000 - MisceNanecus propery leasing 23 =23 100,00
E1323000 - Argivest equipment renfsl 17,5001 17, 500]
E1324000 - Ean Is Mowhee lessing 15,040 15,040
E1325000 - Menent waehowse renfs 18,065 18,064
E1350000 - Ofher ome-off lesses 42,520] 16,414 26,106 155.05
E13500041 - Cougnaud rentzls TE.213| TE,353| -1E0) -0.24
E1350002 - Movelis leasing B, 720 E, 720|
E13500035 - Grenke telephone leasing 12,672 12,672
G1250008 - Industial huilding lessimg 18,108 18,107 1 oo
E1350008 - Mewlown square feasing 3,000 15,0001 12000 -50.00
ff_Sf-DgﬂEl- Lessing of froliey + sfacker 21,087 20,8546 231 111
aire 00
E1351000 - Wehicke leasing 4 553 o 0| -14 029
E1351007 - Car leasing - freedmaove 50,5401 TE 720 14,220/ 1253
E1351003 - Vehick leasing - cgiinance 37, r44 18,805 18,535 {0077
E13353000 - Afral lessing - slsmm 540 315 225 7143
E1354000 - Locam leasing - felephone F.003| T, 455 -455] -6.60
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server
61355000 - Grenke leasing - Photocopier
613557100 - BNF leasing - Photocopier
61355110 - CIC leasing - Photocopier
61355200 - BMP leasing - iPhone 8 + swift
61355300 - BNF leasing - ipad pro

222
111
1,046
7,010
313

8885
666
3,393
7,010,
685

-666
-555
-2,.347

228

-75.00
-83.33
-69.18

33.33
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AF Breakdown of the income statement

. ] hes M) b
E13554900 - BNF lessing - cantral uni 1, 232 -1.278]  -5496
51355500 - BNF lassing - lecfursr 1,184 291 2571 3332
51355600 - BNF lessing - Galaxy 25 2,587 2,567

1358000 - Phone leasing IF sener E25| 2,740 -2 -TRAE
E1357000 - Coyote keasing 260 745 425 -6595
£1358000 - BNF lessing - Lenovo 5,832] 5,832

eguiprnent

E£1355000 - Grenke leasing- Blackbermy 403 403 o000
E1360000 - EUDONET CRA leasing B404 -B 4 0000
E1400000 - Lessing expenses & co- £1,243) 61,250 -647] -1.04
ounership

E1520000 - Maindenance and repair of 7, B30 34724 27074 -TRAT
property

E1520100 - Maintersnce nif 2415 47,550 4, B24| 1014
E1520200 - Extenior maindenance 18,521 18,521
E1550000 - Mainderance of movable 3,974 1,523 1,852 10845
propery

gfgﬁfﬂﬂ- Naintenance repain, equipmend] 5,357 22771 17415 -Te48
£1552000 - Maintanance repair trans 31,615 28 103 3,514 1251
eguipment

£15533000 - Maindensnce repsir b 1044 12,508 14,864 3137
E1560000 - Maintanance 55,324 104, 832 45308 47943
E1581000 - IT maintanance 4,130 48, 130
E1582000 - ERF soffvare maintenance 74881 74 881
E1583000 - Maintenance solutions 28 745 28 748
ET00000 - Insurance premiums 2,284 2284
S1600200 - Grenke leasing insursnces 2172 1,580 152 70
E1600300 - Locam confract insuwrance 273 SEE -185 4167
ETEI0000 - Muiti-risk insurance 284 250 354,375 68,285 1258
E1620000 - Compulsory damsge insurance| 3018 3018 -0
E1630000 - Transport insursnce 227 15,754 7517 4947
E1T00000 - Sfudies and research 95, R0 562 045 J3TE13 G007
E1510000 - Geners! documentstion £, 707 3,680 3,027 8225
E1850000 - Trainimg 12715 3,524 BFR) 22335
E1880000 - Extemal senices 37,403 377 -307] 081
E2190000 - Temporsey staff 42239 12401 25838 24067
g;ifmﬂﬂ— Commizsions and brokarsge 1,431 SE1 gro 15545
i.’ii?mﬂﬂ - Commissions and brokarsge 35,000 25000

EZ2E0000 - Ascounting fees 40,485 54 511 14,022 2572
E228000 - Consolidation fees E‘CI:DOD{ 26,0001 HMO0p 13077
E2280200 - AMiscefanscus excephionsi fes 4E, 269 57,921 -10 752 1382
EZIE0300 - Company feas 13,657 12 818 239 £.55
E22E0500 - Recruifment faes 126, 045 126, 045
E228000 - Brand fees 20,564 40, 250 -18.324] 4736
E2281100 - Excepfions! faes 10,000 10,000
E22E2000 - AMiscefanzcus project faes B0, 692 -60, 692  -100.00
EZ263000 - Fstent fees 70 763 o9 281 11,481 19.37
E22E5000 - CAC fass 52615 45,200 £ 715 1464
EZ2E8000 - Legal fees 43,717 -435?1.’{ -100.00
E22EE200 - Legsl fess £1, 2001 14,021 47178 33647
E22ET000 - Shamsione fees 58,000 20,000 28,000 3333
E2288000 - Povzsmparc fees 25,000 42,000 -5,000 -T14
E22E8100 - Ewoclear fees 5,504 5,500 A oo
E2270000 - Legal and lifigation costs 3,582 3,582
E2271000 - Ewonext fass 18,784 16, 2410 1,244 734
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62272000 - Newcap fees 118,991 78,933 35,9945 30.03
62273000 - SYD fees 23,374 23,374

622753000 - Cddo fees 28,167 140,000 -60,833 -73.48
62281000 - CSTE education fees 483 878 941,339 -457 361 -48.59
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AF Breakdown of the income statement

N2 J b | h
EZ282000 - Lab fest fees 500,002 597,13, -a7, 131 -10.25
EZ223000 - Sowrcing fees 25,615 35,321 -13, 702 -34.83
EZ234000 - MisceNaneous sudf fass 24, 145 118,734 04,588  -T124
EZ225000 - Socotes fees- fechnical advice 32,5920 o4, 644 -01,724 -61.97
EZ300000 - Advertising, publicstions 80,335 -30,236 10000
EZ370000 - Commurnizafion cosis 54,252 12,553 41,341 315.20
EZ2000 - Confract communication costs 126,204 142,175 -15975  -11.24
EZ393000 - Onex communizafion costs 114, 755 114, 755
f;";fm-cmwmubaﬁmmf'm-sﬁeam 11,5955 11,955
tools
EZ320000 Trede fairs and exhibiions 120,857 120,837]
EZ340000 - Gifts 13,307 14,500 -1, 153| -223
EZIB0000 - Catslogues - prants - wideo 135,077 185,484 -36.408  -2502
EZIB1000 - Video reports - smarme TEE13| TEE13|
EZ380000 - Gurrent donations 17,5001 11,750 -1025)  -8ra23
E2490000 - Transport 275,460 56,275 2915982 38946
E2420000 - Transport of sales 24,575 53,514 31,065 5805
B2420008 - Suppler order B3] -83  -100.00
EZST0000 - Travel 74,567 60,434 14,133 2338
EZ570100 - Hotel 27,615 13,525 14050 1415
EZ510200 - Meals 47,247 26,514 20,333 7555
EZ570300 - Fardng 1,404 1,135 2E5 2372
E2570500 - Taxi 25,063 B 42| 16221 18347
EZ510700 - Moforway 26,213 15,724 E,453| Ja292
EZ060000 - Missions 82,343 41,356 40,547 3832
EZEF0000 - Delivenzs 14,025 30,315 -16,225  -5352
EIRT0000 - Fax falephons 3B 311 35,561 2,750 T3
E2620000 - Posfage 3,902 14,477 10,484 -F242
EITO0000 - Banting snd simiar senices 25,545 22,048 3,500 1588
E3T20000 - Feas and commissions 1,410 B7,.5912| -6ES02  -3ve2
EZTE0000 - Other fees snd 15 1,123| -1103] -8835
commissionsbensiis
EZRT0000 - MiisceNaneous contnbutions 11,621 15,224 -TEDG|  -38.08
E2540000 - Personme! recruimenf costs 5959 92,535 -BESTE -33.56

G.420,433 5,543,876 573,457 B2t

Taxes and samilar payments
E3120000 - Apprenficeship fax 18,653| 10,935 5714 5223
EI320000 - Tax, employer contnbutions 12,755 8,580 3,816 4249
E35T1000 - Gfe fsorporafe real esfale fax) 43,253| 35,863 7,250 2067
E3513000 - Ofher local faxes 4,023 4,144 -121 -232
EITT4000 - Taxes on compsny vehicles E.877) T425] -545] 738
E3541000 - Transfer lanes 1,637 1,637
E3543000 - Vignettes and registadion 1,454 1,454
documents

83,732 67,351 18,331 2878

Wapss and salaries
E4T70000 - Appointment salary, 227154 1,350 512 GEE, B43| 4239
COMMISSIoNS
E4120000 - Pakd leave 54,206 B7,E27] -13421 -12.85
EL120000 - Bonuses and grafuifies -7, 050 87,050 24900 10810
E4 140000 - Alowsnces snd benefifs 24, 105 58,032 26,077 4434
EL140100 - Meal vouchers 28,045 13,144 12,504 3a17
ES142000 - Alowsnces not subject fo T50| 435| 55| 5167

2375257 1,778,800 508, 457 33.68

Social secunity charges
E45T0000 - URSS5AF (social securiy) 73575 436611 336,965 7r.ig
contnbufions
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64320000 - Mutual insurance 89,778 73,270 14,508 19.28
64332000 - Retirament 210,462 130,011 60,450 40.30
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B4083000 - Acoyued employee expenses
E4390000 - Socis! securly expenses on
paid feswe

B4750000 - Qecupshiona! medicine and
pham

B4TBO000 - Oifver social secury
contrbufions

E4800000 - Offer personnel expenses

Depreciafion and prowisions

EB111000 - Deprecistion of infangibla
5555

EE112000 - Amorhisation of fived asseis
EB174000 - Deprecistion of receivables

Cither expenses

ES110000 - Concession fees
E5300000 - Dérectors’ fees

EF440000 - Losses on imecoversble debt
for the year

E3800000 - Opemafing expenses
E3820000 - Expenses on refinancing
transschons

Total operating expenses

OPERATING INCOME

Financial income

TET10000 - Ofher aquiy secunties
TE3B0000 - Income from offer receivsbies
TES0000 - Income on securifies
TEE0NG00 - Sther financis! income

TEE50000 - Reversals on prowvisions for
financial income

TEEE5000 - Reversals on impaiment of
invesiment 855eis

financial expenses

i;fﬂ.‘-ﬂﬂ- Int=vest an borowings and

f

BET20000 - Intevest on panizipsting loans

EETEO000 - Bank infanesf

GE400000 - Losses on receivables relafed
fo investments

BABOO000 - Foreign exchange Josses

BEB00000 - Offer financis! expenses

EBEES000 - Provisions for deprecation of

markeishie securties

& Breakdown of the income statement

i s fi
10,404 40,574
22,654 28,879
3,245 1,873
15,945 14,305
1,521
1.108,822 747,882
520,627 325,415
1,372,926 1,260,731
220,000/
2,113,553 1.584,148

2,245 58,822

10,000/ 10,000/
27, 285]

1,221 12,456
128,004 2337
164,855 B2.817

14,324,914 11,943 662
9,745,587 7,164,342
104
54
428,713 407, 365
1,775 5,953
4,263
B2, 733 112,255
502,691 527,242
145,426 52,723
208, 567] 201,240
216
4E1
57 23
10,033 10,781
1,127, 785] 4,263}
1,496,232 281,012

-51,21
-§,125

1,474
1,641

1,521
350,080

185,242

112,155
220,000
527 407

54,5771

27,285

12,237
123,667

£4.233
2,441,245

2,581,244

14|

20,247
-5,245
4,263

-23,558

85,637

7,328
-B18]
.

26|
743
1,123 425

1,215,244

-125.43
-21.42

1147

4801

59.99
230

33325

-96.05

-90.93

101.68

=100.00
311
-T481

-38.79

-4.47

13425

3.64
-100.00

3814

MET FINANCE INCOME {EXPENSE)

1,238,872

CURRENT PROFIT before tax -10,738,228 6,918,112 -3,820,116 5h22
Exceptional income
TTAB0000 - Ofher exceplions! fncome 41,874 4, 7o ar174|  Tanas
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77520000 - Non-curment property sold 98 777
7700000 - Share of grants for investments 6175
77830000 - Bomis proeven.rachal par entr 18,413

165,239

Exceptional expenses
67120000 - Excepfional fines and penalties| 3432

6,178
82,973
93,851

822,

98,777

-64,360
71,388

3110

-0.05
-f7.81
76.06

376.49
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A& Breakdown of the income statement

67180000 - Other exceptional expenses 11,254 11,254

67320000 - Carrying value of transfermed 98 840 95 840

assets

67830000 - Malis proven.rachat parentr.a 174,252 38,797 135,454 34513

68723000 - Derogatory depreciation 476,540 287,555 188, 386 6549

765,817 327,574 438,243 133.78

Exceptional income -233.723 156.96
Income tax

GEI00000 - Provisions for tax 33,662 35,841 -175) -0.50

69310000 - Taxes 7gf 210,510 -210,125 -95.63

69950000 - Research fax credit -650, 448 -1,008, 158 398,710 -37.68

G9970000 - Innovation tax credit -6G3.463 -54,831 -10,632 1839

69983000 - Patronage tax relef -1,470 -8,590 7,080 -82.51

-689,938 -874,788 184,8500  -21.13
PROFIT OR LOSS -10,648,868 -6,277,046 4,371,822 69.65
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AF Breakdown of balance sheet

Intangible azzets
Start-up costs
20190000 -Formstion expenses 3,523 3528 3,525
Z2B041000 - Amortisation of farmshion 3,525 -3,528 -3,320
Expenses
3,528 3529 1 e
Research and development expense
20300000 - Ressarch and development 8,704, TE1 6704 TE1 4 Ta0, 255
cosfs
2B030000 - Amortisstion of research & 1,025,272 -1,025 272 -HMETH
development cosis
6,704,781 1,025.272 5678438 4,211,588
Concessions, patents and similar rights
20500000 - Licensing patents 355,232 355,232 322435
2B05D00 - Amorfisstion of patent licensas 98 637 -39 837 -55,755|
355,232 BOEIT 255,535 268,677
Cither intangible assets
20890000 - dndustnal process 352 578 552,576 532,578
23200000 - As=ets in RED 295,244 215244 187,420
767,820 TET.820 740,058
Property, plant and equipment
Land
21190000 - Undevelsped land 618,873 G158 875 &18 875
21200000 - Design & development of land 204, 822} 204 822 204,822
2B120000 - Amortized design & lsyout of 127,041 -127,091 -31, 244
823,702 127.011 G036 732,255
Buildings
21490000 - Buddings on non-freehold lsnd 1,082 B02) 1,082 602 1,082 602
2B144000 - Deprecistion of bulldings on 182 245 -182 245 -137,672)
mon-freshold lznd
1,082,802 182 245 o00,357 044 831
Technical facilities, equipment and taals
21500000 - Machinany and equipment 458 DE8) 458 068 334 7R3
21530000 - Specisl installstions 7,208,052 7,208,082 6 567,477
21540000 - dnaustnal equipment 630,875 530,218 534 605
28150000 - Deprecistion of machineny: & 235,485 -295 488 -2E 325
Equipment
28153000 - Deprecistion of faciities with 2330323 -2330, 323 -2 106,505
specific characiensiics
28154000 - Deprecistion of industnz! 337427 -337 427 175,641
faciliies and equipment
8,204,973 3563235 4,731,743 5357, TH
Crther property, plant and equipment
21890000 - Design, development, 1,608, 732) 1,606, 732 1,338 545
instsliation
21820000 - Transport equipment 93 267) 23 287 55,237
21830000 - Office & 1T equipment 168,471 168,471 137,257
21840000 - Fumniturs 73457 73457 65,410
21871410 - Merger defict on construchon 47,885 47, 285 47, 885
28181000 - Deprecisiion, design snd 434 355 -434 355 30, 405
development of facilbes
28182000 - Deprecistion, fransport 17,345 -17, 348 -2 565
Equipment
2B183000 - Deprecistion, offics & 1T 112, 155 -112 185 -73,208]
equipment
28184000 - Deprecisiion, fumiurs 48,973 48973 -36,224]
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28187141 - Depreciation on technical loss 3,225 -3,325 -1,112
1,989,815 616,196 1,373,619 1,233,815
Assets under construction/advances and
deposits
23110000 - Assets in progress hi ¢ 14,197 14,197
23111000 - H2 building assets 24,486,000, 21,486,000 12,626,503
23112000 - Infrastruciure assefs 234,508 234,508 52 300
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& Balance sheet breakdown

23113000 - Cantral assa1s, concrers 1,007, 35 1,007, 00
23144000 - Arsars In progress RS 23, 504) 23,304
23130000 - Maison qiiazesy 118, 7 118, 7]
23131000 - EuNdings Rive gz (Yoo 1,800,760 1,500, Ta0
23432000 - Nesmy Farking 52,505 52 5z
23150000 - Hopger orocess (mErgvement 49,900 40,900 07,507
35 247 48T 35247 407 12,588 510
Fimancial investments
Equity nestiments and relabed recaivables
20112000 - AT bro sqully securies 1,000,525 1,000,523
20111100 - Equity Invesimant, Ko sws 5,055 p.oEs|
28712006 - Expansas on sgully ke siments e, 625 LN
20000000 - Giker fomms of nvastmant 750 70| 500
1,792,047 1,792,047 500
Criher long-term Investmenis
27E0000 - Cther iang-tmrm kvestments 50,500 50,600 50,000
50,000/ 50,000 50,000
Ciher financial [nvestrents
DTECO00 - Depsshs & qumranises ARid 1,700,600 1,700,000 1,700,000
27610000 - Down-payment EATIRGS 520,414 520,411 500,584
ITEE0000 - Suarandess 7050 7050 2,000
EFTIO000 - Trassuy Sharss or OWosr's 136, 524] 135,654 243,375
shamnss
2ETEQAIE - Impalmant miscalanags -2 583

receivabies

2,510,365
TOTAL MON-CURREMNT ASSETS

Inventories
Rarw maberiaks and other supples
ITGOMIOE - Raw mat=rais brveniones 4 140,725 4, 140,735 3 724,05F
ITAOADAT - nventores of packaging B4, 254 B4, 054 12,588
4,210,777 4210777 2,736,408
Intermedake and finkshed producks
IEEOMDAT - Finished Joods Me=nfores 134,457] 134,437] 1,213
134,437 134,437 1,213
Goods
ITHOMIAE - Soods ventori=s B, 7 50,709 10,064
50,108 50,108 18,654
Advances, down-payments on
orders
40010000 - Trage payahles 38,27 78,273 21,003
4091 1000 - Advance papments CETE 150,587] 150,647] 20,04
197,269 197 869 J0ETT
Receivables
Trade rece abhes
41700000 - Cusfomers 7,177,404 B AT 04 F,242, 507
ATHO000 - Doubety o oisouted frade 204,600 204,000 22,8587
receivahles
41840000 - Customer ivoloes 1o be issueg 48,327 48, 327| 1,209
£DTO0000 - dmpalment of frade receivanies 220,000 -220, 0o -27, 305
2,483,734 230,000 2.763,731 2,248,633
Supplier debiors
ADDEA000 - Non-recoverable irade 10,045 10,04

sapagizs
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19,049 19,049
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A Balance sheet breakdown

Personnel - Social organisations

43720000 - Meal vouchers 174| 178 4 852
43870000 - dncome recefvatle from 2000
comporsie bodies
74 73 6.652
State, Income tax
44400000 - State, income fax 735, 160 739,180 1,125 TES)
738,180 738,180 1,125,789
State, Sales taxes
44562000 - State, VAT on non-curmrent 424 447 424 447 227,993
44562100 - VAT on asseis io be 132,323 132,323 48 872
siized
44588000 - Sfate, VAT on atfer properdy 32282 32282 28 554
44588001 - State, VAT on sbs - 103 any ang 1,885
44588010 - VAT on abs to be reguisnzed 278,334 278,334 200,628
44586011 - VAT on abs to be requisrized 1,104 1,104 978
-in
gﬁﬂ?ﬂﬂﬂ - Reimbursement of lumover 318,270 318270
44588000 - VAT fo be reguisised on 123,364 123,368 196, 385
goonied supplsr imvoices and 55
1,312,019 1,312,018 705,232
Cither receivables
44190000 - State - Investmant grants 1,208 380
receivahle
45703000 - Miscelaneous dehiors TE7] TE7
SETTE000 - Motany 13,874 13,874
4ETTOM00 - Sofid G708 E,708 B, T8
SETROM00 - SC1IG Golf Club 4 442
21,283 21,288 1,218,510

Miscellaneous
Invesiment securities

50300000 - UCITS 10,000,043 10,000,043 10,000,045
SO810800 - Dt GE no. 8409 500,000 500,000 500,000
50540900 - Dst GE no. 5310594 500,000 500,000 500, 000)
S0814000 - Dat EC no. 28682 500,000 500,000 500, 000)
50844400 - Dst GE no. 38770 500, 000) 500,000 500, 000}
50544200 - Dst GE no. 58945 500,000 500,000 500, 000)
50811300 - Dat GE no. 63034 500,000 500,000 500, 000)
50844400 - Dst GE no. 73422 500, 000) 500,000 500, 000}
50811500 - Dt GE no. 83210 500,000 500,000 500, 000)
50811600 - Dst GE no. 53355 500,000 500,000 00, 000}
50844700 - Dst GE no. 03483 500,000 500,000 500, 000)
50811800 - Dat GE no. 13571 500,000 500,000 500, 000)
50844300 - Dst GE no. 23658 500, 000}
50812000 - Dt GE no. 30047 500,000 500,000 500,000}
50892100 - Dst GE no. 40425 500,000 500,000 00, 000}
50842200 - Dst GE no. 50223 500,000 500,000 500, 000)
SO0812300 - Dat GE no. 70456 500, 000)
50842400 - Dst GE no. 80584 500, 000}
50812500 - Dt GE no. 50672 500,000}
50812500 - Dat GE no. 0OTED 500,000
50842700 - Dst GE no. 10848 500, 000)
50813300 - Dat GE no. 81561 500, 000)
50893400 - Dst GE no. 51643 500, 000)
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50813500 - Dat CE no. 116258 500,000
50813600 - Dat CE no. 21813 500,000
50813700 - Dat CE no. 42186 500,000
50813800 - Dat CE no. 33964 500,000
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AF Balance sheet breakdown

508135300 - Dat CE no. 03603

50814000 - Dat CE no. 023876
50814100 - Dat CE no. 13788
S0814200 - Daf revenue - cssh +
SO814300 - Daf revenue no. 100253
50814400 - Datf revenue no. 100362
SO814500 - Daf revenue no. 100363
50915000 - Dat GIC - 310602

509915400 - Dat CIC - 310603

50815200 - Dat GIC - 310604

50815300 - Dat CIC - 310805

50815400 - Dat CIC - 310608

50915500 - Dat GIC - 310607

S0015600 - Dat cic - 310608

50815800 - Dat GE €750,000

508155800 - Dat CE €1 million

50813310 - Dat ca

50813311 - Dat ce

50515812 - Dat ca

S0816000 - Dat ENF no. 52356827
SOGTEOTT - Dat ENF no. 52356924
SO016002 - Dat ENP no. 52367021
50016003 - Dat ENF no. 52367118
S0G1E004 - Dat ENP no. 52367215
508160035 - Dat ENF no. 52367312
SOGTE006 - Dat ENF no. J2367409
S0096007 - Dat ENP no. 52367508
S0G16008 - Dat ENF no. 52367603
SOG1E008 - Dat ENP no. 52367797
S0816010 - Dat ENF no. 52367254
50016011 - Dat BNF no. 52367351
SOGTED42 - Dat ENP no. 52358028
50016013 - Dat ENF no. 52368185
508470049 - Oww caf - 3252429 2964/00000
SOBTTO02 - Ouv cad- 3292421 2964/,00000
SOBTTO03 - Ouv cad- 32024220327/00000
SOBI7004 - Cuv cad- 32024220527/00000
SOBTTO0S - Ouv cad- 32024220327/00000
SOEITO06 - Cuv cad- 32524220527/00000

SOE20000 - Accrued inferest on secunties
SH02000 - Impsimment of markefable

e

Cash at bkank and in hand

51241300 - Bnp =tebsc hgot
51291500 - BNF shorf-femn liguitiy
51292500 - Edr- CCons 221336045
51292600 - Revenus

51292700 - Gic

51242800 - L= Bamque Fostals
51243000 - Bpgo

51220000 - Caisse spargne

500,000
500,000
500, 000)
500,000
400,000
500,000
500,000

750,000
1,000,000/

500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500, 000)
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500, 000)
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500, 000)
500,000
475,000
475,000
475,000
575, 000)
273,375

32,473,423

841,601
5,245
408
267,329
181,774
231,837
2348 5501
2327, 204

6,888,520

1,127, 785]
1,127,788

500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
400,000
500,000
500,000

750,000
1,000,000

500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
475,000
475,000
475,000
575,000
273,375

-1,127,788

31,285,635

541,604
89,245
406
267,809
181,778
234,837
2348500
2327204
B,388.520

500,004
500,000
500,000

3,500,000

5,000,000

5 000, 0001

5,000,000

1,000,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
500,000
750,00

1,000,005
500,000
500,000
500,000

235,637
-68,733

50,415,043

515,242
137,655

£ 802,963
B,693
29,033
68,637

8 657,529
168,.218.510
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A& Balance sheet breakdown

Net at Net at

JM2122 3221
Prepaid expenses
48600000 - Prepaid expenses 329 363 329,363
329,363 329,363
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 48,810,003 1,347,788 47,462 215
TOTAL ASSETS 98,892,830 6,964,912 91,927,918 104,227,369
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Liabilities

Share capital
0120000 - Subsenbed cspitsl called paid

Share premiums, merger pramiums, contribution premiums, etc:
10410000 - Share pramivms
10420000 - Lerger premiums
10420100 - Merger premium (honus)
0421000 - Loss of refrosciivity

Legal resene
10610000 - Legsl resenve

Retained =armings
11300000 - Retsinad esmings debi balance

Profit (loss) for the period

Investment grants
1300000 - dvesiment grand
TIT0000 - dwvesiment grand bp-h2
13390000 - Amortisation of granfs

Regulated provisions
14500000 - Specis! deprecisbon siowances

TOTAL EQLITY

Condifional advances
TET40000 - Fi4 1 Repayable sdvance
16740400 - P4 3 Repayable sdvance
16740200 - BFf repsysbie advance
16742000 - Fays de Loire region josn: €2 milion

14,624,738
14,834,738

80,216,206
1,042 455
1,937,697

125,000

23,321,358

1,042
1,042

21,231,742
21,831,742
-10. 45 G568

42132
400,000
-15,128
423,003

1,027,094
1,027,084
66,026,823

1,103,084
275,000
450,000

2,000,000

3,874,084 3,585,418
TOTAL OTHER CAFITAL 3,874,084 3,565,418

15,554 695
-15,554 605
8,277,046

42132
400,000
-12.554
439,178

550,554
550,554
77.107, 468

1,150,413
275,000

2,000,000

Prowisions for expenses
15500000 - Prowdsion for taxes 135092 53,430
135,082 90,430
Eovrovings
16420000 - Caisse o Epargre foan £2,.550,000 1,335,549 1,845,172
FE420000 - BNF losn £2, 550,000 1,252 830 1,802 854
16440000 - BFI-EIF loan £4 million o Q03,000 4,000,000
16450000 - Lz Banque Fostale foan £3 million 2,357 143 2 TR T4
TE480000 - BNF losn £3 milian 2,413,595 3,000,000
6470000 - Caisse ' Epargne loan £3 million Ioan 2,411,341 3,000,000
16420000 - BFGC foan £2.3 millon 2,300,000
16,110,518 16,433,741
Bomrowings and debts fram credit institufions 18,110,518 16,433,741
Miscellan=aus koans and bomowings
TETS0000 - Tois! development fosn £300,000 85,177 232744
16887500 - Accrued inferest on paricipating loans 155,088 163,678
16322000 -Accreed interest on offier borrowings 12423 11,669
254,885 408,088
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I F.
Trede payables
A0 00000 - Suppliers 1,065 097 1,354, 126
A0 10000 - EU suppliers 790,062 104,427
A0 20000 - Export zuppliers 10,541
0810000 - Accrued supplier invoices 718 0201 1,234,458
0871000 - Accrued supplier invoices - EU 225 283
2,584 124 2915301
Perzonnel
42100000 - Accrued compensation 145 537 5,087
A 2500000 - Personnel, advances and deposits 5,554
42820000 - Perzonnel, sccrued leave 213,095 158 889
A2BE0O00 - Accrued employes expenses B0, 0001 57,302
448 6271 251,242
43100000 - Socia! secunty 1134701 B0, 581
43720000 - Mutual insurance 20,524 16,083
4373000 - Executives pensions [(AGIRG) 37,113 28,0580
A3FF0000 - Providence 16,270 12,699
43820000 -Corporafe bodies, accrued leave 31,762 63,068
43860000 - Carporate bodies. other acorued expenses 45 5101 55,914
43863000 - Continuous fraining E,.374|
43865000 - Apprenticeship fax 2,071 7,250
327,121 276,063
State, Sales taxes
44551000 - State VAT payable 53,877
A457 1000 - State VAT collected 47, 2501
A457 1001 - VAT collected 20% expecfed 41,121 10,621
A458TO0D - VAT fo be reguisrizad an imvoices nal yet received and sssets 7,555 211
yet to be establizhed
96, 225 64, 720
Cither tax and employee-relafed payables
44210000 - Deductions &t source (imecoverahie) 12,626 10,473
H4860000 - Statement of ather scorued expenses &, E78| £, 455
15,504 16,927
Taee and employee-related paysables 581,477 G083, 852
Armnounts payable on mon-current assets and related accounts
A0400000 - Suppliers of non-current seaefs 1,067, 754 3,065 262
40840000 - Mon-current azzafz, acorued supplier invaoices 68, 125 7,680
1,135,818 3072812
Other lizbilities
41280000 - Cusfomer dizcounts, rehafes and reduchions fo be granted 1, 2001
6701000 - Mizcellaneous crediors 215 297
AEEE0000 - Dabit credit acorued expenses 13,5801 15 76|
15,385 18,057
TOTAL DEET 20,992 119
S

TOTAL LIABILITIES 091,927,918
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& Borrowings table

Hame Capltal Fired Movaments Cutcisnageng capstal
organication Tarm Balanos ac Balamos ac
Indsrect rate of of
End [ Fo el Bubtosibed Relmbursad | 24M2/2022 Lsce Onsfofivel &t mors
somsiusion than ong wears than flve
yaar yaars
iZE loan €2,550,000 O5MARI2D 1845 173 44 506,624 ld 1,335,545.21 51371624 EZ1.53267
B mmonih

2,559,855 52 | 24r2@2019
0.8I% 057225

FRepayabie advance pa 3 IMMERED 375,000 00 100,000,000  275,000.000 10000000 17S.000.00

EE monih

500,000, 00 5 DAOEVE0E
0.00%: INMARIEE

Todal development lnan 1582318 F3Z 74379 14E,567. 19 BE,1TE.FH  B5175.54

&0 manth

400,000 00 & 10708
1.00% 1673023

BHF koan €£2,550 000 ek Ui vl 1,807 253 63 505,564.07 1,292,B85.50 51405879 TTESE308Y

EE

255000000 | maonths
0.50% 131 2020

AAMEBIZ5
FEVBF| FRAMCE 15M32021 &, 000, 000 0 4,000,000.00 500,000 .00 3. 200,000, 04
Innovaicn kan 24

4,000,000.00 mianihs
2.85% 151 2IAE20
150 22027

FOL regicn loan €2 millon D ETE D) 000,000 00 2,000,000.00 180000000 400,000.04
=2
200000000 | maonths
Z.00% o1maa
4mARIzE

LBP loam £3 milian 15072021 2.TES.T14 24 47857144 3357 14784 42857144 1.T14.Z257H 204,785.64
24
300000000 | manihs
143% OTimAAE21
1 5MARI2E
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& Borrowings table

Heading First Movements Outstanding capital
Capital Term Balance as Balance as
R nf nf
arganisation End 0410412022 | Subscribed Reimbursed | 3171212022 Less Onetofivd At more
Interest rate conclusion thanond years than five
yaar years
CE loan £3 million 05012022 | 3.000,000.0 505.850.01( 2.4113s00d 59427569 1.217,085 31
80

3,000,000.00 | months
0.95% 05042021
1202026
EMP loan £2 millien o202z 3.000.000.0 586,405.08 241350407 593.125.07 1,820,489.00
:11]
3,000,000.00 | months
1.14% 011062021
01N 22026
BPGO loan£2.3 million 20172023 2,300,000.00 2,300,000.00 354.012.5(1,532,085.78 413,801.74
T2
2,300,000.00 | months
3.13% 24122022
FRM22028
Repaysble advance pia 4 02024 480,000.00 700,000.0] 580,000.00  140,000.0Q
i)
T00,000.00 | months
0.00% 1410472022
D028

24,009,865.52( TOTAL 18,041,485.08( 2.790.000.00) 2,869, 780.92[19, 171,604, 16[3,983,976.27)4,019,570.51 [1,168,187 28
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A Interim management balances

222 2l g b Al

Sales of goods 228 100.00 8,533 100.00 -8,304 -B7.80
Cost of goods sold 18,200 M5 13.328 13881 2872 21.55
SALES MARGIN 15,972 NS -3,795( -39.81 12,177 320.84
Production sold 2,007,878 100.00/ 2,456,723 100.00 -443 744 -18.27
Production held as imventony 133,224 8.63 1.213 0.05 132,011 NS
Capitalised production 2,210,837 110.11 2,130,802 B0.74 80,035 3.78
Materials and subconfracting company 2000007 10453 1,823,350 7422 275,848 1512
PRODUCTION MARGIN 2,253,132 112.21 2,765479 112.57 512,347 18.53
Revenue (excl Tax) 2,008,207

OVERALL GROSS MARGIN 2,237,160

Other purchases and external expanses 8,417,680 31857 5834113 236.58 583,588 10000

VALUE ADDED 4180,539 1,108,109

Operating subsidies 6,653 0.33 67,880 2.78 -61,338 8021
Taes and similar peymeants 86,732 4,32 67,008 272 19,728 20044
Employes benaefits expensa 3,380,837 16B.35 2,430,800 8857 040,937 38.08
GROS5 OPERATING SURPLUS -7,641 455

Reversals of expeanses 27,385 1.38 27,385

Other products 148,891 T4 8,787 027 142124 NS
Allocation to deprecistion and provisions 2,113,553 105.25 1,586,148 64.31 H27.407 3325
Other expeanses 16808,855 23 82817 3.35 84,238 101.68)

OPERATING INCOME -9,745,587

Share of joint income

Financizsl income 503.891 26.08 527248 21.38 -23.558 -4.47
financial expenses 1,488,332 T4.51 281,018 11.38 1215314 432.47
CURRENT PROFIT BEFORE TAX -10,738,228 -6.918,112 -3,820,116
Exceptional income 165,238 823 83,851 3.81 71,388 T6.08
Exceptional expenses 785,817 3813 327,574 13.28 433,243 133.78
Exceptional income 600,578 -29.91 -233,723] 9438 -366,855 156.96
Employee profit-sharing

income tex -3E0.838 -34.38 -B74.7E8 -35.47 184.850 -21.13

Profit (loss) for the period -10,648,868 -530.27 6,277,046 -254.52 4,371,822

CROSS-EFFEREMCES: see Takle 10531 *An explanation of this seclion & méludal in Note Ko, 20T
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KPMG S.A. Telephone: +33(0)228 24 10 10
7 Boulevard Albert Einstein Telefax: +33(0)22824 10 16
BP 41125 Internet: www.kpmg.fr

44311 Nantes Cedex 3

This is a translation into English of the statutory auditor’s report on the financial statements of the Company
issued in French and it is provided solely for the convenience of English speaking users.

This statutory auditor's report includes information required by European regulation and French law, such
as information about the appointment of the statutory auditors or verification of the management report and
other documents provided to shareholders.

This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and
professional auditing standards applicable in France.

Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies S.A.

Registered office: La Bretaudiére - Chaillé-sous-les-Ormeaux - 85310 Rives de I'Yon
Statutory Auditors’ report on the financial statements

For the year ended December 31st, 2022

Dear Shareholders,,
Opinion

In compliance with the engagement entrusted to us by your Annual General Meeting, we have
audited the accompanying financial statements of Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies S.A.
for the year ended December 31st, 2022.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and liabilities and
of the financial position of the Company as at at 31 December 2022 and of the results of its
operations for the year then ended in accordance with French accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion
Audit Framework

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Statutory Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
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Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies S.A.
Statutory Auditors’ report on the financial statements
17 April 2023

Independence

We conducted our audit engagement in compliance with independence requirements of the
French Commercial Code (code de commerce) and the French Code of Ethics (code de
déontologie) for statutory auditors rules applicable to us, for the period from january 1%t 2022 to
the date of our report.

Justification of Assessments

In accordance with the requirements of articles L.823-9 and R.823-7of the French Commercial
Code (“Code de commerce”) relating to the justification of our assessments, we inform you that
the most important assessments made by us according to our professional judgment focused on
the appropriateness of the accounting principles used relating particularly to the following
matters: valuation of tangible and intangible assets.

These assessments were made in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. We do not provide a separate opinion on specific
items of the financial statements.

Specific Verifications

We have also performed, in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, the
specific verifications required by French laws and regulations.

Information given in the management report and in the other documents with respect to
the financial position and the financial statements provided to the Shareholders

We have no matters to report as to the fair presentation and the consistency with the financial
statements of the information given in the management report of the Board of Directors and in
the other documents with respect to the financial position and the financial statements provided
to the Shareholders.

We attest the fair presentation and the consistency with the financial statements of the

information relating to payment terms, required under Article D.441-6 of the French Commercial
Code (Code de commerce).

Report on Corporate governance

We attest that the Board of Directors' report on corporate governance sets out the information
required by Article L.225-37-4 of the French Commercial Code.

Other information

In accordance whith French Law, we have verified that the required information concerning the
purchase of investments and controlling interests and the identity of the shareholders and holders
of the voting rights has been properly disclosed in the management report.

GC-23-68 - For the year ended December 31st, 2022 3
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KPMG

Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies S.A.
Statutory Auditors’ report on the financial statements
17 April 2023

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of thefinancial statements
in accordance with French accounting principles and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is expected to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors.
Statutory Auditor’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our role is to issue a report on the financial statements. Our objective is to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with professional standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As specified in Article L.823-10-1 of the French Commercial Code (code de commerce), our
statutory audit does not include assurance on the viability of the Company or the quality of
management of the affairs of the Company.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with professional standards applicable in France,
the statutory auditor exercises professional judgment throughout the audit and furthermore:

o |dentifies and assesses the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, designs and performs audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtains audit evidence considered to be sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for his
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtains an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

e Evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management in the financial
statements.

» Assesses the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to

GC-23-68 - For the year ended December 31st, 2022 4
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Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies S.A.
Statutory Auditors’ report on the financial statements
17 April 2023

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. This assessment is based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of his
audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern. If the statutory auditor concludes that a material uncertainty
exists, there is a requirement to draw attention in the audit report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are not provided or inadequate, to modify the
opinion expressed therein.

o Evaluates the overall presentation of the financial statements and assesses whether these
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Nantes, on the 17" April 2023

French original signed by Gwenaél Chedaleux - Partner

GC-23-68 - For the year ended December 31st, 2022 5
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3. REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

3.1 ADMINISTRATIVE, MANAGEMENT, SUPERVISORY AND EXECUTIVE
MANAGEMENT BODIES

The Company was transformed into a public limited company with Management Board and
Supervisory Board by a decision of the General Shareholders’ Meeting of 3 September 2019.

The Company is managed by a Management Board, chaired by Julien Blanchard.
3.1.1.1. Composition of the Management Board and Supervisory Board

At the date of Annual Financial Report, the Company’s Management Board is composed of the
following two (2) members:

LG Main role outside
Name Term of office in the Start and end of term of office
the Company
Company
Appointed by the Supervisory
Chairperson of Board at its meeting of 3
Julien the i Chairperson of JB | September 2019, up to 3
BLANCHARD Management Finance September 2025
Board
Appointed by the Supervisory
Member of Scientific Board at its meeting of 3
. Manager of
David the and Hoffmann Capital September 2019, up to 3
HOFFMANN Management | Innovation . P September 2025
. Holding
Board Director
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At the date of Annual Financial Report, the Company’s Supervisory Board is composed of the
following seven (7) members:

Term of Main role in the Main role
Name . outside the Start and end of term of office
office Company
Company
Appointed by the General
Meeting of 3 September 2019
until 2025, and renewed by the
Vice- General Meeting of 3 June 2022
Eric Chairperson Chairperson of | until 2025, at the end of the
of the - the Cougnaud | meeting called to approve the
Cougnaud . . .
Supervisory Group financial statements for the
Board financial year ended 31
December 2024
Appointed by the General
Meeting of 26 June 2020 until
Member of . .
Chairperson of | 2023, at the end of the meeting
I the . . .
Gil Briand ) - the Briand called to approve the financial
Supervisory . .
Group statements for the financial year
Board
ended 31 December 2022
Appointed by the General
Meeting of 4 June 2021 until
Member of Co-Manager of | 2024, at the end of the meeting
Thierry the i Didelon called to approve the financial
Didelon Supervisory Machines statements for the financial year
Board Tools ended 31 December 2023
Appointed by the General
Member of Former Sales Meeting of 4 June 2021 ur‘1t|l
. ) 2024, at the end of the meeting
Isabelle the Director in the . )
. . . called to approve the financial
Mommessin Supervisory construction ) .
. statements for the financial year
Board industry
ended 31 December 2023
Head of Appointed by the General
Independent development | Meeting of 3 June 2019, and
- member of s
Philippe the i Family renewed by the General
Duval ; Business Meeting of 3 June 2022 until
Supervisory .
Oddo BHF 2025, at the end of the meeting
Board . .
Group called to approve the financial
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statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2024

Appointed by the General
Meeting of 4 June 2021 until

Independent Director of .
2024, at the end of the meeting
member of Wealth . .
Alessandra . called to approve the financial
. the Solutions at ) .
Gaudio . . statements for the financial year
Supervisory Generali
ended 31 December 2023
Board France
Appointed by the General
Independent Chief Meeting of 26 June 2020 urml
. 2023, at the end of the meeting
, member of Executive . .
Hervé ) called to approve the financial
L the Officer of ) .
Montjotin . statements for the financial year
Supervisory Socotec
ended 31 December 2022
Board France

The Company’s registered office is located at La Bretaudiere, Chaillé-sous-les-Ormeaux, 85310

Rives de I'Yon.

3.1.1.2.

e Other current mandates:

Other corporate offices

Name Nature of term of office Company
Julen Vonager 56116 Golf Club 14
anager olf Clu
BLANCHARD Chairperson Financiere JG Holding
David Chairperson Hoffmann Capital Holding
HOFFMANN
Chairperson Eludom
Eric Cougnaud Chief Executive Officer Cougnaud
Chief Executive Officer Guillet Production
Co-manager ALL-CGD
Chairperson Briand Group
Chairperson Finergie
Gil Briand Chairperson Winston
Manager SCI Heloi
Chairperson Proxinnov association
) . Co-manager Dagual
Thierry Didelon Co-manager Didelon Machines Tools
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Co-manager Galda
manager Gfa Bethi
Co-manager Mark Techno
Co-manager Sofid
Manager Sogimod
Co-manager SCF Hardy
Member of the Strategy Committee OKWind
Philippe Duval Indeper.1dent dlrgctor Moussgt Group
Strategic consulting Mutualia
Board member Implid
Alessandra Vice-Chairwoman of the Supervisory | Altaprofits
Gaudio Board
Director Cercle des Epargnants
Executive Chairperson and Director
. Socotec Group
Independent director .
; ID Logistics
Chairperson .
. Socotec Gestion
Chairperson .
Chairperson Socotec Environnement
Hervé Chairperson HSM Participations
Montjotin nairpers . HSM 2
Vice-Chairperson of the Supervisory BP2 R
fﬂoaar:: o PAMA SCI
& CORDEE SCI
Manager Dentressangle
Independent director &
Isabelle . MOMMESSIN BERGER endowment
. Founder and Director
Mommessin fund
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e Offices held during the last five financial years and having ended to date:

Name Nature of term of office Company
Julien N/A
BLANCHARD
David N/A
HOFFMANN
Eric Cougnaud N/A
Gil Briand N/A
Thierry Didelon | N/A
. Edrac
- Member of the Supervisory Board Edmond de Rothschild Corporate
Philippe Duval Chairperson of the Management | _.
. Finance
Committee

Chief Executive Officer
Member of the Executive Committee | Swiss Life Gestion Privée

(CIO) Swiss Life Private Bank

Alessandra Member of the Management | Swiss Life France

Gaudio Committee Association of Foreign Banks in France
director Leverage Capital Holdings NV -

Edmond de Rothschild Group
director

Chairperson of the Management Board

Hervé . . . Norbert Dentressangle SA *
V. . Vice-Chairperson of the Supervisory g
Montjotin Socotec France
Board
Isabelle
N/A
Mommessin /

* listed company.

3.1.1.3. Biographies of the members of the Management Board and Supervisory Board
e Julien Blanchard (42 years old) - Chairperson of the Management Board:
Julien Blanchard is co-founder of the Company.

After business school in France and Canada, Julien Blanchard became an entrepreneur in
construction materials (clay, terracotta, plaster, cement).

Julien BLANCHARD specialises in innovative clay-based products.
o David Hoffmann (54 years old) - Member of the Management Board:

David Hoffmann is co-founder and Scientific Director of the Company.
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David Hoffmann is a chemical engineer specialising in solid-state chemistry. From 1991 to
2016, he worked at Trédi, a subsidiary of the Séché Environnement Group as a chemical
engineer working in research and processes.

David Hoffmann specialises in inorganic binders and has over 25 years' experience in chemical
processes.

e Eric Cougnaud (62 years old) - Chairperson of the Supervisory Board:

At the age of 20, Eric Cougnaud joined the family business “Yves Cougnaud” which specialises
in the construction of industrialised buildings, where he held various technical and commercial
positions for more than 10 years. In 1991, he and his three brothers acquired a majority
holding and then the entire Cougnaud group.

For more than 39 years, he has contributed to the development of the Cougnaud group
nationwide, with private companies (industry/services/construction) and local authorities,
offering them solutions for tertiary or social spaces, both for sale and for rent.

Eric Cougnaud holds a bachelor’s degree in administration, finance and commerce.

e Gil Briand (46 years old) - Member of the Supervisory Board:

Gil Briand began his career in 2002 in the corporate finance department of Andersen, where
he took part in company valuation, business plan creation, acquisition audits and vendor due
diligence.

In 2004, he joined the Briand family business managed by his father Roger Briand. He initially
held a position as account manager for the subsidiary Briand Construction Métallique, before
becoming CEO of this subsidiary in 2005, then becoming Chairperson of the group in 2007.

Gil Briand is a graduate of HEC (HEC Entrepreneurship) and ICAM, a general engineering
school.

e Thierry Didelon (62 years old) - Member of the Supervisory Board:

Thierry Didelon began his career in 1984 at Vérandas de I'Ouest as a technical sales
representative for the Vendée region and then for the Paris region. In 1990, he created
Didelon Machines Tools, a used machine tool trading company. Today, Didelon Machines
Tools offers a complete machine tool service, from technology watch to production start-up
and after-sales service, including tooling recommendations, financing and user training.

Thierry Didelon received training in sales and distribution - business management at the
Nantes Chamber of Commerce.
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o Isabelle Mommessin (74 years old) - Member of the Supervisory Board:

Isabelle Mommessin began her career in 1974 at Coopers and Lybrand as an auditor. She then
successively held the positions of export director in wine trading (1979), subsidiary director in
mass distribution (1984) and company director in import-export (1987).

Isabelle Mommessin ended her career in 2008 after having been Sales Director for 15 years in
the construction industry.

Isabelle Mommessin is a graduate of the IEP of Paris (1970), and holds a degree in history from
the University of Paris-Sorbonne (1972), a degree in law from the University of Paris-Sorbonne
(public law option) (1973) and the Diplome d'Etudes Comptables Supérieures (1979).

e Philippe Duval (62 years old) - Independent member of the Supervisory Board:

Philippe Duval began his career in the corporate banking department of Societe Generale. He
worked as head of the corporate market at Banque de Savoie, then spent eight years in the
corporate banking department of ABN AMRO with international groups.

In 2002, he joined Edmond de Rothschild as Head of private banking regions and, from 2016,
served as Chairperson of the Management Committee of the subsidiary in charge of the
corporate finance activity (Edmond de Rothschild Corporate Finance).

In 2021, he joined Oddo BHF as Head of development Family Business.
Philippe Duval completed a postgraduate degree in economics at IAE.

e Alessandra Gaudio (57 years old) - Independent member of the Supervisory Board:

Alessandra Gaudio began her career in Paris in 1990 as a financial analyst at BNP Paribas and
subsequently joined the bank’s asset management position as senior manager. In 1998, she
joined Crédit Agricole Asset Management as Senior Fund Manager. From 2001 to 2007, she
served as Head of Investments for the subsidiary of Crédit Agricole Asset Management in Italy,
then as Chief Investment Officer of Indosuez Gestion, a Crédit Agricole Group company, from
2007 to 2013. She also served as Global Chief Investment Officer Private Banking at Banque
Privée Edmond de Rothschild in Geneva from 2014 to 2015. From 2016 to 2019, she was Chief
Executive Officer and Head of Investments at Swiss Life Gestion Privée in Paris. Since October
2019, she has been Director of Wealth Solutions at Generali France. Since January 2020, it has
also been Vice-Chairwoman of the Supervisory Board at Altaprofits.

Alessandra Gaudio holds a PhD in economics from the Cattolica del Sacro Cuore University,
obtained in 1989 in Milan, and a specialisation in finance in the United States. In 2019, she
obtained the corporate director certificate issued by the Institut Frangais des Administrateurs
(IFA) and Sciences Po.
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e Hervé Montjotin (57 years old) - Independent member of the Supervisory Board:

Hervé Montjotin began his career in 1989 at Bossard Consultants. In 1995, he joined the
Norbert Dentressangle Group, where he successively served as Chief HR and Organisation
Officer, Chief Executive Officer in charge of the Transport Division (2005) and Chairperson of
the Management Board (2012).

Since September 2016, he has served as Executive Chairperson and member of the Board of
Directors of the Socotec Group. He is also an independent director of ID Logistics.

Hervé Montjotin is a graduate of the Ecole Normale Supérieure, has a degree in social sciences
and holds a master’s degree from ESCP.

3.1.1.4. Declarations concerning members of management

To the Company’s knowledge, there are no family ties between the persons listed above.
There are no members of the Management Board elected by employees.
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At the date of the Annual Financial Report, no free shares, options or warrants were allocated
to corporate officers.

The shareholding of corporate officers in the Company’s share capital is detailed below:

Julien Blanchard 18.72% 12,76%M
David Hoffmann 18.55% 0.19% @
Eric Cougnaud - 5.803)
Isabelle Mommessin @ 3.14%
Thierry Didelon - 1.72% @
Gil Briand ) - 1.18%
Alessandra Gaudio ® - NS
Hervé Montjotin ) - NS
Philippe Duval - -

(2)

Julien Blanchard holds 57.52% of JB Finance, which holds 74.42% of Gillaizeau Terre
Cuite, a shareholder of the Company (1,867,961 shares).

David Hoffmann holds 99.9% of Hoffmann Capital, a shareholder of the Company (27,900
shares).

Eric Cougnaud holds 25% of ELUDOM, a shareholder of the Company (848,218 shares).
Thierry Didelon holds 99.9% of SCP Ardi, a shareholder of the Company (251,100 shares).
It is specified that Hestia, wholly owned by Gil Briand, is a shareholder of the Company
(172,235 shares).

Alessandra Gaudio holds 2,758 Company shares.
Hervé Montjotin holds 4.542 Company shares

Isabelle Mommessin holds 459,963 Company shares
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With the exception of Philippe Duval, all the other members of the Management Board and
the Supervisory Board are shareholders of the Company, directly or indirectly. The Articles of
Association provide that members of the Management Board (Article 16) and Supervisory
Board members (with the exception of independent members) (Article 12) must hold at least
1,000 Company shares.

In order to resolve potential conflicts of interest within the Supervisory Board, internal rules
came into force on 3 September 2019 and details their duties to the members of the
Supervisory Board. In addition, these internal rules provide, on the one hand, that any
member must inform the Supervisory Board of any situation of conflict of interest, even
potential, with the Company and, on the other hand, that in the event of conflict of interest,
the member concerned will be excluded from the discussions and must abstain from voting
on the corresponding resolution.

In addition, in the event of recourse by the Company to a service provider or in the event of
the purchase of goods from a supplier, the Company’s policy is to call for competing estimates.
The services or purchases are chosen according to criteria of price, quality, expertise and
geographical proximity. The purpose of this policy is to limit the risk of conflicts of interest
with corporate officers who are managers of companies that could potentially provide the
Company with services or goods.

To the Company’s knowledge, apart from the fact that David Hoffmann is an employee of the
Company and as such has an employment contract, there is no potential conflict of interest at
the date of the Annual Financial Report between the duties of the members of the Supervisory
Board and the Management Board with respect to the Company and their private interests.

At the date of the Annual Financial Report, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is
no pact or agreement entered into with shareholders, customers, suppliers or other parties
under which any of the members of the Supervisory Board or the Supervisory Board.
Management Board was appointed in this capacity.

At the date of the Annual Financial Report, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, there are
no restrictions accepted by the members of the Supervisory Board or the Company’s
Management Board concerning the sale of their shareholding in the Company’s share capital,
with the exception of the rules relating to the prevention of insider trading and the lock-up
commitments made to the underwriting syndicate as part of the IPO transaction, as described
in the Prospectus relating to this transaction. In addition, each member of the Supervisory
Board or Management Board must directly or indirectly hold at least 1,000 Company shares,
it being specified that this condition does not apply to members of the Supervisory Board who
qualify as independent.

3.1.1.5. Presentation of the management team: an experienced and visionary team

The Hoffmann Green industrial project is led by a team with complementary profiles and skills,
at the crossroads of scientific and industrial fields. The members of this visionary team are all
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driven by a common ambition: to participate in the environmental transition of the
construction sector by offering high-performance decarbonised cements that break with
existing technologies and can meet the challenges of climate change.

Julien Blanchard - Chairperson of the Management Board

Julien Blanchard is the co-founder and Chairperson of the Management
Board of the Company.

After business school in France and Canada, Julien Blanchard became an
entrepreneur in the field of construction materials (clay, terracotta,
plaster, cement).

Julien Blanchard specialises in innovative clay-based products.

David Hoffmann - Chief Scientific Officer, member of the Management Board

David Hoffmann is the co-founder and Scientific Director of the Company.
He is also a member of the Company’s Management Board.

David Hoffmann is a chemical engineer specialising in solid-state
chemistry. From 1991 to 2016, he worked at Trédi, a subsidiary of the
Séché Environnement Group as a chemical engineer working in research
and processes. David Hoffmann specialises in inorganic binders and has
over 25 years' experience in chemical processes.

Jérdme Caron - Chief Financial Officer

Jérome Caron joined the Company in 2019 to take on the duties of Chief
Financial Officer.

A graduate of the IPAG business school and holder of a Diplome d'Etudes
Comptables et Financiéres (DECF), Jérbme Caron has extensive
experience as administrative and financial director in France and
internationally, within the Suez and Engie groups.

As part of his professional experience, Jérome Caron has participated in
the development of projects in high-growth contexts and has acquired
solid skills in management control, financing and mergers and
acquisitions.
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Patrick Nieuport - Chief Operating Officer
Patrick Nieuport joined the Company in 2017 as Chief Operating Officer.

] An electrical mechanic by training, Patrick Nieuport has 15 years of
: experience as a multi-site operations manager within the Durand TP
t"‘% group. This professional experience has enabled Patrick Nieuport to
develop strong skills in the management of industrial sites, as well as in

the design and optimisation of processes.

David Guglielmetti - Director of Development

y , David Guglielmetti joined the Company in 2018 as Director of
Development.
-

0
' ':535 With dual training in civil engineering and management, David
Guglielmetti has 22 years of experience at HeidelbergCement, a group
‘ where he worked before taking over the position of Director of Marketing

and Innovation for all business lines of the group. During his career, David
Guglielmetti has participated in the development of numerous
innovation projects.

David Guglielmetti has an excellent knowledge of the cement and
concrete market in France, enabling him to identify key strategic
partnerships for the Company.

Julien Blanchard, David Hoffmann, Jérome Caron, Patrick Nieuport and David Guglielmetti
together make up the Company’s Executive Committee. The Executive Committee meets once
a week to deal with matters relating to the Company’s management.

3.2. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

3.2.1.1. Compensation of members of the Executive Board

Tables 1, 2 and 11 of Appendix 2 of AMF Position-Recommendation No. 2021-02 are presented
below. The other tables are not applicable:

-215-



CATALYST OF

CARBON TRANSITION

Table 1: Summary of compensation and options and shares granted to each executive
corporate officer

Summary table of compensation and options and shares granted to each executive corporate officer

In€ Financial year ended 31/12/2022 Financial year ended 31/12/2021

Julien Blanchard

. Amounts .
Chairperson of the Amounts owed| Amounts paid owed Amounts paid
Management Board
Compensation due for the | o) 3; 5q¢ £137,398 £€137,714 £€137,714

year

Valuation of variable multi-
annual compensation N/A N/A N/A N/A
allocated for the year

Valuation of options

N/A N/A N/A N/A
allocated during the year / / / /
Valuation of free shares
allocated N/A N/A N/A N/A
TOTAL €137,398 €137,398 €137,714 €137,714
David Hoffmann

Amounts . Amounts .
Member of the owed Amounts paid owed Amounts paid
Management Board
Compensation due for the N/A N/A N/A N/A

year

Valuation of variable multi-
annual compensation N/A N/A N/A N/A
allocated for the year

Valuation of  options

allocated during the year N/A N/A N/A N/A
Valuation of free shares

allocated N/A N/A N/A N/A
TOTAL N/A N/A N/A N/A
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) David Hoffmann is compensated under an employment contract covering his functions
as Scientific and Innovation Director (see table 11 below).

Table 2: Summary table of the compensation of each executive corporate officer

Summary table of compensation
In € Financial year ended Financial year ended
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
Jul!en Blanchard, Amounts Amounts Amounts .
Chairperson of the . Amounts paid
owed paid owed
Management Board
Fixed compensation €132 000 €132 000 €132 000 €132 000
Variable ‘ annual N/A N/A N/A N/A
compensation
Variable . multi-annual N/A N/A N/A N/A
compensation
Exceptional N/A N/A N/A N/A
compensation
Compensation allocated
for director's office N/A N/A N/A N/A
Benefits in kind €5,398 €5,398 €5714 €5714
TOTAL €137,398 €137,398 €137,714 €137,714
David Hoffmann
Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts paid
Member of the owed paid owed .
Management Board'"
Fixed compensation N/A N/A N/A N/A
Variable annual
compensation N/A N/A N/A N/A
Variable multl—:annual N/A N/A N/A N/A
compensation
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Exceptional
compensation N/A N/A N/A N/A
Compensation allocated
for director's office N/A N/A N/A N/A
Benefits in kind N/A N/A N/A N/A
TOTAL N/A N/A N/A N/A

) David Hoffmann is compensated under an employment contract covering his functions
as Scientific and Innovation Director (see table 11 below).

Summary of the compensation policy for Julien Blanchard for the current fiscal year

At the Supervisory Board meeting of September 3, 2019, the compensation of Julien Blanchard
for his duties as member and Chairperson of the Management Board was set at the sum of €
132,000 gross over twelve (12) months.

This fixed compensation will be supplemented by a variable compensation corresponding to
one percent (1%) of the gross margin arising from the Company’s financial statements (under
IFRS), it being specified that this is calculated as follows: revenue - purchases of raw materials.
Variable compensation will in any event be capped at € 20 000 gross.

Julien Blanchard is also entitled to the reimbursement of expenses incurred in the course of
his duties, upon presentation of receipts.

Summary of the compensation policy for David Hoffmann for the current fiscal year

At the Supervisory Board meeting of September 3, 2019, the compensation of David Hoffmann
for his duties as a member of the Management Board was set as follows:

- no fixed compensation;

- variable compensation corresponding to one percent (1%) of the gross margin arising
from the Company’s financial statements (under IFRS), it being specified that this is
calculated as follows: revenue - purchases of consumed materials. Variable
compensation will in any event be capped at € 20 000 gross.

David Hoffmann is also entitled to the reimbursement of expenses incurred in the course of
his duties, upon presentation of receipts.
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Table 11: Details of the compensation conditions and other benefits granted to executive
corporate officers

Compensation
or benefits due
or likely to be Compensation
. Employment Supplementary L . .
Executive . due as a result relating to a non-
; contract pension plan .
corporate officers of termination compete clause
or change of
function
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
Julien Blanchard,
Chairperson of
the Management
X X X X
Board

Commencement |Appointed by the Supervisory Board meeting of September 3, 2019 as
date of term of Chairperson of the Management Board

office:
End date of term | Up to 3 September 2025
of office:

David Hoffmann,
Member of the
Management
Board
Commencement | Appointed by the Supervisory Board meeting of September 3, 2019 as a member
date of term of of the Management Board

office:

x @ X X x @

End date of term | Up to 3 September 2025
of office:

@ David Hoffmann’s employment contract was signed on April 16, 2018 in respect of his
duties as Scientific and Innovation Director.

@ David Hoffmann’s employment contract provides for the payment of compensation
by the Company to David Hoffmann under a non-compete clause. In return for his
non-compete obligation, David Hoffmann would receive a monthly payment, for a
period of 24 months from the termination of his duties, of an amount equal to 65% of
the average gross monthly salary (which is fixed) paid to him during his last 12 months
with the Company. Any breach of the non-compete clause by David Hoffmann would
render him liable for a penalty to be paid to the Company. David Hoffmann’s
employment contract does not provide for the payment of any other compensation.
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3.2.1.2. Compensation of members of the Supervisory Board

The members of the Supervisory Board do not benefit from any specific pension
commitments, severance pay or non-compete benefits.

It is specified that the members of the Supervisory Board may receive directors’ fees, the
amount of which is voted annually by the Ordinary General Meeting and the distribution of
which is freely decided by the Supervisory Board, based on the attendance of Supervisory
Board members and the time they devote to their duties, it being specified that only
Supervisory Board members who are independent members may receive attendance fees.

Under resolution 7 of the resolution of the general meeting of 3 June 2022, the shareholders
of the Company set the total compensation of the members of the Supervisory Board
(formerly Directors’ fees) at €10,000 to be distributed among each member for the 2022
financial year. It will be proposed, at the next Ordinary General Meeting of the Company, to
renew this total amount to €10,000.

In addition, each member of the Supervisory Board is entitled, upon presentation of the
corresponding supporting documents, to be reimbursed for all travel expenses incurred in the

performance of his or her corporate office.

Table 3 of Appendix 2 of AMF Position-Recommendation No. 2021-02 is presented below:

Table 3: Compensation allocated and received by non-executive corporate officers

Amounts Amounts
Non-executive allocated for Amounts paid allocated for | Amounts paid in
corporate officers the 2021 in 2021 the 2022 2022
financial year financial year
Eric Cougnaud
Compensation
allocated N/A N/A N/A N/A
Other compensation N/A N/A N/A N/A
Gil Briand
Compensation
allocated N/A N/A N/A N/A
Other compensation N/A N/A N/A N/A
Thierry Didelon
Compensation
allocated N/A N/A N/A N/A
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Other compensation N/A N/A N/A N/A
Philippe Duval
Compensation 3.333¢€ €3 846 €3,572 3.333¢€
allocated
Other compensation N/A N/A N/A N/A
Alessandra Gaudio
Compensation €2,667 3.077 € €3,572 €2,667
allocated
Other compensation N/A N/A N/A N/A
Isabelle Mommessin
Compensation
allocated N/A N/A N/A N/A
Other compensation N/A N/A N/A N/A
Hervé Montjotin
Compensation € 4,000 3.077 € €2,857 € 4,000
allocated
Other compensation N/A N/A N/A N/A
TOTAL 10.000 € 10.000 € 10.000 € 10.000 €
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In accordance with recommendation No 16 of the Middlenext Code as revised in September
2021, the equity ratio used to compare the level of compensation of the members of the
Management Board with the minimum wage is as follows:

Ratio
Julien BLANCHARD 7.0
David HOFFMANN 7.0

The Company has not set aside any provisions for the payment of pensions, retirement or
other benefits to corporate officers.

The Company did not grant any arrival or departure bonuses to corporate officers.

At the date of the Annual Financial Report, no free shares, options or warrants were allocated
to corporate officers.

David Hoffmann holds an employment contract entered into prior to his appointment to the
Management Board by the Supervisory Board at its meeting of September 3, 2019.

None.
3.3. OPERATION OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE AND MANAGEMENT BODIES

The Company’s Articles of Association are available on the Company’s website.
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3.3.1.1. Management Board

The Company is managed by a Management Board composed of two members (see section
3.1.1.1 “Composition of the Management Board and Supervisory Board” of the Annual
Financial Report). The Management Board is governed in accordance with the legal provisions
and the stipulations of Articles 16, 17 and 18 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

The members of the Management Board are appointed for a term of six (6) years by the
Supervisory Board, which appoints one of them as Chairperson. The Supervisory Board
determines their compensation.

In addition to the legal requirements for prior authorisations by the Supervisory Board, the
Executive Board may not carry out the following transactions without the Supervisory Board’s
prior authorisation:

a. any investment or equity investment, in any form whatsoever, of an amount
exceeding three (3) million euros;

b. any major transaction likely to substantially modify the scope of activity of the
Company and the group it controls;

c. any merger, spin-off or contribution to which the Company is a party;

d. any financing transaction likely to substantially modify the Company’s financial
structure, in an amount exceeding five (5) million euros;

e. any loan, including bonds, in an amount exceeding five (5) million euros.

3.3.1.2.  Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board exercises permanent control over the management of the Company by
the Management Board. It is composed of seven members (see section 3.1.1.1 “Composition
of the Management Board and Supervisory Board” of the Annual Financial Report). The
Supervisory Board is governed in accordance with the legal provisions and the provisions of
Articles 12, 13, 14 and 15 of the Company’s Articles of Association, as well as by the
Supervisory Board'’s internal rules.

Any individual or legal entity may be appointed to the Supervisory Board, subject to owning
or becoming the owner, directly or indirectly, of at least 1,000 shares of the Company within
three (3) months of this appointment. However, this condition does not apply to members of
the Supervisory Board deemed independent.

The members of the Supervisory Board are appointed for a term of three (3) years; their duties
end at the end of the Ordinary General Meeting called to approve the financial statements for
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the past financial year and held during the year in which their term of office expires. The terms
of office are renewed on a rotating basis, meaning that the members of the Supervisory Board
are renewed regularly in the most equal proportions possible. By way of exception, the
Ordinary General Meeting may appoint a member of the Supervisory Board for a shorter term.
The Supervisory Board authorises the Management Board to carry out the transactions set
out above in Section 3.3.1.1 of the Annual Financial Report, for which its prior approval is
required.

The Supervisory Board may decide to create committees to examine issues submitted to them
by the Supervisory Board or its Chairperson; it sets their composition, their powers and, where

applicable, the compensation of their members.

The General Meeting may allocate annual compensation to the members of the Supervisory
Board (formerly called “directors’ fees”).

The Supervisory Board may freely distribute the total amount allocated among its members.

The Chairperson of the Supervisory Board will receive no compensation other than that
allocated to him or her for his or her office (formerly known as “directors’ fees”).

As at the date of the Annual Financial Report, there are no service contracts binding the
members of the Management Board or Supervisory Board to the Company or its subsidiary,
providing for the granting of benefits.

At the date of Annual Financial Report, there are no specialised committees.

The Middlenext Code recommends that the Board, which remains the decision-making body
for the establishment of specialised committees, decides, according to its size, needs and
current events, to organise itself with or without specialized committees. The Supervisory
Board considered that it was not appropriate to set up such committees at this stage.

For the sake of transparency and public information in view of the admission of its shares to
trading on the Euronext Growth Paris market, the Company has undertaken a comprehensive
review of corporate governance practices.

The Company has designated the Middlenext Code as the reference code with which it intends
to comply as from the admission of its shares to trading on the Euronext Growth Paris market.

-224-



CATALYST OF

CARBON TRANSITION

The table below shows the Middlenext!? recommendations with which the Company
complies, and those it intends to follow in the future:

R1: Ethics of Board
members

R2: Conflicts of interest X

R3: Composition of the
Board - Presence of
independent members on
the Board

R4: Information for Board
members

R5: Training of Board
members

R6: Organisation of Board
and Committee meetings
R7: Establishment of
committees

R8: Establishment of a
specialised CSR committee
R9: Implementation of
internal rules for the X
Board

R10: Choice of each
director

R11: Term of office of
Board members

R12: Director’s
compensation

R13: Implementation of
an assessment of the X*EE
Board’s work

R14: Relations with
“shareholders”

x**

12 The Middlenext recommendations stemming from the Corporate Governance Code (updated in
September 2021) for mid and small caps are available on the Middlenext website:
http://middlenext.com.
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R15: Diversity and equity
policy within the company
R16: Definition and
transparency of the
executive compensation
of corporate officers

R17: Preparation of the
succession of “executives”
R18: Combination of
employment contract and X
corporate office

R19: Severance payments X

R20: Supplementary
pension plans

R21: Stock options and
allocation of free shares
R22: Review of points of
vigilance X

* Philippe Duval, Alessandra Gaudio and Hervé Montjotin comply with the five independence criteria set by the
Middlenext Code, namely: (i) not to have been over the last five years or currently be an employee or executive
corporate officer of the Company or a company of its Group, (ii) not to have been over the last two years or
currently be in a material business relationship with the Company or its Group, (iii) not to be a shareholder of the
Company or hold a significant percentage of voting rights, (iv) not to have a close relationship with a corporate
officer or a reference shareholder, (v) not to have been Statutory Auditor of the Company in the last six years.

** The Middlenext Code recommends that the Board, which remains the decision-making body for the
establishment of specialised committees, decides, according to its size, needs and current events, to organise itself
with or without specialised committees. The Supervisory Board considered that it was not appropriate to set up
such committees at this stage.

*** The procedure for assessing the work of the Supervisory Board was approved at the Board meeting of October
2, 2020. The Company plans to carry out a new assessment of the Board’s work

It is specified that the Company intends to comply with recommendation No 17 during the
2023 financial year.

The indication relating to recommendation No 21 is placed in the “plans to comply” box as no
allocation has been made to date. The Company will comply with this recommendation when
considering whether to grant stock options or free shares to corporate officers.
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3.4. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties as covered by the standards adopted in accordance
with European Regulation (EC) 1606/2002 and entered into by the Company during the 2019,
2020, 2021 and 2022 financial years are provided in note 6.10.2 to the IFRS financial
statements presented in section 2.1 “Financial statements prepared under IFRS for the
financial year ended 31 December 2022” in the Annual Financial Report.

The Company did not enter into any related-party agreements during the 2022 financial year.

Since 15t°f July 2017, tenant of offices and premises La Bretaudiére - Chaillé-sous-les-Ormeaux
- 85310 Rives de I'Yon, held by the simplified joint stock company Argilus of which Mr Julien
Blanchard, Chairperson of the Management Board, is the majority shareholder. Since that
date, the Company has made more than €1 million in improvements and investments on the
site and paid annual rent of €71,000 to Argilus, excluding taxes and charges, to benefit from
offices with a surface area of 689 m? and a warehouse with an area of 191m?.

On 19 December 2022, the Company acquired the site (excluding the quarries) from Argilus,
including offices, a warehouse and a storage area with an area of 4,000 m2 and land with an
area of 3 ha for an amount of €1.9 million excluding taxes.

The companies Gillaizeau Terre Cuite (held 87.90% by J.B. Finance, itself held 57.52% by Mr
Julien Blanchard up to and Argilus, subsequently became tenants of the warehouse held by
the Company, thus generating payment to the Company of an annual rent, excluding taxes
and charges, of €30,000.

In this context, the Supervisory Board, on 9 December 2022, authorised the conclusion of the
agreement for the acquisition of offices and premises with Argilus, of which Mr Julien
Blanchard is the majority shareholder.

It should also be noted that only one related-party agreement was entered into during
financial year 2020. As part of the construction of the “H2” production unit, the Company
entered into a “general contractor” contract with Design & Build, a subsidiary of the Briand
Group, for an amount of more than €5 million. As Mr Gil Briand, a member of the Supervisory
Board, is the majority shareholder of the Briand Group the Supervisory Board gave its
authorisation on February 28, 2020, prior to the conclusion of the contract, after the Company
had carried out a tendering procedure. Design & Build was selected for the following reasons:

- Design & Build has extensive technical expertise;

- it has the necessary resources; and
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- it agreed to be paid on the basis of a “cost plus fee”, offering transparency and
flexibility in the choice of processes to be implemented

The special report of the Company’s Statutory Auditors on the regulated agreements and
commitments referred to in Article L. 225-86 of the French Commercial Code for the 2022
financial year is presented in section 3.4.3 “Statutory Auditors’ special report on related-party
agreements” in the Annual Financial Report below.
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KPMG SA

7 boulevard Albert Einstein
BP 41125

44311 Nantes

Hoffmann Green Gement
Technologies S.A.

Rapport spécial du commissaire aux comptes sur les conventions
réglementées

Assemblée générale d'approbation des comptes
de I'exercice clos le 31 décembre 2022

Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies S.A.
La Bretaudiére Chaillé-sous-les-Ormeaux 85310 RIVES DE L'YON

KPMG SA,, société dexpertise comptable et de Société anonyme & conseil
inscrte au d

experts comptables de Paris sous le n* 14-30080101 et Siége social :

rattachée & la Compagnie régionale des commissaires aux  Tour EQHO

comptes de Versalles et du Centre. 2 avenue Gambetta

Société CS 60055
cabinets indépendants affiiés 4 KPMG Infemational Limted, 92086 Paris La Défense Cedex
une société de droit anglais ( private company imited by Capital social : 5 497 100 €
guarantee ). 775 726 417 RCS Nanterre
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KPMG SA

7 boulevard Albert Einstein
BP 41125

44311 Nantes

Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies S.A.
La Bretaudiére Chaillé-sous-les-Ormeaux 85310 RIVES DE L'YON

Rapport spécial du commissaire aux comptes sur les conventions réglementées

Assemblée générale d'approbation des comptes de I'exercice clos le 31 décembre 2022

A I'assemblée générale de la société Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies S.A.,

En notre qualité de commissaire aux comptes de votre société, nous vous présentons notre rapport
sur les conventions réglementées.

Il nous appartient de vous communiquer, sur la base des informations qui nous ont été données, les
caractéristiques, les modalités essentielles ainsi que les motifs justifiant de I'intérét pour la société
des conventions dont nous avons été avisés ou que nous aurions découvertes a I'occasion de notre
mission, sans avoir & nous prononcer sur leur utilité et leur bien-fondé ni & rechercher ['existence
d’autres conventions. Il vous appartient, selon les termes de I'article R. 225-58 du code de commerce,
d'apprécier l'intérét qui s'attachait a la conclusion de ces conventions en vue de leur approbation.

Par ailleurs, il nous appartient, le cas échéant, de vous communiquer les informations prévues a
l'article R. 225-58 du code de commerce relatives a I'exécution, au cours de I'exercice écoulé, des
conventions déja approuvées par 'assemblée générale.

Nous avons mis en ceuvre les diligences que nous avons estimé nécessaires au regard de la doctrine
professionnelle de la Compagnie nationale des commissaires aux comptes relative a cette mission.
Ces diligences ont consisté & vérifier la concordance des informations qui nous ont été données avec
les documents de base dont elles sont issues.

KPMG S A, 50016 dexpertise comptable et de Société anonyme & conseil
commissaires aux comples lnscrite au Tableau de [Ordre des d'administration
experts comptables de Paris sous le n* 14-30080101 et Siége social
ratiachée & la Compagnie régionale des commissaesaux  Tour EQHO
comptes de Versadtes et du Centre. 2 avenue Gambetta
constitué de CS 60055
cabinets indépendants affiiés & KPMG Intemational Limted, 92088 Paris La Défense Cedex
6 ( npa by Capital social : 5 497 100 €
guarantee ). 775 726 417 RCS Nanterre
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CONVENTIONS SOUMISES A L’APPROBATION DE I'ASSEMBLEE GENERALE

Conventions autorisées et conclues au cours de I'exercice écoulé

En application de l'article L. 225-88 du code de commerce, nous avons été avisés des conventions
suivantes conclues au cours de I'exercice écoulé qui ont fait I'objet de |'autorisation préalable de votre
conseil de surveillance.

Contrat d’acquisition de bureaux et de locaux avec la société Argilus

— Personne concernée :
Monsieur Julien Blanchard, Président du Directoire d’'HGCT et actionnaire majoritaire d'Argilus.

— Nature et objet :
Contrat d'acquisition de bureaux et de locaux.

— Modalités :

La Société a acquis le 19 décembre 2022 auprés d'Argilus le site (hors carriéres), comprenant des
bureaux, un entrepét et une zone de stockage d’'une superficie de 4.000 m2 et des terrains d'une
superficie de 3 ha pour un montant de 1.9 millions d’euros hors taxes. Cette convention a été
autorisée par le Conseil de Surveillance du 9 décembre 2022.

— Motifs justifiant de son intérét pour la société :

HGCT était locataire d'Argilus pour la location de ces locaux depuis le 1° juillet 2017. Depuis cette
date, la Société a réalisé des travaux d'aménagements et d’investissements sur le site et payé un
loyer annuel.

De maniére concomitante a I'acquisition du 19 décembre 2022, les sociétés Gillaizeau Terre Cuite et
Argilus sont devenues locataires d’une partie de I'entrepét détenue par HGCT contre le versement
d'un loyer annuel hors taxes et hors charges de 30.000 euros.

CONVENTIONS DEJA APPROUVEES PAR I'ASSEMBLEE GENERALE

Conventions approuvées au cours d’exercices antérieurs dont ’exécution s’est poursuivie au
cours de I'exercice écoulé

En application de I'article R. 225-57 du code de commerce, nous avons été informés que I'exécution
des conventions suivantes, déja approuvées par I'assemblée générale au cours d'exercices
antérieurs, s’est poursuivie au cours de I'exercice écoulé.

Contrat de contractant générale avec la société Design and Build filiale du Groupe Briand

— Personne concernée :
Monsieur Gil Briand, membre du Conseil de Surveillance.

Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies S.A.

Rapport spécial du commissaire aux comptes sur les conventions réglementées

Assemblée générale d'approbation des comptes 3
de I'exercice clos le 31 décembre 2022
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— Nature et objet :
Contrat de « contractant général » avec la société Design & Build, filiale du Groupe Briand.

— Modalités :
Dans le cadre de la construction de I'unité de production « H2 », la Société a conclu le 10 septembre
2020 un contrat de « contractant général » avec la société Design & Build, filiale du Groupe Briand,

pour un montant de plus de 5 M€E. Cette convention a été autorisée par le Conseil de Surveillance du
28 février 2020.

— Motifs justifiant de son intérét pour la société :
La société Design & Build a notamment été retenue pour les raisons suivantes :
- La société Design & Build jouit d’'une grande expertise technique ;
- Elle dispose des ressources nécessaires ;
- Elle accepte d'étre rémunérée sur la base d'un « cost plus fee », offrant une transparence et
une flexibilité dans le choix des procédés a metire en oeuvre.

Nantes, le 17 avril 2023
KPMG S.A.

£

=~

Gwenaél CHEDALEUX |
Associe

L

Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies S.A.

Rapport spécial du commissaire aux comptes sur les conventions réglementées

Assemblée générale d'approbation des comptes 4
de I'exercice clos le 31 décembre 2022
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3.5. SUMMARY TABLE OF DELEGATIONS OF POWERS AND AUTHORITY GRANTED BY
THE GENERAL MEETING

At the date of the Annual Financial Report, the Company’s share capital amounts to
€14.636.693, divided into 14,636,693 shares with a par value of €1 each, all fully subscribed

and paid up.

The General Meeting of the Company's shareholders of 3 June 2022 decided on the following

delegations or authorisations granted to the Management Board to increase or reduce the

share capital:

Term of Maximum
validit nominal Procedures for
Subject of resolution v .. ] Use of delegation
from 3 June amount determining price
2022 (in €)
Authorisation to be granted to the ) )
Management Board to trade in the This delegation was
Company’s shares (share buyback € 100'000’000 Max. price € 60 per u§ed.a's part of the
programme) - resolution 8 18 months | 10% of share share liquidity contract
capital for a total amount
of € 300,000.
Delegation of authority to be granted Delegation not used
to the Management Board to issue,
with preferential subscription rights, .
shares and/or securities giving access 26 months | 1.000.000 €
to new Company shares - resolution 9
Delegation of authority to be granted The issue price of the |Delegation not used
to the Management Board to issue, new shares must be
with cancellation of preferential at least equal to the
subscription rights, shares and/or 1.000.000 €* | volume-weighted
securities giving access to hew 20% of the |average of the prices
Company shares in accordance with share capital | Of the last three (3)
Article L. 225-136 of the French per year for trading sessions on
. . . . : the Euronext Growth
Commercial Code, in particular in the public offers . .
. . .| Paris market prior to
context of a public offering - 18 months | referred to in

resolution 10

Article L. 411-2
1° of the
French
Monetary and
Financial Code

the start of the public

offering within the
meaning of

Regulation (EU) No.
2017/1129,

potentially reduced

by a maximum
discount of 20%;
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Term of Maximum
Subject of resolution validity nominal Procet.iu.res fo.r Use of delegation
from 3 June amount determining price
2022 (in €)
Delegation of authority to be granted The issue price of the |Delegation not used
to the Management Board to issue new shares must be
shares and/or securities giving access at least equal to the
to new shares, with waiver of volume-weighted
preferential subscription rights, in average of the share
favour of a category of persons - prices of the last
resolution 11 ** 18 months | 1.000.000 €* thret? (3) trading
sessions on the
Euronext Growth
Paris market prior to
its setting, potentially
reduced by a
maximum discount of
20%
Authorisation to be granted to the 26 months Delegation not used
Management Board to increase, in 30 months
accordance with Article L. 225-135-1 | (it being
of the French Commercial Code, the | specified
number of securities to be issued on | that this
the occasion of issues carried out authorisatio
with maintenance or removal of pre- | n must be
emptive subscription rights - implemente| 15% of the
resolution 12 d within 30 | amount of the -
days of the | initial issue
closing of
the
subscription
to the
capital
increase in
question).
Delegation of authority to be granted Delegation not used
to the Management Board to issue Price determined
shares and/or securities giving access under the conditions
to new Company shares to 26 months 1% of share provided for in
employees who are members of a capital * Articles L. 3332-20 et

company savings plan, with
cancellation of preferential
subscription rights in accordance with

seq. of the French
Labour Code
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Term of Maximum
Subject of resolution validity nominal Procet.iu.res fo.r Use of delegation
from 3 June amount determining price
2022 (in €)
Article L. 225-129-6 of the French
Commercial Code - resolution 13
Authorisation to be given to the Grant of 42,647
Management Board to allocate free shares on 16
shares to eligible employees or January 2023
corporate officers of the Company 22,147 shares
and related companies - resolution under Plan 5 and
15 20,500 shares
under Plan 6),
representing less
38 months 10% ofshare - than 1% of the
capital .
share capital at the
time of the grant,
which may only be
vested at the end of
a three-year vesting
period under Plan 5
and one year under
Plan 6.
Delegation of powers to be granted The share Delegation not used
to the Management Board to capital may be
increase the share capital by raised on one
incorporation of reserves, premiums, or more
profits or other in accordance with occasions and
Article L. 225-130 of the French in the
, ) 26 months . -
Commercial Code - resolution 16 proportion and
at the dates
determined by
the
Management
Board
Authorisation to be given to the 10% of share Delegation not used
Management Board to reduce the .
24 months | capital per 24- -

share capital by cancelling shares -
resolution 17

month periods

*the maximum nominal amount of capital increases that may be carried out, immediately or in the future, is
deducted from the overall limit on authorisations for issuance in cash of €1,000,000 (resolution 14 of the General

Meeting of 3 June 2022).

** definition of the category of persons:
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- French or foreign investment companies or collective savings funds, which regularly invest or have
invested more than € 5 million in the last 36 months in medium and small companies (i) operating in the
construction sector or (ii) having an activity whose objective or consequence is to reduce CO, emissions;

- French or foreign companies or groups operating in these sectors,

- French or foreign companies or groups that have entered into a partnership with the Company as part of
the conduct of its business, or

—  creditors holding liquid receivables, whether due or not, against the Company having expressed their
wish to have their receivable converted into Company shares and for which the Company’s Management
Board deems it appropriate to offset their receivables with Company shares,

it being specified that the number of beneficiaries, which the Management Board will identify within the above
category, may not exceed thirty (30) per issue.

There is also a previous delegation in force granted to the Management Board on the occasion
of the General Meeting of 4 June 2021:

Period of .
. Maximum
] ] validity ) Procedures for )
Subject of resolution nominal .. ] Use of delegation
from 4 June amount (in €) determining price
2021
Authorisation to be given to the
Management Board to grant stock
options or purchase of shares to
P P 10% of share .

employees of the Company or related | 38 months capital - Delegation not used
companies - resolution 18 P

At the date of Annual Financial Report, there is no commitment to increase the share capital.
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4. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

INTRODUCTION

Through its design and production of clinker-free decarbonised cement, Hoffmann Green
Cement Technologies undoubtedly brings societal added value to the construction sector. The
Company is therefore aware of raising other expectations in terms of overall, social and
environmental performance consistent with its corporate purpose. Also, while being focused
on its development objectives, Hoffmann Green Cement intends to intends to translate its
commitment into its organisation and to demonstrate this transparently through a few non-
financial indicators illustrating its CSR approach in three areas:

Develop
open
governance

-
=4
.

..‘\ L\“\

[ o
Responsible
]

partner
Guarantee
quality

/

To select these indicators, Hoffmann Green relied on its materiality analysis of societal issues
carried out in 2020, reinforced by voluntary non-financial ratings from Gaia d'Ethifinance and
Sustainalytics. Hoffmann Green also wanted to highlight the actions implemented since its
creation, and in particular since the launch of the first plant in early 2019, which demonstrate
and ensure the relevance of its development model. Thus, this year, Hoffmann Green reported
on seven issues:

- Responsible producer: reducing the carbon footprint; Preserving resources

- Responsible employer: developing new high-quality industrial jobs; take action
for health and safety at work.

- Responsible partner: guaranteeing quality, developing open governance,
regional anchoring
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RESPONSIBLE PRODUCER

Cement is the most used material in the world after water. Its traditional production method
has remained virtually unchanged since its creation 200 years ago. It consists of extracting
limestone from the ground, heating it at 1,450° C for 18 hours to obtain clinker, which
constitutes the cement powder.

The difference of Hoffmann Green cement comes from a revolutionary production process
that reduces the carbon footprint and promotes the preservation of natural resources.

The challenge of reducing the carbon footprint

According to IPCC experts®3, to keep climate change within a trajectory of + 2°C by 2100, we
must halve our greenhouse gas emissions by 2030 and achieve carbon neutrality by 2050.

e ASPECT 1: REDUCING THE CARBON FOOTPRINT OF CEMENT
Cement production alone accounts for 5 to 7% of CO, emissions worldwide.

In the update of the French National Low Carbon Strategy (SNBC) in 2020, the achievement of
construction objectives is subject to five factors, including “increasing the use of low-carbon
construction products and equipment with good energy and environmental performance,
such as those resulting from the circular or biosourced economy, via performance objectives
on the carbon footprint of buildings over their life cycle, for both renovation and
construction”4,

Reducing the carbon footprint of cement is the purpose of the company. The new cements
developed by Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies reduce CO, emissions fivefold®
compared to traditional Portland cement (CEM 1) thanks to a new industrial cold activation
process, without a kiln.

B3 IPCC: Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change

14 Revised SNBC completes: https://www.ecologie.gouv.fr/sites/default/files/2020-03-
25 _MTES_SNBC2.pdf

15 H-IONA Cement has a carbon footprint of 161 kg/ton of cements produced
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Cement mapping and carbon intensity'®
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16 Source: “Concrete Sector Brief”, Hub for Low Carbon specifiers, produced by Carbone 4 and Ifpeb,

December 2020. https://www.ifpeb.fr/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/IFPEB-Carbone4_Messages-
cles_Brief-Filiere-Beton_20201208.pdf
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ACTIONS IMPLEMENTED
October 2018 - Inauguration of the first plant

At the end of 2018, Hoffmann Green Cement inaugurated its first pilot plant at the Bournezeau
site in the Vendée region. With a production capacity of 50,000 metric tons, this first unit
made it possible to test and refine a production process unique in the world:

- Without furnace: co-products are activated cold in a mixer;
- No waste from the production process;
- Nearly a quarter of energy produced and consumed on site thanks to solar
trackers.
This new type of plant 4.0 makes it possible to produce new decarbonised clinker-free
cements.

March 2020: publication of Life Cycle Inventories (LCI) on the INIES database for H-UKR and
H-EVA cements

Hoffmann Green is the first French cement manufacturer to publish its ICV. The LCI tables
summarise the assessment of all incoming and outgoing flows of raw materials and energy
resources used in the manufacture of its H-UKR and HEVA cements in order to assess their
environmental impacts. They are used as input data for the software used to analyse the life
cycle of a construction product, often composed of several materials.

November 2020: Environmental and Health Declaration Sheets (FDES) obtained for concrete
floors and walls made from its H-UKR cement.

These two EDP are part of a continuous and voluntary certification process for Hoffmann
Green’s new innovative cements. These standardised documents present the results of the
Life Cycle Analysis of concrete carried out on Hoffmann Green H-UKR cement for floor and
wall elements as well as health information that makes it possible to calculate the
environmental and health performance of a building with a view to its eco-design. The EDP
are published on the INIES database, the national reference database on environmental and
health characteristics for buildings. The EDP provides users of concrete made from Hoffmann
Green cement with multi-criteria, objective, quantitative and qualitative information for all
phases of the product’s life (production, transport, processing, life in use and end-of-life). It is
an irreplaceable tool for assessing the environmental performance of buildings made from
Hoffmann Green concrete, in particular within the framework of the new Environmental
Regulation RE 2020: positive energy building, minimising the carbon impact across its entire
life cycle.

December 2020: launch of the second production site
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This exceptional structure, located next to the first “H1” production site, in Bournezeau in the
Vendée (85) and built entirely from Hoffmann Green cements, will have a production capacity
of 250,000 metric tons per year. The concept and design of “H2” were based on feedback from
llHlﬂ.

Thus, equipped with a 70-meter-high mixing tower, “H2” is a vertical plant whose cement
production will follow a gravity-based process to optimise the unit’s productivity. The
verticality of this site also means the land area can be reduced to 1.5 hectares: the land area
of “H2” is thus half that of “H1” while increasing production capacity fivefold.

The optimised land footprint enables Hoffmann Green to preserve natural spaces.

September 2021: launch of H-IONA, the most carbon-free cement on the European market

Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies launched H-IONA, its fourth low-carbon technology.
The manufacture of this new cement is part of the existing production unit and emits six times
less CO;, than traditional Portland cement, i.e. a carbon footprint of less than 150 kilograms
per ton. As an extension of the technologies already developed, in particular for H-UKR,
Hoffmann Green Cement has developed an innovative specific activation system that allows
it to manufacture this technology cold, in its fully automated 4.0 plant, while preserving
natural resources by recycling co-products from industry. This cement is mainly composed of
ground blast furnace slag and calcium sulphates. H-IONA is the first decarbonised cement to
obtain CE marking.

May 2022: Hoffmann Green announces the establishment of its third production site (H3) in
the Grand Port Maritime de Dunkerque.

Hoffmann Green reached a key stage in its development with the signature of a 40-year
Temporary Occupation Authorisation (AOT) for the Grand Port Maritime de Dunkerque
(GPMD) with a view to building the Company’s third production site (“H3”) on 5 hectares of
land. To date, this agreement takes the form of a reservation protocol. Hoffmann Green will
take possession of the land when the current occupant has finalised its exit operations.

This location fits perfectly into the Company’s strategic plan since it is located near a rail and
river junction and offers a new maritime access that will connect with the storage silos located
in the port of La Rochelle. It also corresponds to GPMD's strategy to develop the industry that
generates new maritime flows at its port terminals.

The year 2022 is marked by the finalisation of the “H2” production site which comes into
service in the first half of 2023.
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Ce calcul est basé sur les 12 010 tonnes praduites en 2022. Plus Hoffmann Green va augmenter sa production,
4 789 3 plus ses nouveaux ciments vont se substituer aux ciments traditionnels. Ainsi, a pleine production (50 000 tonnes),
r

la seule usine pilote permettra donc d'éviter prés de 20 000 tonnes de CO, par an par rapport a l'utilisation

Tonnes

de ciments traditionnels. Les tonnes équivalent CO, évitées sant calculées par le gain de CO, obtenu grace au
EqUIV3|Ent COZ remplacement d‘'un ciment traditionnel, selon le mix actuel de la consommation de ciment, par un ciment décarboné
évitées du fait des pl’CldUItS sans clinker pour la production 2022 Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies.

CHIFFRE CLE

Voir tableau de calcul en annexe méthodologique.

See the detailed calculation in the appendix of the report

e ASPECT 2: REDUCING THE COMPANY’S CARBON FOOTPRINT

Faced with climate challenges, every degree counts, every ton of CO; saved counts. Hoffmann
Green applies this principle at every level of the company. In production, with its low-carbon
solutions, but also in the life of the Company.

ACTIONS IMPLEMENTED
Carrying out a carbon assessment ® scope 3

Since 2020, in order to identify its main sources of greenhouse gas emissions, Hoffmann Green
has carried out an annual carbon assessment, including a scope including direct emissions,
(scope 1), indirect emissions related to energy consumption (scope 2), and emissions caused
by the Company’s activity (scope 3): non-current assets, inputs, purchase of raw materials,
services or other products, employee travel, upstream and downstream transport of goods.
These carbon assessments®, on the three scopes, thus provide an overview of the Company’s
carbon footprint and its evolution over time.

Marketing of carbon credits

Since the end of 2022, Hoffmann Green has been marketing carbon credits that correspond
to the CO, emissions avoided thanks to the use of 0% clinker cements developed by Hoffmann
Green. The generation of carbon credits is based on a methodology validated and published
by a certifier. It is an alternative financing solution that makes it possible to recover non-
emitted carbon. This serves two purposes. First, the revenue from the carbon contribution will
enable Hoffmann Green to strengthen the competitiveness of its low-carbon solutions and
thus enable their adoption in the face of more polluting traditional solutions. The second
objective is to increase R&D funding for products ever more virtuous for the environment. To
date, Hoffmann Green has 10,000 carbon credits available for sale.
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Bilan Carbone® at a glance

Bilan Carbone® Scope 1,2,3 (in tons of CO; equivalent)’

SCOPES1AND2
SCOPES 3 UPSTREAM

SCOPES 3 DOWNSTEAM

Greenhouse gas emissions related to
activity in 2021 amounted to 2.6
ktCO.eq, compared to 1.7 ktCO,eq in
2020 and 2.4 kteqCO; in 2019.

By way of comparison, the carbon
efficiency of a traditional cement
manufacturer is greater than 500 kg
eq. CO,/ton (scope 1 and 2). For this
same scope, Hoffmann Green’s
carbon efficiency is 7 kg eq CO,/ton;
taking into account the three
scopes,this intensity is 256 kg eq
CO,/ton.

The lack of transparency of the other players in the sector in this scope 3 scope does not allow

for comparison.

17 Bilan Carbone® carried out by EVEA ( www.evea-conseil.com) in June 2020 on the 2019 data, in
December 2021 on the 2020 data and in December 2022 on the 2021 data.
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Breakdown and changes in issues by item

Répartition des émissions par poste

The item that contributes the

1%

‘J % 0 most to these emissions is
T ( inputs (53%), followed by non-
/ B - current assets and then
[ p— freight.
::wm Production purchases
B e (materials - products) account
I naviosusanon for 61% of GHG emissions
pecHeTs related to inputs. The rest is
mainly related to service
purchases.

Nearly three-quarters of the
emissions are generated by

MMOBILSATIONS the first plant located in

Frer Bournezeau. As with any

HORS ENERGIE industrial  innovation, the

EnERGE initial investments weigh on

B circonens the model through

DECHETS capitalisation. Thus, machines

e B wwsrs account for 77% of the GHG

2019 2020 2021

emissions of this emission
item, i.e. 12% of total business
emissions, down 5 points compared to the previous year.

The increase in emissions is mainly due to the increase in production. However, the increase
in production and the economies of scale achieved allow a reduction in carbon intensity.

Répartition des émissions par poste Breakdown of emissions by item
16 % 16%

1% 1%

3% 3%

6 % 6%

22 % 22%

53 % 53%
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A specific freight policy to reduce the carbon footprint

Upstream freight in tank trucks accounts for 84% of the freight item's GHG emissions, i.e. 18%
of the activity’s total emissions. To reduce this footprint, Hoffmann Green is developing a
sourcing diversification policy that favours proximity. The optimisation of the transport of
upstream materials (industrial co-products) is systematically taken into account in the
Company’s development plan. Thus, the strategy for siting future production units includes
the proximity of maritime, river or rail transport hubs for supply.

What contribution to SNBC?

Based on the Net Zero Initiative® framework developed by Carbone 4, Hoffmann Green has
initiated its assessment of its contribution to carbon neutrality in 2050.

Eimisson®  (scope ) 3,89
Fnrg:rsesglej: (scope 2) 73,39 46198
(scope 3) 2518,12
Hewieer -
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Today, the weight of direct and indirect carbon emissions (related to energy consumption)
(scopes 1 and 2) is already lower than the emission reductions caused by the use of Hoffmann
Green cement rather than traditional cement.

The extension to scope 3 emissions and in particular the integration of non-current assets,
inputs, and upstream and downstream freight are all ways of reducing the impact of Hoffmann
Green Ciment Technologies, in particular with a view to quickly ramping up production.

As part of its contribution to carbon sinks, Hoffmann Green signed a partnership with
Reforest'Action in 2018. In this context, Hoffmann Green Cement supported the planting of
10,000 trees during the 2019-2020 season in Occitanie. B Corp certified, Reforest'Action is a
social company created in 2010 by Stéphane Hallaire, whose primary mission is to raise
awareness and take action for forests: to raise awareness among as many people as possible
about the power of forests and the need for them, and to protect them, preserve and restore
forests in France and around the world.

This action is part of a global low-carbon strategy implemented by the company: reduce,
avoid, offset.

Hoffmann Green committed to the ACT - Assessing low Carbon Transition® approach

The ACT - Assessing low Carbon Transition® initiative was developed by ADEME and the CDP
(Carbon Disclosure Project) to assess the climate strategies of companies, regardless of their
size or their markets, and compare them with the requirements of a low-carbon world. In
2020, Hoffmann Green took part in a voluntary experiment in the cement market.

Hoffmann Green obtained a score of 13A+.

A high rating in the ACT benchmark. The average of cement companies participating in the
ACT experiment in France in 2020 was 9B+.
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Comprendre la notation ACT

Ty 5

Qu’a-t-elle Quelle est
récemment y cohérence
2

entrepris de l'ensemble ?

1. Obijectifs de réduction \ \ 1. Madele économique
et stratégie
2. Investissement matériel \\\ d
2. Risques business
3. Investissement immatériel .
Réputation
L. Performance des produits . N credibiite
coherence et credibiiite
5.  Management L
6. Engagement Fournisseur Performance Evaluation  Tendance \\ \
7. Engagement Client
8. Engagement public NUtE‘ ACT@ + Ameélioration
9. Business Model = |
LE SCORE ACT EST CONSTRUIT stable
SUR LES REPONSES AUX 5 QUESTIONS - Degradation

ET COMPOSE DE 3 NOTES

The company’s analysis highlights the positive aspect, in the low-carbon contribution, of the
Hoffmann clinker-free cements. The score obtained also highlights the integration of climate
change issues into the management system and customer commitment.

The assessment highlights that the company has not set targets for reducing its emissions.
Emissions are already very low compared to international values.

Finally, areas for improvement are related to the young age of the company which, to go
further, should formalise a transition plan and objectives (a work initiated in 2021 which will
continue in 2022). Increased customer engagement, particularly in aspects related to the life
cycle of buildings, could also improve this rating.

Performance score by module
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The graph shows the performance scores of the nine ACT modules. The width of the bars
indicates the weight of the module in the overall calculation of the performance score. The
height of the bar indicates the score obtained by the company.

The company obtained the best scores in terms of intangible investment (100%), business
model (100%), customer engagement (88%) and political commitment (87%).

Average scores were obtained for the performance of products sold (68%), management
(53%) and supplier engagement (50%).

The final performance score is 13/20.

Concerning the trend rating, Hoffmann Green is positioned at the highest level. According to
the appraisal report: “The company has already addressed the major changes to the business
model to be compatible with the low-carbon transition. The performance score is not higher
due to the lack of a formalised transition plan and emission reduction targets. However, the
company is on the right track to improve its score and must formalise its strategy while
increasing its production.”

Issue: Preservation of natural resources

In a world of finite resources, GDP must be decorrelated from the consumption of resources,
whether energy, natural resources or water, by relying on three levers: (i) avoid unnecessary
waste and consumption; (ii) reduce by increasing efficiency; (iii) reuse/recycle by integrating
business models into the circular economy.
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e  ASPECT 1: Optimise energy consumption

The production of traditional Portland cement consumes a great deal of energy, which
represents 30 to 40% of the cost price of traditional cement*® (excluding depreciation costs).
The price of cement is thus very dependent on that of energy.

Today, as part of the energy transition, the aim is to massively reduce energy consumption
and develop the use of renewable energies. It is both a national and a regional issue. Some
regions, such as the Pays de la Loire region, are highly dependent on energy, and their energy
autonomy is estimated at 9% of its consumption®®.

Taking full account of the national and regional energy challenge, Hoffmann Green is
committed to building low-energy sites, integrating renewable energy production, and
reducing the impact of freight.

Thus, the production of Hoffmann cement requires 82 kilowatt-hours per metric ton?® when
the production of traditional Portland cement requires 800 to 1,300 kilowatt-hours per metric
ton?!, production that is 10 to 15 times less energy-intensive. Energy efficiency is particularly
valuable in a context of inflationary energy prices.

Consommation d’énergie

par type 2019 2021

Consommation

MWh 120 125 125,3 555
‘origine renouvelable

Consommation de gaz MWh 50 0 1.8 879

179

18 http://media.energie-industrie.com/Presentation/011_149_diag_energ_cimenterie_313507.pdf
19 https://ceser.paysdelaloire.fr/wp-content/uploads/2020_07_07_Ftude_Energie.pdf

20|V verified H-UKR, registration No 20220930840, CSTB

210 PDF) Environmental and energy assessment of the use of Andesite in cement (researchgate.net),
Analyses of parameters affecting energy consumption in a cement rotary kiln and possible energy

optimisation solutions (archives-ouvertes.fr) & https: //docplayer.fr/1106340-Le-diagnostic-
energetique-d-une-cimenterie.html
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In 2021, energy consumption has fallen as production has increased. Energy efficiency due to
thermal insulation work in the production area of the H1 plant to prevent heat loss and leaks.

In 2022, energy consumption increased due to the construction of the second production unit
and the increase in production.

The gas is consumed by a material drier that was not used in 2020. The production of
Hoffmann cements does not require fossil energy, unlike traditional cement plants.

ACTIONS IMPLEMENTED
Green electricity

Hoffmann Green produces and consumes nearly a quarter of its energy needs directly at its
production site thanks to solar trackers. At the end of 2022, the fleet of solar trackers had
increased from three to twelve trackers.

To supplement this consumption, in 2020, Hoffmann Green signed a green electricity purchase
contract with Engie to cover 100% of its consumption in 100.

Optimised industrial facilities

Hoffmann Green’s industrial process is designed to optimise energy consumption. The
Hoffmann Green plants thus have limited production capacity compared to traditional cement
plants: 50,000 metric tons for the first plant and 250,000 metric tons for plants 2 and 3
compared to several million metric tons per year for a traditional cement plant. This
dimensioning means plants can be located as close as possible to projects and customers to
optimise freight.
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Efficacité L’efficacité énergétique représente
éenergétique Iélectricité consommée pour une tonne
98 de ciment produit en kwh/t.
Elle s’éléve 3 98 kWh/t en 2022,
kW h /t contre 70 kWh/t en 2021, et 418 kWh/t
en 2020.
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Taux dENR dans Fin 2020, Hoffmann Green
la consommation a souscrit un contrat d’énergie verte

d’électricité auprés d’Engie.
en 2022

100%

* the energy efficiency of 98 kWh / t includes all Hoffmann Green’s electricity consumption in relation to the metric tons
produced, while the energy efficiency of 82 kWh / t presented previously only concerns the electricity consumption required for
cement production.

e ASPECT 2: Reducing the use of natural resources

In fifty years, resource extraction has more than tripled worldwide. In total in 2017, the world
removed nearly 44 billion metric tons of non-metallic minerals (sand, gravel, clay)?.

Limestone extracted from a quarry is the raw material for traditional cements. Quarries are a
source of pollution for the environment and nuisance for local residents and they also damage
biodiversity. There are 3,600 active quarry operations in France, including around 500 that
extract around 418,300 m3of limestone per year?,

The preservation of resources is at the heart of Hoffmann Green Cement’s action. Thus, all the
solutions developed by Hoffmann Green use co-products (blast furnace slag, clay sludge,
gypsum and desulfogypsum) as raw materials. In use, Hoffmann cements do not require more
sand and water than traditional cement.

22 Source: International Resource Panel, https://www.resourcepanel.org/

2 Source: http://www.mineralinfo.fr/ecomine/carte-carrieres-francaises-en-activite-d

Equipementst#:#:text=Au today%2C%20l'industrie,environ%2095%20%25%20de % 20la%
20production.
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ACTIONS IMPLEMENTED
New cements to preserve resources

The manufacture of one ton of clinker, used in traditional cements, requires the extraction of
1.3 metric tons of limestone. The use of industrial co-products as a raw material thus provides
an immediate and concrete response to preserve this resource and limit the exploitation of
quarries. Co-products represent 98% of the materials used to produce these new cements.

z

CHIFFRE CLE

1 tonne de ciment Hoffmann produite permet d'éviter

9816 I'extraction d'0,8 tonne de calcaire dans les sols. Ainsi,

TO nnes a pleine production (50 000 tonnes), la seule usine pilote
permettra donc d’éviter |'extraction de prés de 40 000

de calcaires extraits
évités en 2022 tonnes de calcaire par an par rapport a l'utilisation de

ciments traditionnels.

Details of the calculation are available in the appendix.

Focus on... a waterless production process:

According to the World Resources Institute think tank seventeen countries are in a situation
of “severe water stress”, meaning that they consume almost all the water they have. In France,
water withdrawals for industry represent 3.3 billion m3 of water, i.e. 10% of withdrawals but

25% of the water consumed (water that is not discharged into nature)*.?

Hoffmann Green has developed new industrial processes that do not require any water
supply. In addition, during use, Hoffmann cement does not require more water than any other
cement. In 2021, all sites consumed 181 m3 of water in total for cleaning the machines and
the site.

24 https://www.cieau.com/le-metier-de-leau/ressource-en-eau-eau-potable-eaux-usees/connaiss-vous-les-usages-
non-domestigues-de-leau/

25 https://www.usinenouvelle.com/article/voici-pourwhy-I-eau-est-enjeu-majeur-pour-l-industrie.N8 78690
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e ASPECT 3: Reduce the amount of industrial waste

In 2016, all establishments in the industry produced 37% of non-hazardous non-mineral waste
excluding sludge. The manufacturing industry alone generates half of this, with 19% of all
waste.?® Today, 30% of waste is either incinerated or buried.

Hoffmann Green has designed its entire industrial process without waste directly linked to on-
site production.

A waste-free production process

Entirely based on the principles of the circular economy, the production of Hoffmann cements
recovers industrial co-products that become the main raw material for de-carbonised
cements. A virtuous approach applied at each stage of production, which itself generates no
waste. Incoming products are delivered by truck, stored in tanks and pass through the
production line by automated conveyors. No packaging is used.

Hoffmann cements are delivered by tank truck. Packaging is thus reduced to the strict
minimum. The only significant waste is the result of R&D and production of inconclusive tests,
i.e.221 metric tonsin 2022, compared to 241 metric tons in 2021. The low recycling rate is due
to the classification, by default, of R&D waste as hazardous waste, until proof of its
harmlessness; which is not feasible in a development phase where the formulation changes
regularly.

“Responsible Producer” perspective

Hoffmann Green exists to provide concrete solutions to reduce the environmental impact of
cements and, more generally, construction. Hoffmann Green is pursuing this objective
through two cross-functional actions

e Commissioning of “H2”, the new Hoffmann Green plant

This new plant, with a production capacity of 250,000 metric tons, compared with 50,000
for the industrial pilot plant, is in production testing since January 2023. It will be fully
operational in the first half of 2023. Its vertical design reduces the occupied land footprint
and the associated soil sealing, as well as preserving natural spaces. This vertical plant is
designed for a gravity-based production method, using the natural weight of materials in
the industrial process, allowing energy optimisation.

26 https://www.insee.fr/fr/statistique/4255826?sommaire=4256020#consult-sommaire
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e Continuation of preparatory work for the construction of “H3”

In May 2022, Hoffmann Green signed a 40-year Temporary Occupation Authorisation
(AOT) for the Grand Port Maritime de Dunkerque (GPMD) in order to build the Company’s
third production site (“H3”) on a 5 hectares of land. To date, this agreement takes the
form of a reservation protocol. Hoffmann Green will take possession of the land when the
current occupant has finalised its exit operations. This location fits perfectly into the
Company’s strategic plan since it is located near a rail and river junction and offers a new
maritime access that will connect with the storage silos located in the port of La Rochelle.

o Development of maritime freight

In February 2022, Hoffmann Green signed a 25-year Temporary Occupancy Authorisation
for the port of La Rochelle to install storage silos. This facility in a major port on the Atlantic
coast gives Hoffmann Green privileged maritime access for both raw materials supplies
and finished product shipments. Located 45 minutes from the Bournezeau industrial site,
this facility is a major point in the Company’s sustainable logistics strategy.

e Start of a reflection on the 2° C climate trajectory

In 2020, Hoffmann Green carried out its first carbon assessment® and an ACT assessment
- Assessing low Carbon Transition® - led by ADEME. These initial elements were used to
draw up an inventory of the company’s carbon emissions and will constitute the basis for
considering the inclusion of the strategy in the contribution to carbon neutrality in 2050.
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RESPONSIBLE EMPLOYER

Responsible production relies not only on innovative and efficient facilities, but also on the
men and women of the company. Creating mixed and quality employment, protecting
employees' health and safety in short, being a responsible employer is a sine qua non for the
Company’s attractiveness and therefore for the success of its business model. In 2022,
Hoffmann Green employs 43 people with regular recruitment planned for the coming years.
The implementation of a work environment that promotes employee development is one of
the pillars of the Company’s CSR policy.

The challenge of mixed and qualitative employment

Industrial employment is subject to multiple tensions. The development of Industry 4.0, for
example, is leading to changes in skills and working methods. The industry faces prejudice and
a lack of attractiveness. Industry accounts for 13.3% of salaried employment in France (3.9
points below the European average)?.

Since November 2017, France has thus embarked on a proactive industrial recovery strategy.
This strategy is based on four pillars: (i) improving cost competitiveness, (ii) innovation, (iii)
training and (iv) a strong regional presence.

e ASPECT 1: develop new high-quality industrial jobs

The industrialisation of an innovation calls on new talents at all levels of the company.
Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies must meet a triple challenge:

- Recruit talent and retain them in a region with a very high employment rate that
is relatively far from urban areas. With an unemployment rate of 7% in Pays de la
Loire, the lowest of the French regions, the job market is tight, particularly in
industry and construction.

- Train employees on unique products and processes:
o inlaboratories with specific research areas,
o inthe fully automated factory with specially trained operators,
o at the commercial level with specific knowledge to be acquired
o on construction sites with partners to ensure proper use of these new
cements.

27 https://www.insee.fr/fr/statistique/4277675?sommaire=4318291
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- Developits human resources management processes to support the development
of the company.

In addition, Hoffmann Green pays particular attention to the employment and training of
young people, particularly in the current context of the health and economic crisis.

ACTIONS IMPLEMENTED
Systematic annual individual interviews with each employee.

Individual interviews are useful for taking stock of each person’s position and their potential
development and training needs. Given the youth and size of the company (43 employees in
2022), each position is new and unique. Employees each have a defined area of expertise and
responsibilities.

Distribution of free shares for all employees

Following the IPO, the members of the Management Board of Hoffmann Green wanted to
involve all employees in the future development of the company. All Hoffmann Green
employees are shareholders of the company. Thus, 0.2% of the share capital is held by
employees.

Focus on long-term employment

Hoffmann Green favours long-term employment with a predominant share of permanent
contracts (97.8% in 2022 compared to 90.9% in 2021 and 85.7% in 2020), which makes it
possible to build long-term relationships between the company and its employees. All
employees are on long-term contracts, the rest are apprenticeship contracts that allow the
gradual integration and training of young working people.
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Changes in the Company’s workforce

Effectifs au 31/12 nb salariés 16 21 33 43

Recrutement (évolution nette de I'effectif) 3 7 13 n

Turn over% 32% 47% 60% 36%

Nb apprentis/alternants 1 3 3 1

Part de CDI dans les effectifs % 82% 85,7% 90,9% 97,78%

Part de personnel intérimaire % 0 0 0 0

The workforce increased continuously between 2018 and 2022 with a stabilisation of
employees and a decreasing turnover rate. Through apprenticeships, the company relies on
the training of young people for its new business lines related to the production of low-
carbon cement. This commitment also aims to facilitate the entry of young people into the
job market, in solidarity with the actions of the region.

En tant que jeune entreprise industrielle, Hoffmann Creen met en place de nouveaux standards.
3 4 o/o Les femmes représentent encore une trop faible part dans I'industrie (16% des emplois ) et
de femmes dans le secteur du BTP . A cheval entre ces deux mondes, Hoffmann Green s’engage pour

dans I'entreprise assurer la mixité de ses collaborateurs a chaque niveau de I’entreprise.
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The issue of health and safety at work

According to French health insurance, in 2019, there were 655,715 work-related accidents
(+0.6% compared to 2018) and 50,392 cases of occupational illness (+ 1.7% compared to
2018). Musculoskeletal disorders are the cause of 88% of them?,

Hoffmann Green is committed to the health and safety of its employees. Established only in
France, Hoffmann Green implements all the measures necessary to secure the working
environment for its employees and for all persons working on its sites.

Starting from a blank sheet of paper for the creation of the first factory, the teams established
adapted and very strict safety standards.

ACTIONS IMPLEMENTED

Implementation of an occupational health and safety management system

The commissioning of the first pilot plant was accompanied by the implementation of a safety
policy under the responsibility of the Chief Operating Officer. Based on their feedback, the
production teams were asked to establish, “safety” criteria adapted to the production process.
Since 2020, safety awareness sessions have been held every month by the director and the
operations manager, who are the site’s quality, health and safety officers. These meetings
covered, among other things, the wearing of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), clearances
(electrical, sanitary, first aid, fire), the use of safety kits and the presentation of safety sheets
by post.

Dust management

Dust control was specifically treated to guarantee air quality for operators in the plant. Thus,
all production is carried out in a closed process to limit air contact with the products. In
December 2019, a dust exposure assessment was carried out by CARSAT to obtain an
inventory of the situation in the first pilot plant. This work resulted in the implementation of
specific actions such as reinforcement of filtration elements at operator stations, the use of
assisted ventilation masks for maintenance operations and handling of certain products.
Sweepers and vacuum cleaners were also used for cleaning. The plans for the “H2” plant
incorporated this initial feedback.

28 https://assurance-maladie.ameli.fr/qui-somme-nous/publications-reference/assurance-maladie-

risques-professionnels/rapports-annuels
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En 2018, I'industrie cimentiére n'a déclaré que 98 Accidents du Travail (Avec et Sans arrét),
un Taux de Fréquence (TF1) de 3.69 et un Taux de Gravité (TG) de 0.23

E Taux de fréquence Taux de gravité

ﬁ © des accidents du travail des accidents du travail
E Accidentologie 0 0

=

=

(W]

source : infociment.f

RESPONSIBLE EMPLOYER OUTLOOK:

The year 2022 was marked by the construction of the second production unit on the
Bournezeaus site in the Vendée region. Hoffmann Green is committed to ensuring that the site
meets the highest health and safety standards, in particular appointing a safety officer to
monitor the H2 site in conjunction with all service providers.

Hoffmann Green is currently working on updating its internal rules to promote the well-being
of each employee in the Company.
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RESPONSIBLE PARTNER

As a newcomer, Hoffmann Green is attracting great interest. To promote their acceptance, its
new clinker-free cements must guarantee the highest level of quality - without this, it would
be impossible to influence the purchasing behaviour of construction players. Similarly,
governance must be exemplary to implement the development plan in a relationship of
dialogue and trust with the various stakeholders. Lastly, Hoffmann Green is committed to non-
profit organisations and economic players in the service of solidarity and the environment.

The challenge of qualitative cement

The estimated life of a building is between 70 and 100 years. Construction materials therefore
serve a triple purpose: performance, reliability and durability. Cements developed by
Hoffmann Green are currently “non-standard” in the sense that they do not comply with the
EN 197-1 standard which defines cement, in particular by the presence of clinker (with the
exception of H-IONA, which meets the NF EN 15743 standard). Thus, the disruptive solutions
proposed by the company must prove their performance.

To guarantee performance levels at least equivalent to those of traditional cements,
Hoffmann Green relies in particular on an R&D team that makes up one-third of the
Company’s total workforce. In charge of developing solutions, it relies on independent
certifying bodies to validate the quality of these new cements. The solution certification
process thus meets all the certification steps for other cements. Operated by an independent
body, the CSTB certifications obtained since 2019 reflect the commitments made and the
quality guarantee of Hoffmann solutions.

ACTIONS IMPLEMENTED
Continuous customer-oriented quality control

To guarantee the quality of these new cements, Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies has
set up a quality control system at each stage of production. Various new hires were made to
coordinate this monitoring and guarantee the same level of standards:

- An innovation project manager who acts as a link between the laboratory and
customers to support the development of products made from Hoffmann
cements.

- A quality technician who manages the quality control of the plant in Bournezeau:
control of inputs before use and control of finished products at the end of the line.

- Inearly 2021, a site monitoring manager joined the company to ensure the proper
use of Hoffmann cements on site and provide assistance to customers. This on-
site monitoring is accompanied by prior training of all customers in Hoffmann
technologies.
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Development of the "quality" laboratory

The year 2021 was marked by the development of the "quality" laboratory with the arrival of
new people to constitute a fully-fledged team in direct contact with the production teams. A
new laboratory was set up on the H1 production site to optimise this quality monitoring. The
new equipment deployed as well as the quality monitoring methodology made it possible to
obtain AFNOR certification for H-IONA cements.

First clinker-free cement in the world validated under ATEx?® of case A by CSTB

After four years of physical, chemical and mechanical tests, H-UKR cement benefits from a
Technical Assessment (ATEx of case A) issued by CSTB, the public company that guarantees
the quality and safety of buildings. This assessment covers a very large number of structures
ranging from single-family houses to high-rise buildings for structural applications (floors,
walls, beams, posts, etc.). The design of HUKR cement-based concrete structures is carried out
in accordance with Eurocode 2 and Eurocode 8, calculation standards recognised in France
and Europe. The Technical Assessment of Products and Materials (ETPM) of the H-UKR
technology has just been enriched and further assesses the durability and quality of the H-
UKR cement by validating the expected useful life of 100 years, thus opening the way for the
use of H-UKR cement-based concrete in civil engineering structures (bridges, tunnels, etc.).

The certifications can be downloaded from the Hoffmann cement website:
https://www.ciments-hoffmann.fr/technologies/telechargements/

Two new favourable assessments by CSTB for H-UKR

In 2022, Hoffmann Green continued the assessment plan for its H-UKR cement with two new
assessments issued by the benchmark public company in terms of building quality,
sustainability and safety. Identifiable thanks to the numbers 3019_V1 and 3020 V1, these two
ATEx validate the use of H-UKR cement-based concrete for superstructure and foundation
applications of all types of buildings: Residential, Establishments Receiving the Public (ERP),
office buildings, high-rise buildings, etc. All applications used to create the interior and exterior
structure of the building are targeted: footings, stringers, rafters, floors, columns, beams,
walls and slabs.

Governance challenge

2% Created at the initiative of the CSTB and construction stakeholders, ATEx is a rapid technical
assessment procedure formulated by a group of experts for any innovative product, process
or equipment.
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Good governance practices help coordinate the short, medium and long term, integrate the
social and environmental issues of the activities, be attentive to the interests of the Company’s
stakeholders, thus promoting more balanced decisions and lasting relationships with partners
based on trust, ethics and transparency.

Listed on the stock market in November 2019, Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies has
adopted the Middlenext code, and has structured its governance to continue to develop its
activity in transparency with its stakeholders.

ACTIONS IMPLEMENTED
Structuring of the CSR strategy

Given the consistency of CSR with the contribution of its products to society, since 2019 the
company has structured its CSR approach by defining three main areas fueled by concrete
actions updated annually. These actions are assessed during the year and reported annually.
The CSR strategy is thus placed under the immediate responsibility of the Chairman of the
Management Board. However, Hoffmann Green remains a young company (six years) and
must structure its development by relying on what is still a small team (43 people in 2022).
Corporate Responsibility is, by the very nature of its activity, included in its strategy with
strong immediate challenges in terms of the “responsible producer” pillar. The completion in
2020 of a materiality analysis of societal issues related to the Company’s activity should lead
to a rebalancing with the other two CSR pillars by strengthening actions on these subjects.

Dual governance

Hoffmann Green has opted for dual governance with a Management Board and a Supervisory
Board in order to separate its management and control functions. This governance structure
facilitates management of the Company and helps reconcile the short, medium and long term.
The Supervisory Board has seven members, three of whom are independent directors chosen
for their experience. Two women sit on the Supervisory Board.

Stakeholder involvement

Given the innovative nature of the Company’s products and their contribution to society, the
Company’s stakeholders are heavily involved in the development model.

e Local investors
From its inception, Hoffmann Green has been supported by a pool of local partners who
financed the first plant and supported industrial development. These initial investor partners,
most of whom are based in the Vendée region, contributed their expertise as entrepreneurs
and their industrial know-how. Some currently sit on the Supervisory Board.

e Business partners
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For its commercial development, Hoffmann Green has signed partnership agreements with its
customers to jointly experiment with the use and deployment of these new cements.
Hoffmann Green has one person dedicated to this relationship with partners, who acts as the
link between the R&D department and field teams.

e Local companies
The vast majority of factories are built by local companies. These are local partners who
provide all the expertise needed to build these new types of plants. Thus, the investment of
each plant (€ 22 million for the second plant under construction) comes back to the local area.

100% aligned with green taxonomy

In 2022, Ethifinance assessed the eligibility and alignment of the Hoffmann Green Cement
Technologies Group’s activities with regard to the available texts structuring the European
Taxonomy updated in 2022. It shows that 100% of the company’s activities are aligned with
this classification.

The European taxonomy allows investors and companies to determine which economic
activities and investments contribute substantially to one of the six environmental objectives
of the EU:

Climate change mitigation

Adaptation to climate change

Sustainable use and protection of aquatic resources
Transition to the circular economy

Pollution prevention and reduction

Protection and restoration of biodiversity and ecosystems

ok wnN R

ELIGIBILITE ALIGNEMENT

% CA Satisfaction des  Satisfaction des  Satisfaction des Alignement

associé TSC* DNSH** MS*** Taxonomie

¥ Fabrication de ciment 0%

o)
clinker 100%
du CA, et des
Trois produits CAPEX / OPEX

commercialisés & ce jour : 100% M Satisfait M Satisfait M Satisfait associés est

¢ HUKR -96% du CA .
¢ HIONA - 2.2% du CA Aligné

¢ HEVA-1.8%duCA

TOTAL % éligible 100%

* TSC - Technical Screening Criteria ** DNSH - Do No Significant Harm *** MS - Minimum Social safeguards
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Two voluntary ESG assessments

To measure its activity and strategy through the prism of ESG criteria®® the company was
assessed by two non-financial independent rating agencies.

Gaia Rating

Ga Ia by EthiFinance

Note ESG globale

L’entreprise Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies obtient, pour la campagne Gaia
Research 2022, une note de 63 / 100. Cette note porte sur les données de I'année 2021.

Les notes vont de 0 a 100, ou 100 est la meilleure.

30 ESG: Environment Social & Governance: Environment, Social & Societal, Governance
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Tendance
2020-2021

IHHEHHHIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII!l:ll:::li::ll

GOUVERNANCE m
SOCIAL
ENVIRONNEMENT 61

PARTIES PRENANTES .

EXTERNES

Note Globale
Hoffmann Green’s rating continued to improve in 2021 (+2 points) after a progression of 7
points in 2020.

In 2021, this rating placed Hoffmann Green in 131st place in Gaia Rating’s ESG 230 panel and
in 23rd position among the 78 companies in the panel with revenue of less than €150 million.

© EthiFinance

Gaia

Reésultat de la campagne Gala Rating 2020

Classement Global : 131/230

Classement au sein de la catégorie de chiffre d'affaires < 150 millions d'euros : 23/78

Gaia RATING Gaia RATING

EthiFinance EthiFinance

Résultat de la campagne Gaia Rating 2020

Classement Global : 131/230

Results of the Gaia Rating 2020 campaign

Global ranking: 131/230

Classement au sein de la catégorie de chiffre
d’affaires <150 millions d’euros : 23/78

Ranking within the revenue category <€150
million: 23/78

Sustainalytics
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ESG Risk Rating [ coveretensive |@  Ranking

1 Industry Group (1st = lowest risk

Medium v eroup (st )

Construction Materials 5 out of 128
. Risk

Universe

Negligible Low High Severe Global Universe 3823 out of 14766

10-20 20-30 30-40 40+
Last Update: Oct 7, 2021

Score: 20.8

The rating corresponds to the low value of a medium risk (rating between 20 and 30).
Hoffmann Green thus ranks 5™ out of 128 companies producing construction materials.

The challenge of regional anchoring

Companies are major players in their regions. Through their activity, they participate in the
economy. Through their commitments, they support community life.

As a company rooted in a region, Hoffmann Green is committed to local sports associations,
which promote the cohesion and dynamism of the region. Entirely committed to meeting
environmental challenges, Hoffmann Green is also committed to associations and companies
that share its struggles.

Sponsorship of local sports clubs

Hoffmann Green is a partner of many local sports clubs: Basket Club Aizenay, ASPTT Nantes
Handball, Tennis Entente Yonnaise (La Roche sur Yon), Sables Etudiants Club (Les Sables
d'Olonne), Vendée Fontenay Foot (Fontenay-le-Comte), US Bournezeau Saint-Hilaire.

Involvement alongside local non-profit organisations is part of the company’s commitment to
its region.
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Member of the WWF Entreprendre pour la Planéte Club

The objective of the EPP Club is to bring together companies
that have made commitments to the environment, have been

o | ENTREPRENDRE recognised by WWF France as part of their activity and wish to
@" N POURLA support the action of WWF France. The aim of the club is for
V:VWIE ;’ANET its members to be able to discuss their commitment to the

———— environment, participate in events, but also create a virtuous

network of committed companies.

Partner of the Corail artefact project

Corail artefact, led by the artist Jérémy Gobé, imagines a global solution to combat the
disappearance of corals. Jérémy Gobé and his partners develop ecological, buildable and
submersible materials to create a structure that allows the coral to rebuild itself after it is
destroyed. Concrete made from Hoffmann cements is used in this adventure.

Since the summer of 2019, the first prototypes of these structures have been tested with
anemones at the Trégastel Aquarium. This showed that the structures are conducive to the
adhesion, perennial setting and reproduction of cnidarians, without releasing any toxic
substance. Further improved prototypes are being built for initial installation in Guadeloupe
in 2022. Barrier reefs are a great sink for absorbing CO,. Thus, according to Frangoise Gaill,
research director at CNRS “30% of carbon dioxide emissions due to human activities are
captured by the ocean. It contains 50 times more than the atmosphere. From this point of
view, it is more efficient than forests."

L Y ‘

Structure en béton Hoffmann —Juin 2019 (photo de gauche) et Septembre 2021 (photos de droite) - Aquarium Dourven
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RESPONSIBLE PARTNER PERSPECTIVES:

In 2021, Hoffmann Green had its quality control processes validated by an external
organisation and obtained the AFNOR standard for its new H-IONA technology. Certification
a guarantee of confidence and quality guarantee for these new cements.

In 2022, Hoffmann Green is continuing to strengthen its quality process as part of a continuous
improvement approach.

Currently, Hoffmann Green is working on an ethics charter to engage and align all its
stakeholders on the same approach.
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APPENDIX: SCOPE & METHODOLOGY

The report covers the period corresponding to the financial year 2022, from January 1% 2022
and December 31t 2022, except for the carbon footprint® data for 2019, 2020 and 2021.

The scope covers the sites in the Vendée at Bournezeau and Chaillé, i.e. all activities.

e Carbon footprint issue / cements
Indicator: metric tons of CO; equivalent avoided due to the use of Hoffmann Green cements:
4,789.3, 2 tons eq CO;

By replacing a traditional cement, according to the current cement consumption mix, by a de-
carbonised cement without clinker for 2022 production, Hoffmann Green Cement
Technologies' carbon footprint is as follows (taking into account the three Hoffmann
technologies in proportion to their distribution in terms of revenue):

Technologies Pourcentage du CA Quantité (en tonne) Empreinte carbone
m 96% 11529,6 0,252 Teq CO, / fonne

2.2% 264,22 0,161 Teq CO, / fonne

1,8% 216,18 0,272 Teq CO2 /tonne

E Gain 2022 (en tonnes) sur la base des
_ U K R Proportion dans la Tm'“c'g" o Gain par tonne avec les ciments 11 529,65 tonnes de ciment H-UKR produites
consommation globale en % €q- onne moyenne H-UKR (0,252 Teq CO,/ tonne) calcul : proportion x quantité
(Source INSEE) produite x gain eq. CO, / tonne

CEM1 0,881 0,629 1733,26
CEMII 574 0,650 0,398 2633,96
CEMINETV n 0,420 0,168 213,06
Autres ciments

(GRS, 706 Non pris en compte dans le calcul

ciments divers,
liants géotechnique)
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CEM1 23,9 0,881 0,720 455
CEMII 574 0,650 0,489 7416
CEMINETV 1 0,420 0,259 752

Autres ciments

(ciments Spéciaux, .

ciments divers, 706 Non pris en compte dans le calcul
liants géotechnique)

CEM1 239 0,881 0,609 31,46
CEMII 574 0,650 0,378 469
CEMINETV 1l 0,420 0,148 3,51

Autres ciments

(ciments Speciaux, X

ciments divers, 7,06 Non pris en compte dans le calcul
liants géotechnique)

e Carbon footprint issue / company
Indicator: Bilan Carbone®

The Company’s direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions, in tons of CO, equivalent
calculated using the Bilan Carbone® methodology

Scope:
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PERIMETRE TEMPOREL 2021

LA ROEHE/SUR-YON

—————o Bournezeau (H1)

PERIMETRE GEOGRAPHIQUE

¥

Chaillé

PERIMETRE D’ACTIVITE Ensemble de l'activité

Emission sources:

Scope 3 - activités « amont » Scope 3 - activités « aval »
6 & 1. Sources fixes de combustion ‘\ﬁ 17 I‘IT;‘SEU"— de marchandises

2. Souress mobiles de combustion
8. Amont de ['énergie
14. Actifs en leasing amont

J e i e £ ——  11.Déchets
z . Procadéshare Snargie E 19. Fin de vie des produits vendus
4. Fugitives

‘@ 9. hchat dle produits et services * © Biomases (sols et forite d

— 10. Amartissements ) 18. Utilisalions des produits

Fo ’ & aval

f“‘ 9. Achat e pradults et cervicas F o 21. Leasing ava

#‘*\\ 9, Achat de produits et service: gi ) _'@

oy 12. Transpart de marchandises

‘[} amort

, 6. Consommation délecticité

13. Déplacemenis professionnels
~ 16, Transports de visiteurs et de
9 dients

22. Déplacemertts domicile-travail ' 7. Consommation de vapeur,
- chaleur, froid

Les postes d'émissions suivants ne sont pas inclus dans le périmétre de
['évaluation : 5, 14, 16, 18, 19, 20 et 21

e Resource conservation / Energy issue
Indicator: Energy consumption by type

Electricity and natural gas consumption according to our suppliers’ bills (in MWh)
Indicator: Energy efficiency
Electricity consumed per metric ton of cement produced in kWh/t

Calculation: Electricity consumption (kWh) / production in metric tons
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Indicator: share of renewable energy
Share of electricity consumed from renewable sources in %

Calculation: Renewable energy production / Electricity consumption

e Resource conservation / Limestone issue
Indicator: Limestone extraction avoided: 9,816metric tons

Quantity of limestone saved by replacing conventional cement with de-carbonised clinker-free
cement for the quantity of cement produced by Hoffmann Green in 2022.

Based on the current cement consumption mix in France, calculation of a weighted average
of the limestone used to produce the same quantity of cement as the Hoffmann Green
production in 2022. This amount corresponds to the extraction of limestone avoided due to
the replacement of conventional cements by Hoffmann Green cements.

It takes 1.3 metric tons of limestone to produce one metric ton of clinker.

Calculation: proportion x quantities produced x percentage of clinker x ton of limestone / ton

of clinker
Mix de la consommation p 5 Extraction de calcaire évitée 2022
lobale de Ementan ourcentage raction de calcaire évitée
g de clinker2® (sur la base de 12 210 tonnes de ciment produites)
(Source INSEE)
CEM1 239 95 35449
CEMII 57,4 65 5922,2

CEMIIVA, Bou C:20 & 64 %
CEMIIl/C: 5 &19%
CEMIBETY L CEM V/A ouB:20 & 64 % o2

(moyenne basse utfilisée : 20%)

Autres ciments
(ciments Spéciaux,
ciments divers,
liants géotechnique)

7,06 Non pris en compte dans le calcul

o Mixed and qualitative employment issue
Indicator: change in the Company’s workforce

- Workforce at 31 December: number of employees at 31 December 2022
- Recruitment: net change in headcount over the 2022 period Calculation: number of
employees at 31 December 2022 - number of employees at 31 December 2021
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Turnover: Turnover = [(Number of departures in 2022 + Number of new hires in
2022)/2]/Headcount at 31 December 2021

Number of apprentices / work-study students: number of apprentices/work-study
students on work-study contracts with the company as of 31 December 2022

Percentage of permanent employees in the workforce: salaried workforce at 31 December
2021 with permanent contracts / total workforce at 31 December 2022

Percentage of temporary staff: not applicable to date

Indicator: Gender balance
Percentage of female employees among the Company’s employees

Calculation: female workforce as of 31 December 2022 / Total workforce at 31 December 2022

e Occupational health and safety issue

Indicator: accidentology

Workplace accident frequency rate: (no. of accidents entailing medical leave of
absence/hours worked) x 1,000,000

Workplace accident severity rate: (number of days lost due to temporary disability/hours
worked) x 1,000
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5. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE

Copies of the Annual Financial Report are available free of charge at the Company’s registered
office.

The Annual Financial Report may also be consulted on the Company’s website (www.ciments-
hoffmann.fr).

The Articles of Association, minutes of General Meetings and other corporate documents of
the Company, as well as historical financial information and any valuation or statement
prepared by an expert at the Company’s request that must be made available to shareholders,
in accordance with the applicable legislation may be consulted, free of charge, at the
Company’s registered office.

Regulated information within the meaning of the provisions of the AMF General Regulation
are also available on the Company’s website ( www.ciments-hoffmann.fr).
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6. GLOSSARY

ADEME French Environment Agency for Energy Management.

AOT Authorisation for the temporary occupation of public property.
CNRS National Centre for Scientific Research.

CSTB Building Science and Technology Centre.

Decarbonation

CO release reaction ; contained in limestone raw materials under the
action of heat.

For ADEME; the circular economy is “an economic system of exchange
and production that aims to increase the efficiency of the use of

Circular resources and reduce our impact on the environment. The aim is to

economy decouple the consumption of resources from growth of gross domestic
product (GDP) while ensuring a reduction in environmental impacts
and an increase in well-being”.

ETPM Technical Assessment of Products and Materials, issued by CSTB.

FCPI Innovation Mutual Fund.

FDES Environmental and Health Declaration Form.

ICPE Installations Classified for the Protection of the Environment.

INPI National Institute of Industrial Property.

MPa Megapascal. Unit of pressure or constraint equal to one million pascals.
Investments for the Future Program. This is an investment program
initiated by the French State in 2010 to invest in higher education and

PIA vocational training, in research, in industry and SMEs, in sustainable
development and in all sectors of the future such as digital technology,
biotechnology and nuclear energy.

EU ETS European Union Emissions Trading Scheme.

SFIC Syndicat Francais de I'Industrie Cimentiére.

EU European Union.
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HOFFMANN
GREEN CEMENT

Catalyst of
Carbon Transition

Registered office 6 rue de La Bretaudiéere, Chaillé sous les Ormeaux, 85310 Rives de I'Yon

Industrial site Vendéopole - Vendée Center, 57 rue Henri Adolphe Archereau, 85480
Bournezeau

Tel. 02 51 460 600 contact@ciments-hoffmann.fr www.ciments-hoffmann.fr

Hoffmann Green Cement Technologies A public limited company (société anonyme) with a Management Board and a Supervisory Board with
a capital of €14,634,736. Registered office: La Bretaudiére, Chaillé-sous-les-Ormeaux, 85310
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